
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Angela Bloor 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74754 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 24 74553 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH AND WELL-BEING AND ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE) 

 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
R Charlwood - Moortown; 

C Fox - Adel and Wharfedale; 

S Armitage - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

K Bruce - Rothwell; 

J Chapman - Weetwood; 

A Hussain - Gipton and Harehills; 

W Hyde - Temple Newsam; 

J Illingworth - Kirkstall; 

G Kirkland - Otley and Yeadon; 

L Mulherin (Chair) - Ardsley and Robin Hood; 

S Varley - Morley South; 

 -  

 
Co-optees 

Joy Fisher – Alliance of Service Users 
Sally Morgan – Equality Issues 
Betty Smithson – Leeds LINk 
Paul Truswell – Leeds LINk 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting).  
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND THE PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

           No exempt items on this agenda. 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES 
 
To approve the minutes of the Scrutiny Board 
(Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 
meeting held on 29th February 2012 
 
(minutes attached) 
 
 
 

1 - 14 

7   
 

  2011/2012 QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE 
REPORT 
 
To consider a report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 
providing a summary of the quarter 3 performance 
data relevant to the Board and including an update 
on the Health and Wellbeing partnership priorities 
 
(report attached) 
 

15 - 
34 



 

 
D 

8   
 

  LEEDS NHS PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development which will provide current 
performance data from NHS Airedale, Bradford 
and Leeds, together with information on issues 
raised by the Board at the meeting on 21st 
December 2011 
 
(report attached) 
 
 
 

35 - 
66 

9   
 

  HEALTH INEQUALITIES - LOOKED AFTER 
CHILDREN 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development providing information 
relating to health inequalities for Looked after 
Children as part of the Board’s inquiry into health 
inequalities 
 
(report attached) 
 
 
 

67 - 
88 

10   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development setting out the Board’s 
current work programme for the 2011/2012 
municipal year 
 
(report attached) 
 
 
 

89 - 
124 

11   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
18th April 2012 at 10.00am (Pre-meeting at 9.30am 
for all Board Members) 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH AND WELL-BEING AND ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE) 

 
WEDNESDAY, 29TH FEBRUARY, 2012 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor L Mulherin in the Chair 

 
 
 
 
 
CO-OPTED  
MEMBERS 

Councillors S Armitage, K Bruce, 
J Chapman, J Illingworth, G Kirkland, 
S Varley, G Wilkinson and V Morgan 
 
 
Joy Fisher, Sally Morgan and Betty 
Smithson 
 

 
 
 

64 Chair's opening remarks  
 

The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed everyone in attendance 
 
 

65 Late Items  
 

The Chair admitted one late item to business to the agenda (minute 75 
refers).   The report was not available when the agenda was despatched and 
required urgent consideration at the meeting because it provided an update 
on a number of work areas and identified potential future items of business to 
be agreed by the Scrutiny Board 
 
In addition, whilst not a formal late item, the Board was in receipt of additional 
information relating to agenda item 7, Leeds Health and Social Care 
Transformation Programme Update, which set out the specific adult 
ambulatory pathways being considered as part of the Transformation work 
(minute 69 refers) 
 
 

66 Declarations of Interest  
 

The following Members declared personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purposes of Section 81(3) of the Local Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 
8-12 of the Members Code of Conduct: 
 
Health and Social Service Care integration – Proposal to develop integrated 
Health and Social Care Teams, Councillor Armitage and Councillor Morgan 
declared personal interests through their involvement with Swarcliffe Good 
Neighbours and South Seacroft Good Neighbours, respectively, in view of the 
work being undertaken with all stakeholders at a neighbourhood level (minute 
72 refers) 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

 
In view of her role as the Local Involvement Network (LINk) representative on 
the Integration Board and on the National Endowment for Science, 
Technology and the Arts (NESTA) Board, Joy Fisher declared personal 
interests in the following agenda items relating to the integration proposals: 
 

• Health and Social Care Services Integration – an overview (minute 70 
refers) 

• Health and Social Service Care Integration – supporting working age 
adults with enduring mental health issues (minute 73 refers) 

• Health and Social Care Service Integration – Harry Booth House 
(minute 71 refers) 

• Health and Social Service Care Integration – proposal to develop 
integration Health and Social Care teams (minute 72 refers) 

 
 

67 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes  
 

Apologies for absence were received from the following: 
 
Councillor Charlwood 
Councillor Fox – who was substituted by Councillor Wilkinson 
Councillor Hussain – who was substituted by Councillor Morgan 
Councillor Hyde 
Paul Truswell 
 
 

68 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED -  That the minutes of the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing 
and Adult Social Care) held on 25th January 2012 be approved 
 
 

69 Leeds Health and Social Care Transformation Programme - Update  
 

The Board considered a report of the Head of Scrutiny Support and Member 
Development providing an update on work being carried out by the 
Transformation Board which was a city-wide agreement between health and 
social care partners intended to deliver solutions that sustained quality whilst 
substantially reducing the overall cost in the city of the health and social care 
economy by the end of 2014.   Appended to the report was a copy of the 
Transformation Board’s programme update and an extract from a House of 
Commons Health Committee report relating to public expenditure, for 
Members’ information 
 
Attending for this item were: 
 

• Matt Ward (Associate Director of Commissioning ) – NHS Airedale, 
Bradford and Leeds 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

• Dennis Holmes (Deputy Director) – Leeds City Council, Adult Social 
Services 

• Claire Walker – (Programme Management Officer) (Transformation 
Board ) – NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds 

 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Phil Corrigan (NHS 
Airedale, Bradford and Leeds) who was unable to attend the meeting due to a 
recently sustained injury 
 
Matt Ward presented the report and outlined a number of current 
developments detailed in the report and along with Claire Walker and Dennis 
Holmes, responded to questions from the Board.   The main areas of 
discussion were as follows: 
 

• Clinical value in elective care – with the Board being informed that a 
reduction of around 12,000 face-to-face follow ups had been achieved 
since 1 April 2011, through using more appropriate and innovative 
follow-up care, including by telephone and primary care intervention 

 
It was highlighted that the alternatives to face-to-face follow-up 
appointments had been running for almost 12 months.   Members were 
assured of safeguards in the process and advised that a blanket 
approach was not being adopted, rather it was for clinically led teams 
to consider the most appropriate way of following up appointments 
based upon the needs of the individual.   Where telephone follow-ups 
were used, patients would be contacted by hospital staff and asked 
specific questions.   Depending on the responses, a face-to-face 
appointment might be made, or a referral made to their GP if 
considered appropriate 
 

• Urgent and emergency care – that the 49 adult ambulatory pathways 
had been considered and were now being prioritised around where the 
greatest impacts were likely to be seen 

 
It was confirmed that the schedule of ambulatory pathways provided 
was a nationally defined list of pathways and other than self harm, did 
not include any other mental health pathways.   Other work on mental 
health was taking place but this was part of a different workstream 
 

• Older people and long term conditions – that integrated care was 
being developed with the aim of providing a better experience for 
patients.   For those with long-term conditions, this involved using 
available data to predict those who would be at risk of developing 
health problems and might benefit from a more proactive diagnostic 
and management of disease approach.   Through early intervention 
and advice, the aim was to help patients to better manage their own 
health needs 

 
Members were advised that a range of sources were being used to 
gather local intelligence in order to help predict future illness.   This 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

included a number of different agencies, including ALMOS and 
mechanisms were in place for Councillors to alert the NHS and Social 
Care where there were concerns about constituents 
 
Members were further advised that structural changes in the working 
model were being piloted, as presented elsewhere on the agenda 
(minute 72 refers).   This consisted of integrated teams, co-ordinated 
by an individual at GP practice level with a wrap around of professional 
disciplines in order to treat patients holistically 
 
It was highlighted that integrated working had been achieved in the 
area of people with learning disabilities but that to achieve this cultural 
and organisational change citywide was a significant undertaking 
 

• Diabetes – the improved model of care was nearly complete and 
reductions in associated secondary care costs had been achieved 

 

• Home oxygen service –  aimed at improving patient care by enabling 
patients to more effectively manage their own health and reduce the 
number of hospital-based reviews needed, whilst increasing visits to 
homes where oxygen use could be monitored more effectively 

 
Members were informed that further advice would be available to 
clinicians and Adult Social Care staff around home oxygen, through an 
up-coming Oxygen Awareness Week and the importance of reiterating 
key messages to patients around safety and smoking cessation 
 
 

It was highlighted that while the Diabetes and Home Oxygen Service projects 
were relatively small, the projects provided good examples of where 
integrated teams were working with patients to develop models of care and 
assessment 
 
The Board welcomed the report, the work being undertaken and the progress 
reported.   However, it was noted that a significant aim of the Transformation 
Board was to make efficiency savings within the health and social care 
economy by the end of 2014.   This aspect was not addressed in the update 
provided 
 
RESOLVED -   

a) To note the report and the information presented at the meeting 
b) That a further report be presented to the April 2012 meeting clearly 
identifying the efficiencies identified and generated through the work of the 
Transformation Board and the supporting projects and where resources 
had been reinvested to improve the patient experience 

 
On behalf of the Scrutiny Board, the Chair sent best wishes to Phil Corrigan 
for a speedy recovery 
 
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

70 Health and Social Care Services Integration : An overview  
 

The Board considered the first of a series of four reports relating to the 
integration of health and social care services 
 
Members considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Services 
providing an overview of the principal integration initiatives currently underway 
between Leeds City Council (predominantly through Adult Social Services) 
and colleagues from the NHS family of organisations within the city.   
Appended to the report was a document from The King’s Fund relating to 
integrated care for patients and populations 
 
Attending for this item were: 
 

• Dennis Holmes (Deputy Director) – Leeds City Council, Adult Social 
Services  

• Matt Ward (Associate Director of Commissioning) – NHS Airedale, 
Bradford and Leeds 

 
Dennis Holmes outlined the background to proposed integration and stressed 
this was something which was being considered by Local Authorities and 
NHS Trusts throughout the country.   It was highlighted that work in this area 
was seeking to address two fundamental issues, namely: 
 

• Improving patient/service user experience – reducing duplication and 
providing seamless interactions with a number of different health and 
social care professionals 

• Making better use of public money – through more integrated working 
arrangements, making better and more efficient use of available 
resources 

 
It was emphasised that alongside the desire for better patient care and 
experiences, the current financial circumstances being faced by a number of 
public organisations had been a significant driver, leading to greater focus on 
public funding and how this could be made to work better for patients and 
reduce duplication 
 
Whilst there were different levels of integration, one of the key challenges for 
Elected Members would be around governance issues and how Councillors 
could exercise their democratic role in this area, with the importance of this 
being stressed as a key to success 
 
Over recent years, it was reported that, on a national level, significant 
challenges around funding streams and governance arrangements had led to 
a general stagnation around health and social care integration 
 
Members commented on the report, with the main issues discussed being: 
 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

• Terms and conditions of employment, given that the Council and NHS 
operate different pay and grading structures and how potential tensions 
this could cause would be addressed  

 
It was reported that one of the biggest impediments of structural 
integration was the different working structures in the two 
organisations, with the view that full integration was possibly 
undesirable, particularly as this stage, as the focus of the service would 
be on staffing issues.   Therefore, it was proposed to bring staff into the 
integrated structure while maintaining continued employment with their 
current employer.   Arrangements would be maintained until further 
consideration could be given to if and how, full integration could take 
place 
 
It was also reported that both organisations had strong Trade Union 
representation and that there was a commitment to maintaining 
working conditions 
 

• How the success of integration would be measured 
 

In response it was stated that success would be measured in different 
ways.   In terms of Adult Social Care, there was an acceptance that 
integration would lead to less time being spent in hospital by older 
people through the provision of a better health and social care system 
 
Concerns were raised that the measurements of success related to 
older patients but there were no details of how younger patients with 
long term health conditions would benefit from integration 
 
Officers responded that initially older people were the priority in terms 
of service integration, as they represented the biggest group of service 
users accessing these services 
 

• The need to ensure that the correct levels of support were in place 
when tackling early discharges to avoid readmission 

 
It was outlined that further work would be required to ensure that health 
professionals considering early discharge would have knowledge of the 
services which would be provided to the patient in terms of aftercare to 
better inform that decision 

 

• The approach towards joint commissioning, in addition to integrated 
service delivery 

 
It was outlined that there was a greater commitment to viewing public 
money as a single source, rather than in terms of Council funding and 
NHS Leeds funding.   As such, regular meetings between the financial 
directors of both organisations were taking place 

 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

• The relationship between local arrangements and national policy, 
including the Health Bill which was currently progressing through 
Parliament 

 
It was reported that the local proposals around service integration were 
considered to be appropriate from both a patient care and experience 
perspective and from an organisational perspective, regardless of the 
proposals contained in the current Health and Social Care Bill 

 
 
RESOLVED -  a) To note the report and associated information provided at 
the meeting 
 b) To welcome the ambition and commitment demonstrated at the 
meeting while recognising the significance of the likely challenges ahead 
 c) To maintain an overview of progress of the developments in general 
and any specific matters that may arise in the future 
 
 

71 Health and Social Care Service Integration - Harry Booth House  
 

The Board considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Services 
providing an overview of the development of the city’s first intermediate care 
unit which would provide residential and nursing care beds jointly 
commissioned and delivered in partnership with Leeds Community Health 
Care Trust 
 
Attending for this item were: 
 

• Dennis Holmes (Deputy Director) – Leeds City Council Adult Social 
Services 

• Matt Ward (Associate Director of Commissioning) – NHS Airedale, 
Bradford and Leeds 

• Paul Morrin – (Director of Integration) – Leeds Community Healthcare 
NHS Trust 

 
Dennis Holmes presented the report and informed Members that the building 
was currently functioning as a 40 bed residential home.   Greater potential for 
the building had been identified which had led to discussions and agreement 
with the former NHS Leeds to establish an intermediate care unit providing 
residential and nursing care in what was an unusual and innovative 
partnership 
 
The provision would comprise, 30 specialist nursing care beds and 10 
residential intermediate care beds and it was hoped that this integrated 
service would have a positive impact on the length of time people needed to 
stay in hospital and at the same time preparing individuals to return to their 
own home and maintain their independence for as long as possible 
 
It was planned that the new facility would be operational from 1 October 2012 
 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

In responding to queries from the Board, the following information was 
provided: 
 

• Harry Booth House had been selected for this project as the building 
was capable of being appropriately adapted.   If this provision proved 
successful similar schemes elsewhere would be considered.   Currently 
it was thought 3 hubs could eventually be established across the city, 
but this would depend on the success of the current project and 
identifying suitable accommodation in the correct location 

• The ethos of the facility would be to help rehabilitate people through an 
integrated team of Local Authority and NHS staff 

• In terms of safeguards, the Deputy Director of Adult Social Care would 
act as a commissioner with all the processes attached to any private 
contract and that the Care Quality Commission, as a regulatory body, 
would also have a role in inspecting the premises and services 
provided 

• The facility would provide care for older patients and that in terms of 
provision for younger patients needing intermediate care, few models 
existed, with younger people’s care needs generally being managed in 
their own home 

• In terms of lead delivery arrangements, this would be through NHS 
staff but with an integrated team 

• As a new facility no staff would be inherited, therefore a staff 
specification had been drawn up which would be tested through the 
recruitment and selection process to ensure those appointed met the 
requirements of this innovative care setting 

• An increase in the number of people needing care across the City was 
likely to lead to an increase in the skilled workforce capable of 
delivering that care.   However, in the future those carers were likely to 
be employed across a broader range of organisations than at present 

• In light of delays to the development of a new facility in Otley, 
Members’ concerns about a reliance on the role of the private sector in 
care provision were noted 

 
RESOLVED – a) To note the information provided in the report and 
discussed at the meeting 

b) To maintain an overview of progress and be advised of  
any significant delay in delivering the project 

c) That, following a suitable period of operation, a further  
report be provided that reviews progress and achievements 
 
 

72 Health and Social Service Care Integration - Proposal to develop 
integrated Health and Social Care teams  

 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Services 
providing details of the work being undertaken in Leeds to improve the 
effectiveness of health and social care services, including the approach of 
using demonstrator sites to test out and develop aspects of the model of 
service 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

 
Attending for this item were: 
 

• John Lennon – (Chief Officer) – (Access and Inclusion ) - LCC Adult 
Social Care 

• Matt Ward (Associate Director of Commissioning) – NHS Airedale, 
Bradford and Leeds 

• Paul Morrin – (Director of Integration) – Leeds Community Healthcare 
NHS Trust 

• Karl Milner – (Director of Communications and External Affairs) – 
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 

• Al Sheward – (Divisional Nurse Manager) (Medicine) – Leeds Teaching 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

 
John Lennon presented the report and outlined the proposals to develop 
integrated health and social care teams around current GP practices across 
the three Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in Leeds.    Whilst the 
proposals were challenging it was felt that the move towards creating an 
integrated service would provide a better patient experience for service users 
and help facilitate a more proactive approach to the diagnosis and 
management of disease and long-term conditions 
 
The importance of early intervention in managing and treating illness (risk 
stratification) was reiterated, as was self management of illness 
 
Three demonstrator sites had been selected, one in each of the CCG areas, 
with different practice populations in a mix of inner and outer city areas.   
These would be based in the local communities and as close to the GP 
practices as possible, although there were some challenges in finding suitably 
sized premises in the right locations 
 
It was outlined that there was need to progress work in this area at pace and 
on a large scale.   It was recognised that the proposed timescales were 
challenging 
 
Karl Milner stated that Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust fully supported 
the proposals which sat with the Trust’s own strategy 
 
The Board discussed the timescales for receipt of the first report on the work 
of the demonstrator sites 
 
RESOLVED -  a) To note the information provided in the report and 
discussed at the meeting 
  b) That the Director of Adult Social Services be asked to 
submit a progress report to the Board early in the new municipal year (i.e. 
June/July 2012) 
 
(Following consideration of this matter, Councillor Armitage withdrew from the 
meeting) 
 

Page 9



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

 
73 Health and Social Service Care Integration: Supporting working age 

adults with enduring mental health issues  
 

 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Social Services providing an 
update on progress since the Scrutiny Inquiry undertaken in 2009/2010 by the 
previous Board, regarding developing a more integrated service for those 
people with severe and enduring mental health problems who require support 
from both health and social care 
 
Attending for this item were: 
 

• John Lennon (Chief Officer, Access and Inclusion) – LCC Adult Social 
Care 

• Lynn Parkinson (Associate Director) – Adult Service – Leeds and York 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

• Richard Clayton – (Programme Manager) – Leeds and York 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

• Richard Wall – (Head of Commissioning) ( Mental Health and Learning 
Disabilities) – NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds 

• Pip Goff – (Manager) – Volition 
 
John Lennon presented the report and stated that Executive Board had 
agreed to delegate the specialist mental health social work function to Leeds 
and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (LYPFT) and that Council staff 
from Adult Social Care would be seconded to LYPFT.   Management 
structures would also be integrated to ensure there were clear lines of 
accountability 
 
The Board was informed that the first phase would commence on 1st April 
2012 and that the strength of the phased model being adopted would be in 
bringing together people who were currently working in this area, with the next 
phase being to look at areas of duplication 
 
It was also stated that this represented work in progress, with further work 
needed in a number of critical areas 
 
The Chair invited Members’ questions and comments and in brief summary 
the key areas of discussion included: 
 

• the proposed timescales 

• the importance of a streamlined system for service users and that the 
proposals were welcomed 

• the forthcoming welfare changes and the need for people to be 
supported in managing these changes 

• that the integrated service could provide the opportunity for innovative 
work to take place 

Page 10



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

• any possible conflict of interests for Social Workers embedded in a 
health team which was managed by a health team, particularly around 
the Approved Mental Health Professional (AMHP) role 

• assurances around the interests of patients would always come first; 
this reassurance was given 

 
RESOLVED -  a) To note the information provided in the report and 
discussed at the meeting 

b) To note the decision taken by Executive Board in December  
2011 to integrate specialist mental health social care services with specialist 
secondary mental health services with LYPFT acting as host organisation for 
the partnership 

c) To note the development of a partnership agreement under  
Section 75 of the National Health Services Act 2006 detailing the governance 
of the partnership between ASC and LYPFT 

d) To note the secondment of social care staff to LYPFT from  
1st April 2012 

e) To note that further detailed work will be undertaken to  
ensure the ongoing balance of social care management in the partnership 

f) To note the review of roles and functions of social work  
within the partnership 

g) To note how the potential risks around Governance, Finance,  
HR and Performance will be managed in the phased approach to 
implementation as set out in the submitted report 

h) To maintain a general overview of progress and any specific  
matters that may arise in the future 
 
 

74 Decommissioning the Leeds Crisis Centre  
 

Further to minute 32 of the Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care 
meeting held on 28th October 2011 where the Board agreed to receive a 
monitoring report on the closure of the Crisis Centre in 2011, Members 
considered the report 
 
Attending for this item were: 
 

• John Lennon (Chief Officer Access and Inclusion) – LCC Adult Social 
Care 

• RIchard Wall – (Head of Commissioning) (Mental Health and Learning 
Disabilities ) – NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds 

• Pip Goff – (Manager) - Volition 
 
John Lennon presented the report which outlined the impacts of 
decommissioning the Leeds Crisis Centre in terms of: 
 

• The impact on patients 

• The impact on staff 

• The impact on external partners 
 

Page 11



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

Pip Goff, Manager of Volition, reported that closing the Crisis Centre had 
meant there was a gap in provision in terms of  signposting people, however 
there had not been any feedback suggesting a recognisable gap in service 
provision.   It was reported that one organisation, Women’s Counselling and 
Therapy Service, had indicated it had received significantly more referrals and 
that more assessments had been done, but that this could not be attributed 
specifically to the closure of the Crisis Centre.   John Lennon, stated that 
having been in contact with colleagues in the NHS, no impact of the closure of 
the Crisis Centre could be discerned and that additional funding had been 
provided by the NHS to cater for possible increased demand 
 
Richard Wall confirmed that additional capacity had been funded by NHS 
Leeds and commented that this had been swiftly taken up by service users 
 
The Chair queried the increase in the request for women’s mental health 
services at a time when the advice from LYPFT was that significant increases 
were being seen in the numbers of working age men with mental health 
problems 
 
The Board considered the report and whether further scrutiny activity should 
be considered 
 
RESOLVED -  That a further monitoring report be submitted for the Board’s 
consideration in six months time 
 
 

75 LATE ITEM - Work Schedule - February 2012  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report together 
with a copy of the Board’s current work programme.   Minutes arising from the 
Executive Board meeting held on 10th February 2012 were appended to the 
report, along with the Council’s Forward Plan (1st February – 31st May 2012) 
which detailed items relating to the Board’s portfolio and terms of reference.   
A copy of the minutes from the Health Service Developments Working Group 
of 7 November 2011 were also appended to the report 
 
A summary of the main areas of inquiry was also detailed in the report 
 
Proposals for working group meetings to consider issues around health 
inequalities were discussed.   These were outlined as: 
 

• 9 March 2012 – Minimise the impact of poverty on health of under 5s 
(scheduled to meet at Hunslet Club) 

• 16 March 2012 – Action on housing, transport and environment to 
improve health and wellbeing (scheduled to meet at New Wortley 
Community Centre) 

 
It was outlined that further details would be provided to all Board Members as 
soon as possible 
 

Page 12



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st March, 2012 

 

A query was raised about the current position in respect of the national review 
of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Services, with the Chair stating that a further 
court hearing would be held on 19th or 20th March, following an appeal by the 
Safe and Sustainable Review Team with the possible options flowing from 
that being outlined, dependent upon the outcome of the legal case 
 
RESOLVED -  a) To note the summary of the main areas of inquiry 
provided in the report, along with the appended information 

b) To agree the work schedule as presented in Appendix 1 
 
 

76 Date and Time of the Next Meeting  
 

Wednesday 21st March 2012 at 10.00am (pre-meeting for all Board Members 
at 9.30am) 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance)  

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 21 March 2012 

Subject: 2011/12 Quarter 3 Performance Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: N/A 

Summary of main issues 

1. This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter 3 performance data relevant 
to the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board including and update on the Health 
and Wellbeing partnership priorities.  Members will note that NHS Airedale, Bradford 
and Leeds have provided a separate performance report including their key 
performance information which is on the same agenda.  A number of key performance 
issues have been highlighted for Members attention. 

Recommendations 

2. Members are recommended to: 

• Note the quarter three performance information and the issue raised of the 
residential care homes and consider if they are satisfied with the work underway to 
address this.  

• Note the positive progress in relation to the Adult Social Care budget. 

• Identify any further reports or information that they may require to fulfil their scrutiny 
role in relation to the delivery of the outcomes for Adult Social Care and Health.   

 

 
Report author:   
Heather Pinches 

Tel:  43347 

Agenda Item 7

Page 15



 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter three performance data for 2011-12 
which provides an update on progress in delivering the relevant priorities in the Council 
Business Plan 2011-15 and City Priority Plan 2011-15.   

2 Background information 

2.1 A set of delivery plans for the Council and the city were adopted by Council in July 2011 and 
this report provides an update setting out the progress in delivery of these plans.  The plans 
and performance management arrangements that form the basis of this report have been 
developed alongside the revised partnership boards for the city in a whole system approach.  
Members will note that the delivery of City Priority Plan priorities are shared with partners 
across the city while the Council Business Plan sets out the Council’s contribution to these 
shared priorities.  As such this report provides both an overview of the performance relating to 
the City Priority Plan as well as setting out progress in delivering the council priorities including 
the council’s contribution to the city priorities.  Similarly the related report on the agenda from 
NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds includes their own priorities as well as their contribution to 
these partnership plans. 

2.2 The performance management arrangements include a number of reports including: 

•••• Performance Reports – these are produced quarterly for the each of the City Priority 
Plan priorities and for the 5 Cross-Council Priorities in the Council Business Plan.  
They are a one page summary of progress in delivering the priority including a RAG 
rating of overall progress.  Where possible the headline indictor is shown in a graph 
to clearly indicate progress and the reports include a look forward to the actions due 
over the next 3-6 months.  We have adopted the principles of outcomes based 
accountability in these reports.   

•••• Directorate Priorities and Indicators – a directorate scorecard has been produced 
for each directorate which sets out the high level progress against each of the 
directorates priorities and indicators in the Council Business Plan.  These are all 
available on the intranet and published on the Council’s website.  It also includes 
the directorates contribution to the cross council priorities and indicators.  For 
Scrutiny purposes these scorecards have been divided up so that each Scrutiny 
Board receives an update on the priorities within the remit of their Board 
recognising that these do not necessarily align directly to the Council’s directorates 
in all case.  Members will note that this does mean that some priorities will go to two 
or more Scrutiny Boards and Boards are asked to consider working jointly on any 
follow up inquiries or nominate a lead Board. 

•••• Self Assessment – each directorate has the opportunity in this section to raise any 
other performance issues that might not be directly represented within the 
directorate priorities and indicators. 

 

2.3 These reports are designed to provide a high level overview of performance issues related to 
the City Priority and Council Business Plans only.  Members will need to use this information 
and the discussion in their boards to identify what further reports and more detailed information 
they might require in order to fulfil their scrutiny role.  Therefore, these reports are designed to 
be a starting point for the work of the board.   

2.4 This report includes three appendices: 

•••• Appendix 1a – Performance Reports for the 4 City Priority Plan Priorities for the 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 

•••• Appendix 1b – Adult Social Care Directorate Priorities and Indicators 

 

 

 

Page 16



 
3 Main issues 

Performance Overview 

City Priority Plan (CPP) 

3.1 There are 4 priorities in the Health and Wellbeing City Priority Plan and 1 is assessed as red, 2 
are amber and 1 is green.  This is a deterioration in overall progress ratings as the performance 
report card on choice and control is now assessed as amber compared to the green rating 
reported at Quarter 2.  Those that are assessed as red or amber are: 

•••• Make sure that people who are the poorest improve their health the fastest (red) 

•••• Help protect people from the harmful effects of tobacco (amber) 

•••• Give people choice and control over their health and social care services (amber) 
 

3.2 The change in the overall progress rating of the choice and control performance report is 
largely due to the roll out of personal budgets – see para 3.4 below. 

 

Council Business Plan  
Directorate Priorities and Indicators 

3.3 There are 12 Directorate Priorities which support the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing 
priorities and these are drawn from the Adult Social Care directorate.  Of these none are red, 4 
are amber and 8 are green.  These are supported by 7 performance indicators that can be 
reported at quarter three of these 1 is red, 3 are amber, 3 are green.  The red indicator is: 

•••• Increase percentage of service users and carers with control over their own care budget 
 

3.4 In terms of this indicator 5,303 people have personal budgets, this equates to 33% of those 
included in the NI130 cohort. Of these 1,759 are using cash payments to purchase services 
themselves, this equates to 11% of service users. Benchmarking data from 2010/11 shows 
Leeds is inline with the average. There are recognised issues with NI130, and alternatives are 
being proposed regionally and nationally. A regional approach used by Putting People First 
puts the actual proportion of people using personal budgets at 41% of those people receiving 
services which could be delivered through personal budgets. 

3.5 Together with the Stamford Forum Leeds are developing an approach to extend the use of 
personal budgets through the Combining Personalisation with Community Engagement 
(CPCE) project. CPCE is aligned to the DH’s Building Community Capacity programme of work 
which exemplifies best practice in developing community based social capital to enhance 
existing resources. The CPCE project will develop three Neighbourhood Networks to become 
skilled brokers of self directed support, commissioning services from and for the local 
community to achieve earlier, less costly interventions.  

3.6 Members will also note that substantial progress has been made over the last quarter in terms 
of reducing the in year budget overspend – this is now rated amber and further progress is 
anticipated during Q4.  The directorate are expecting a year end position close to budget 
balance. 

Key performance issues for Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board 

i) Residential Care Homes 

3.7 The Care Quality Commission has recently identified that improvements are needed in 2 
residential care homes run by the council because government standards were not being met.  
The issues identified included staff training, knowledge and understanding of the safeguarding 
procedures and gaps in care records.  Action has been taken to resolve all the identified 
issues.   

 

 

 

Page 17



 
4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement 

4.1.1 This report provides an update on performance information and therefore it is not a decision 
requirement public consultation, however, all performance information is provided to the 
public via the council’s website. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This report provides an information update only and therefore it is not a decision which 
required due regard to be given to equality and diversity.  However, due regard for equality 
was given during the development of the City Priority Plan and Council Business Plan.   

4.2.2 Members will note that these reports provide a high level update only in terms of equalities 
issues relating to the priorities.  However, member may wish to consider if they would like 
more detailed information or analysis in this area. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city priorities in line 
with the council’s performance management framework.   

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 There are no specific resource implications from this report; however, it includes a high level 
update of the Council’s financial position as this is a cross council priority within the Business 

Plan.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 All performance information is publically available and will be published on the council and 
Leeds Initiative websites.   

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Performance Reports include an update of the key risks and challenges for each of the 
priorities.  This is supported by a comprehensive risk management process in the Council to 
monitor and manage key risks.  CLT continue to review the corporate risk register alongside 
the performance information which ensures that the Council’s most significant risks are 
effectively identified and managed. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 This report provides an overall summary of the current performance issues relating to the 
priorities from our strategic plans which are relevant to the Board.  These reports cannot 
cover everything but aim to provide an overview which the Board can use to inform their 
future work programme. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are recommended to: 

• Note the quarter three performance information and the issue raised of the residential 
care homes and consider if they are satisfied with the work underway to address this.  

• Note the positive progress in relation to the ASC budget. 

• Identify any further reports or information that they may require to fulfil their scrutiny role 
in relation to the delivery of the outcomes for Adult Social Care and Health.   

 

Page 18



 
7 Background documents1  

• City Priority Plan 2011-15 
• Council Business Plan 2011-15 
• Council and City Performance Management Framework (Draft) 

                                            
1
  The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

e
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

ie
r 

liv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

H
e

lp
 p

ro
te

c
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 h
a

rm
fu

l 
e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

to
b

a
c
c
o

.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty

S
m

o
k
in

g
 i

s
 t

h
e
 s

in
g
le

 b
ig

g
e
s
t 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

b
le

 c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
ill

 h
e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 b

e
in

g
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 f

a
c
to

rs
 t

o
 

lif
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 i
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 c

a
n

c
e

r,
 c

o
ro

n
a
ry

 h
e

a
rt

 d
is

e
a
s
e

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
p
ir
a
to

ry
 d

is
e
a
s
e
. 
 

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 (

a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 b

y
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 r
e
g
is

te
rs

) 
h
a

s
 d

e
c
lin

e
d

 s
te

a
d
ily

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
6
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

ta
ti
c
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 2
2
 a

n
d
 2

3
%

. 
 

 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 M

S
O

A
 d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n
 q

u
in

ti
le

s
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
n
s
ta

n
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l

a
s
t 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 r

is
e
s
 a

n
d

 f
a

lls
 b

u
t 

th
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 o
n

ly
 b

y
 a

ro
u
n

d
 1

%
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

le
a

r 
tr

e
n

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e

 e
it
h
e

r 
u
p

w
a

rd
s
 o

n
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

s
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
e

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ic
tu

re
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 s
o
m

e
 

a
re

a
s
 a

re
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 r
a
te

s
. 

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 l

e
a
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 q

u
in

ti
le

 b
e
in

g
 a

ro
u
n

d
 1

3
%

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
a

le
n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

m
o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 q

u
in

ti
le

 b
e
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

tw
ic

e
 t
h
a
t,

 a
ro

u
n

d
 3

3
%

. 
T

h
e
 o

th
e

r 
th

re
e
 q

u
in

ti
le

s
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 e
v
e
n
ly

 s
p
a
c
e
d

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
e
s
e
 t

w
o
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f:

  

 
A

d
u
lt
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 1

8
.5

%
 o

r 
le

s
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
5
  

 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 a

m
o
n
g

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 1
2
%

 o
r 

le
s
s
 

b
y
 2

0
1
5
 

 
S

m
o

k
in

g
 d

u
ri
n

g
 p

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
 1

1
%

 o
r 

le
s
s
 b

y
 2

0
1

5
 

 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 r

a
te

s
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 

s
ta

ti
c
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
2
 y

e
a
rs

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

is
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

 c
o
n
s
ta

n
t 
p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 

a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

 a
re

 r
e

p
o
rt

in
g

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

s
m

o
k
in

g
  

f

e
l

 
T

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 b

y
 1

%
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

o
u
ld

 
m

e
a

n
 6

2
3

0
 f
e
w

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 w

h
o

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 w
o
u

ld
 

b
e
.

F
ig

u
re

s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 (
b

o
th

 4
 

w
e
e
k
 a

n
d
 5

2
 w

e
e
k
 q

u
it
 r

a
te

s
) 

in
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
le

v
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 c

o
u
ld

 p
o

te
n
ti
a
lly

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 4

0
%

 o
f 
th

e
 6

2
3
0
 f

e
w

e
r 

s
m

o
k
e
rs

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 
re

d
u
c
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 b

y
 1

%
 o

v
e
r 

a
 3

 y
e
a
r 

p
e

ri
o
d
. 
T

h
is

 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
o
th

e
r 

to
b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
f 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

. 
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 

H
W

1

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r:

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

d
u

lt
s
 o

v
e

r 
1

8
 t

h
a

t 
s
m

o
k
e

.

C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 C

A
R

D

Page 21



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

 

A
 n

e
w

 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
. 
In

te
g
ra

te
d
 i
n

to
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

to
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 
a

 f
u

ll 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 T

o
b
a
c
c
o
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
A

lli
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

 
W

o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
3

rd
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 ‘
L
e
e
d
s
 L

e
t’
s
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
’ 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
p
e

o
p
le

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 u

n
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

. 
 

 
T

o
 d

a
te

, 
1

7
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 u
p

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 L

e
t’
s
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

2
6

 b
e
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
. 
T

h
is

 f
ir
s
t 

p
h

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

im
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

 
A

 f
u
ll 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

p
e
n
 t
o
 a

ll 
fr

o
n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 
w

h
o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
n

 a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 m

o
ti
v
a
te

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

to
p
p
in

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g
. 
S

o
 f
a

r 
2
 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
2
6
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 o
u
t 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.

 

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

A
 r

e
g
io

n
a
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
t 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 
in

to
 c

lin
ic

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 a

re
a

s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 f
o
o
t 
fa

ll 
fo

r 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 t
ra

in
e
d
 

p
ro

m
o

te
rs

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 b

o
o
k
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n

to
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
lin

ic
s
. 
T

h
is

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

lin
ic

s
, 
it
 a

ls
o
 g

a
v
e
 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 r

e
a
c
h
 s

m
o
k
e
rs

 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

W
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 h
a

v
e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b
e
r 

o
f 
m

id
w

iv
e
s
 t
o

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 C

O
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 r
o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 f
o

r 
a
ll 

th
e
ir
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 

w
o
m

e
n
. 
 

T
h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

r 
o

n
 t
o
 t
h
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 
fo

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
N

ic
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
p

re
g

n
a

n
t 
w

o
m

e
n

 s
h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 c
a
rb

o
n

 
m

o
n
o
x
id

e
 t
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 b
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 a

t 
e
a
c
h
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 i
n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n
. 
D

u
e
 t
o
 a

 
la

c
k
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 w

e
 a

re
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

ll 
m

id
w

iv
e
s
 w

it
h
 m

o
n
it
o
rs

 t
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 
c
a
rb

o
n
 m

o
n
o
x
id

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
W

o
rk

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 d

ra
ft

in
g
 a

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

im
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
. 
W

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

 a
n
d

 a
s
c
e

rt
a

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

n
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.

 

 
T

h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 L

e
t’
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 
w

it
h
 a

n
 e

v
e
n
t 
fo

r 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
n
d
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 m
e
d
ia

 c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

p
la

in
 p

a
c
k
a
g
in

g
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
n
e
x
t 

s
p

ri
n

g
; 
a

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 i
d
e
a
lly

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 
c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

, 
G

P
s
 e

tc
. 
to

 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
im

p
a
c
t.

 A
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
lo

c
a
lly

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 

c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 p
ri

m
a
ry

 c
a

re
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 u
p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
S

L
A

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e

s
 w

it
h
in

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 

c
e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 o

n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 f
ro

m
 G

P
 r

e
g
is

te
rs

 t
o
 m

o
n

it
o
r 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 

in
 t
h

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
o

p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 v

ia
 m

id
w

if
e
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

o
n

it
o
r 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 a

m
o
n
g
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

e
n
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 o
f 
d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 f
o
rm

 
th

e
s
e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 t
o
 f
u
lly

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e

 d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 b

re
a

k
d
o
w

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

s
 

a
 w

h
o
le

 a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
p
re

g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

e
n
  

 
D

a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 s

to
p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 a

t 
4

 a
n

d
 5

2
 w

e
e
k
s
. 
T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 c
a

n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 d
e

ta
il 

in
s
ig

h
t 
re

.t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p
h

ic
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 

 
D

a
ta

 r
e
g

a
rd

in
g

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
‘E

v
e
ry

 C
h
ild

 M
a
tt
e
rs

’ 
s
u
rv

e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 y
rs

 
5
,6

,7
,9

,a
n
d
 1

1
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

g
a
in

 t
h
is

 h
a

s
 l
im

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 d
e

ta
ils

.

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

S
in

c
e

 2
0
0

9
 t
h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 n

o
 c

it
y
w

id
e

 s
te

e
ri
n
g

 g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 d
ri
v
e

 t
h

e
 t

o
b
a
c
c
o
 a

g
e
n
d
a

 f
o
rw

a
rd

, 
th

e
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 w

it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 l
e
a
d
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
p

e
n

d
a
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
k
e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

.

T
h
e
 d

is
b
a
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
o
ff

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 H

u
m

b
e
r 

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h
e

 S
O

S
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
A

 R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

p
o
s
t 
h
a

s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
n

c
il

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 p

o
s
e

 a
 r

is
k
 t
o
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

lt
h

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
s
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 e

ff
e
c
t 
 

Page 22



C
IT

Y
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
P

L
A

N
R

E
P

O
R

T
C

A
R

D
H

W
2

2
0
1
1
/1

2
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

3

M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

a
d

u
lt
s
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s

  
  

  
  

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 f

u
ll,

 a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

e
s
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 s

a
fe

ly
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
:

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
a
g
e
, 
w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
to

 b
e
 c

a
re

d
 f
o
r 

a
t 
h
o

m
e
 o

r 
c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 a

v
o
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

u
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 h
o
s
p

it
a

l 
a

tt
e

n
d
a
n

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
o

r 
n

u
rs

in
g

 c
a

re
 

h
o
m

e
s
.

G
R

E
E

N

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
n
n

u
a

l 
fl
u

c
tu

a
ti
o
n

s
, 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

d
o

w
n
w

a
rd

 
tr

e
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 t
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
s
ix

 y
e
a
rs

. 
In

 2
0
0
5
/6

 9
8
5
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
h
is

 h
a
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 9

1
0
. 

T
h
is

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 r

a
te

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e

ra
g
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
fi
g
u

re
s
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1

0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
d
 i
n
to

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 o

f 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 b

u
t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
c
lin

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
tw

o
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u
rs

in
g

 c
a

re
 h

a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
re

m
a

in
e

d
 v

e
ry

 s
ta

ti
c
 

s
in

c
e

 2
0
0

8
/9

, 
a

s
 h

a
s
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

e
e
k
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u
rs

in
g

 c
a

re
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

lly
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 f
ro

m
 6

5
6

 d
a

y
s
 (

n
u

rs
in

g
) 

a
n

d
 6

7
4

 d
a

y
s
 (

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l)
 i
n

 0
8

/0
9

 
to

 5
3
8

 (
n
u
rs

in
g
) 

a
n
d
 5

5
2
 (

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l)
 i
n
 1

0
/1

1
. 
T

h
is

 s
u
g

g
e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 
a

re
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e
 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

e
r 

p
e
ri
o

d
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
in

g
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 
la

te
r 

s
ta

g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 l
iv

e
s
. 

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 h

a
s
 f

a
c
e
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 u

p
o
n
 t
h
e

 L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 t
h
e

ir
 c

a
re

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

is
in

g
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p
h

ic
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
; 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u
rs

in
g

 c
a

re
 

e
x
h

a
u
s
ti
n

g
 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

a
rd

 p
la

c
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
is

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 i
n
to

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 d

a
ta

 s
e
t 
fo

r 
p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 h
o
s
p

it
a

l 
is

 s
ti
ll 

o
n

g
o

in
g

.

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

  
  

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 f
ro

m
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 s
o
 f
a
r 

a
re

: 

H
e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 l
o
c
a
lly

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 p

e
o

p
le

s
 h

o
m

e
s
 m

e
a

n
s
 p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
. 
P

e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 c

a
re

. 
  

Hea
dlin

e In
dic

ato
r:R

edu
ce 

the
 rat

e o
f em

erg
enc

y a
dm

issi
ons

 to 
hos

pita
l. 

Red
uce

 the
 nu

mb
er o

f ol
der

 pe
opl

e a
dm

itte
d p

erm
ane

ntly
 to 

res
ide

ntia
l & 

nur
sing

 ca
re h

om
es 

car
e h

om
es.

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
d

m
is

is
o

n
s 

o
f 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
6
5
 t

o
 P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
R

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

&
 

N
u

rs
in

g
 C

a
re

 p
e

r 
1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

n
 L

e
e

d
s

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

Q
1

2
0
1
1
/1

2

Q
2

2
0
1
1
/1

2

Q
3

(S
o

u
rc

e
:)

 E
S

C
R

 

Page 23



W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

t 
H

o
lt
 P

a
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

. 
B

u
ild

in
g
 w

o
rk

 s
ta

rt
s
 f
ro

m
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 9
th
.

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 

L
e

e
d
s
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 
a

n
d

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
: 
 

 
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

b
e
r 

w
id

e
 1

1
1
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 
W

e
s
t 

Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 w

id
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 t

re
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
. 

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
is

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 

 P
u
b
lic

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 
G

P
 
o
u

t 
o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
s
ta

rt
e
d
 
o
n

 
th

e
 
4

th
 
D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
a

n
d

 
w

ill
 

c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

 o
n

 4
th
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
 

 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

e
a
m

 
p
ro

je
c
t,
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i

n
 K

ip
p
a
x
/G

a
rf

o
rt

h
, 

P
u
d
s
e
y
 a

n
d
 

M
e
a
n
w

o
o
d

. 
F

o
rm

a
l 

la
u
n

c
h
e
s
 
a
re

 
b
e
in

g
 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 
w

it
h
 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 
s
ta

ff
. 

L
o
c
a
l 

p
ro

je
c
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 
h
a

v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 
to

 
d
ri
v
e
 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 
w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 

th
re

e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
. 
 

 
T

h
e

 r
o

llo
u

t 
o

f 
ri
s
k
 s

tr
a

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 i

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
s
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
, 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

e
a

m
s
. 

T
h
is

 
w

ill
 

a
llo

w
 

th
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 m

o
s
t 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 w
h
o

 c
o

u
ld

 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 e
a

rl
y
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
is

 a
n
d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t.
  

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t

R
e
a
b

le
m

e
n
t 
-

D
a

v
id

’s
 s

to
ry

: 
“W

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

S
k
IL

s
 t
e
a
m

 I
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 t
o
 g

o
 i
n
to

 a
 h

o
m

e
”.

 

A
ft

e
r 

a
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

 s
p
e
ll 

in
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
D

a
v
id

 w
a
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
th

re
e
 

m
o
n
th

s
’ 
b
e
d
 r

e
s
t.

 H
e
 w

a
s
n
’t
 m

o
b
ile

 e
n
o
u
g
h
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 g

e
t 

in
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

b
e
d
, 

g
o

 
to

 t
h
e
 t
o
ile

t,
 o

r 
s
h
o
w

e
r 

h
im

s
e
lf
. 
M

a
rk

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 S
k
ill

s
 f
o
r 

In
d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
L

iv
in

g
 (

S
k
IL

s
) 

te
a

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t

o
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

D
a

v
id

 w
it
h

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

h
y
s
io

th
e

ra
p
y
 a

t 
th

e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l,
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
, 
s
u
c
h

 a
s
 g

ra
b
 r

a
ils

, 
p
e
rc

h
in

g
 s

to
o

l,
 s

o
m

e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 ‘
te

le
c
a
re

’ 
–

 e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
d
ic

a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

m
p
ts

 
a
n
d
 s

m
o
k
e
/g

a
s
 d

e
te

c
to

rs
. 
T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 D

a
v
id

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 h

is
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
. 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

A
 j

o
in

t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 a

lig
n
 r

e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i

n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 c

a
re

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 i

s
 o

v
e

rs
e
e

n
 b

y
 a

 s
te

e
ri
n

g
 g

ro
u
p
. 

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 i

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

x
a
m

in
in

g
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
fu

lly
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 f

u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a
n
d
 
N

H
S

 
L
e
e
d
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
g
re

e
d
 
to

 
jo

in
tl
y
 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 
a
 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 
a
t 

H
a
rr

y
 
B

o
o
th

 
h
o
u
s
e
 
a
s
 
p
a
rt

 
o
f 

a
 
w

id
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 
In

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 
C

a
re

 
(C

IC
) 

b
e
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
fr

o
m

 J
u
n
e

 2
0
1
2
. 

 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e

 a
n
d
 H

u
m

b
e
r 

w
id

e
 1

1
1

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

, 
In

v
it
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

T
e
n
d
e
r 

to
 b

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
 

O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 G

P
 o

u
t 

o
f 
H

o
u

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 
In

te
g
ra

te
d
 
H

e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

e
a
m

s
 
p
ro

je
c
t,

 
w

ill
 
p
re

p
a
re

 
fo

r 
th

e
 
c
o
-

lo
c
a

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
. 
 

T
h

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 s

tr
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

jo
in

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri

n
g

 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
is

 
u
n

d
e
rw

a
y
 

w
h

ic
h

 
w

ill
 

u
n
d
e
rp

in
 t

h
e
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
T

e
a

m
s
. 

T
h

e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

  
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
, 

to
 a

s
s
is

te
d

 
te

c
h

n
o
lo

g
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

W
o
rk

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
n

te
lli

g
e
n

c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 s
h
a

ri
n
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d

 h
e
a

lt
h

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 
w

it
h
in

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
in

a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n

t 
c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 

 
F

a
ilu

re
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

t 
b
o
th

 l
o
c
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

it
y
-w

id
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e

v
e

l 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 L

e
e
d

s
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
.

 
A

d
u
lt
s
’ 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
a
ils

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 
it
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

 
In

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
o
r 

p
o
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 a

 d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
A

S
C

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

Page 24



C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 C

A
R

D
H

W
3

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

:
A

ll 
a

d
u

lt
s
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
P

ri
o

ri
ty

:
G

iv
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 
to

 l
iv

e
 f

u
ll,

 a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

liv
e

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s
 t

h
is

 a
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
a
g
e
, 
w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
to

 b
e
 c

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

a
t 
h
o
m

e
 o

r 
c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

h
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
e

li
n

e
: 

L
e
e
d
s
 l
ik

e
 m

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

c
it
ie

s
 h

a
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
  

in
c
lu

d
e
 b

o
th

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

fo
r 

7
0
%

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 c
o
s
ts

, 
a
n
d
 a

lm
o
s
t 
th

re
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 

g
a
p
 i
n
 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
o
s
e
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
d

e
p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 L
e
e

d
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll.
 

T
h
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
tr

e
n
d
 o

f 
a
 s

lig
h
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 f
e
e
lin

g
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d

it
io

n
. 

‘T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

’ 
L
A

C
 (

D
H

) 
(2

0
0
8
) 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p
o

lic
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

p
e
o
p

le
 t
o
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
 t
h
e
ir
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 o

r 
c
a
re

 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
s
t 
s
u

it
s
 t
h
e
ir
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
. 

A
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 1

7
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 h
a
d
 h

a
d
 t
h
is

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 
B

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t
h
is

 h
a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 2

9
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 (
4
,5

5
0

 p
e
o
p
le

) 
a
n
d
 

b
y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 3

3
%

 (
5
,3

0
3

 p
e
o
p
le

).
 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 d

a
ta

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n

lin
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

.

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k
:

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 f
ro

m
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 s
o
 f
a
r 

a
re

: 

H
e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 l
o
c
a
lly

, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 p

e
o

p
le

s
 h

o
m

e
s
 m

e
a

n
s
 p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
. 
P

e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 c

a
re

. 
  
 

H
e
a
d

li
n

e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r:
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
s
 

fe
e
lin

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
.

Page 25



W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

 
L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 v
ia

 c
a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

n
e
w

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
it
h
 e

lig
ib

le
 c

a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
 

 
R

e
fr

e
s
h
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
n

 s
e

lf
-d

ir
e

c
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 t
a
k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

s
. 

 
A

 p
ro

je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

b
in

in
g
 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ilo

t.
 D

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

b
a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e

c
te

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

. 
 

 
A

 c
ro

s
s
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
ro

je
c
t 
te

a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 c

a
re

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 f
o

r 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 k

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
: 
 

 
T

h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
e
a
m

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
 i
n
 K

ip
p
a
x
/G

a
rf

o
rt

h
, 
P

u
d
s
e
y
 a

n
d
 M

e
a
n
w

o
o
d

. 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

ri
s
k
 s

tr
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
o
l 
is

 b
e
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e

d
 t
o

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 3

 d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e

s
. 
 

 
T

h
e
 D

ia
b
e
te

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 t
y
p
e
 2

 
d
ia

b
e
te

s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 f
u
lly

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 i
n

 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l.
 K

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n

d
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n
 c

a
p
tu

re
d
. 
 

 
S

ta
ff

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
b
lo

o
d
 g

a
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
rs

 f
o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 
re

c
e
iv

in
g
 H

o
m

e
 O

x
y
g
e
n
 

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e
d

 l
o

c
a

ll
y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

S
e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 F

o
r 

th
e
 

la
s
t 

s
ix

 m
o

n
th

s
 O

liv
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
in

g
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

to
 e

m
p
lo

y
 a

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 

fi
v
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n

ts
. 

“T
h
e
 m

a
in

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
a
s
 m

a
d
e

 
is

 t
h

a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n

 d
ra

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 M

u
m

's
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

’s
 a

 l
o
t 

m
o
re

 f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
n

 a
g

e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

e
r 

s
p

e
n

t 
ju

s
t 

h
a
lf
 a

n
 h

o
u

r 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 l
u
n
c
h
 –

 M
u
m

 n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
 h

o
u
r 

fo
r 

a
 m

e
a

l.
 M

u
m

 g
e
ts

 
u
p
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
o
rt

s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 h

e
r 

d
a
y
ti
m

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
–

 r
e

a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

lo
o
k
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 b

o
o
k
s
 t

o
g
e

th
e
r,

 s
in

g
in

g
 a

lo
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

ld
 t

im
e
rs

, 
d
o

in
g
 s

im
p
le

 
jig

s
a
w

s
 e

v
e
n
 f

e
e
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

u
c
k
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 W

h
a
rf

e
 o

r 
v
is

it
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

C
o
m

p
a
re

 t
h
a
t 

to
 j

u
s
t 

s
it
ti
n
g
 s

ta
ri
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 T

V
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
ts

 a
re

 
h
a
n
d
-p

ic
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
lly

 c
a
re

. 
A

n
d
 M

u
m

 g
e
ts

 t
o
 s

e
e
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 f

ri
e
n
d
ly

 f
a
c
e
s
. 

In
 

m
a
n
y
 w

a
y
s
 t

h
e
y
 t

re
a
t 

h
e

r 
lik

e
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 m

u
m

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
re

 j
u

s
t 

b
e
in

g
 a

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
s
tr

a
n

g
e
rs

 w
h
o

 w
a

tc
h
 t
h
e

 c
lo

c
k
 a

n
d
 r

u
s
h
 i
n
 a

n
d

 o
u
t.

 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d
s
 o

f 
a
n

d
 i

d
e

n
ti
fy

 
s
u

it
a
b
le

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 
o

f 
d

a
y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

w
h

o
s
e

 
c
u
rr

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
is

 
to

 
b

e
 

d
e

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
. 

 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

h
a
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 

fi
n

d
in

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o

d
 N

e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 T

e
a
m

. 
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 d

u
e
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
2
.

A
 c

ro
s
s
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 a
im

s
 t

o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 
fo

r 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
k
e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

 
T

h
e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
e
a
m

s
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 w

ill
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

c
o
-l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
. 
 

 
T

h
e

 
ro

ll 
o

u
t 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

s
tr

a
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 
a

n
d
 

e
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
s
it
e
s
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
 

A
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
 H

o
m

e
 O

x
y
g
e
n

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
2
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

s
ta

ff
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
n

u
rs

in
g

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

in
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 

c
a
re

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

. 
 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 i

n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

w
ill

 
b
e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
in

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

:

 
S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 n

o
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

lly
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

. 

 
F

a
ilu

re
 t

o
 t

ra
n

s
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
is

 n
o
t 
m

e
t.
  

 
F

a
ilu

re
 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

t 
b
o
th

 l
o
c
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

it
y
-w

id
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 
 

 
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 f
a
ils

 t
o
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
. 

Page 26



M
e

e
ti

n
g

:
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

: 
in

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 i
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
re

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 p
o

o
re

r 
 p

o
o

re
s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

:
M

a
k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e

 
th

e
ir

 h
e

a
lt
h

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 l
iv

e
, 

w
h

a
t 

g
ro

u
p

 t
h

e
y
 b

e
lo

n
g

 t
o

 o
r 

h
o
w

 m
u

c
h

 m
o

n
e

y
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

  
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 t
h

e
 f

a
s
te

s
t.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
:

2
0
 %

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
e
e
d
s
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

0
%

 m
o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 S

u
p
e
r 

O
u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
s
 (

S
O

A
s
) 

in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p

le
 l

iv
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

L
e
e
d
s
. 

 
T

h
e
re

 
a
re

 
ra

n
g
e
 
o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l,
 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 
th

a
t 

a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e
ir
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 
a
n
d
 
w

h
ic

h
 
a
re

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o

 t
h
e
 g

ro
w

in
g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 L

e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

m
e
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
m

e
n
 b

y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
:

• 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 1
0
.1

 y
e
a
r 

g
a
p
 i
n
 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f
o
r 

m
e
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 &

 H
u
n
s
le

t 
a
n
d
 H

a
re

w
o
o
d
 (

7
1
.6

 y
e
a
rs

:8
1
.7

y
e
a
rs

) 

• 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 9
.6

 y
e
a
r 

g
a
p
 i
n

 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f
o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 &

 H
u
n
s
le

t 
a
n
d
 A

d
e
l/
W

h
a

rf
e
d
a
le

 (
7
6
.1

y
e
a
r:

8
5
.7

y
e
a

rs
)

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

R
E

D

H
e

a
d

li
n

e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r

 
R

e
d
u

c
e
 t
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

 
R

e
d
u

c
e
 t
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

: 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
lif

e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 i

n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i

s
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 m
u

c
h
 l
o

w
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

lif
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 l
iv

in
g
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e
d

 
a

re
a

s
 
 
o

f 
L

e
e
d

s
 
a

n
d

 
th

e
 
a

b
s
o

lu
te

 
g
a
p
 
b
e

tw
e

e
n
 
th

e
s
e
 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 
is

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
. 

T
h
e
 k

e
y
 c

a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
p
re

m
a
tu

re
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 a

re
 c

a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
d
is

e
a
s
e
, 

c
a
n
c
e
r,

 
a
n
d
 

re
s
p
ir
a
to

ry
 

d
is

e
a
s
e
. 

A
ll 

p
re

m
a
tu

re
 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 

d
a
ta

 
fo

r 
th

e
s
e
 

d
is

e
a

s
e

s
 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
n
 d

e
p
ri
v
e
d
 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
L

e
e

d
s
. 

F
o

r 
s
o
m

e
 d

is
e

a
s
e

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
s
p

ir
a

to
ry

 
a
n
d
 s

tr
o
k
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 (

s
e
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
d

is
e
a
s
e
 d

a
ta

 
fo

r 
d
e

ta
il)

. 
C

a
u
s
e
s
 

o
f 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
s
e
 

d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 

a
re

 
m

u
lt
if
a
c
e

te
d
 

a
n

d
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

th
e

 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
w

id
e
r 

d
e

te
rm

in
a
n

ts
 

o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

 
s
u
c
h

 
a

s
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
n
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
a
l’s

 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 (

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 s

m
o
k
in

g
/a

lc
o
h
o

l/
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g
) 

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

  
 

P
u
b
lic

  
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  

e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
  

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 a

tt
it
u
d
e
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i

n
  

th
e
 m

o
re

 d
e
p

ri
v
e
d

 p
o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
 L

e
e
d
s
  

to
 i

n
fo

rm
  

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

e
a

rl
y
  

d
ia

g
n

o
s
is

  
o

f 
 c

a
n

c
e
r,

  
h

e
a

lt
h

y
  

liv
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

N
H

S
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
, 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
le

is
u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
, 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
.

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 B

u
il
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

: 

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 R

a
p

id
 H

e
a

lt
h

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 o

n
 L

C
C

 O
p
e
n

 S
p
a
c
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

 I
n
it
ia

l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 S

o
u
th

/E
a
s
t 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 B

u
il
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

:

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 L

C
C

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

a
p

e
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 S
e
e
k
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

o
p
e
n
 

s
p

a
c
e
s
, 
s
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

 p
o

lic
y
. 

  
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

a
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

G
ro

u
p
 

to
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

2
0
0
3
 -

2
0
0
5

2
00

4
 -

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
5 

-
2
0
0
7

2
0
0
6
 -

2
00

8
2
0
0
7
 -

2
0
0
9

L
e
e
d

s
1
8
.2

 
1
8
.3

 
1
8.

4
 

1
8
.5

 
1
8
.8

 

L
e
e
d

s
 D

e
p

ri
v
e
d

 p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
1
6
.7

 
1
6
.8

 
1
6.

9
 

1
6
.8

 
1
6
.8

 

R
e
la

ti
v
e 

G
a
p

 L
e
e
d

s
 D

e
p

riv
e
d

* 
v
s
 

L
e
e
d

s
0
.9

2
0
.9

1
0
.9

2
0
.9

1
0
.9

0

0
.0

0
.2

0
.4

0
.6

0
.8

1
.0

051
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

Relative inequalities gap

years

L
if

e
 E

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 
a
t 

6
5
, 

2
00

2
-2

0
0
4
 
to

 2
0
0
7-

2
0
0
9,

 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
, 

L
e
e
d

s
, 

L
e
e
d

s 
D

e
p

ri
v
e
d

* 
'L

e
e
d

s
 D

e
p

ri
v
e
d

' 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 r
es

id
e
nt

 in
 

a
n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
L
ee

d
s
 

ra
n
ki

n
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

o
p

 1
0
%

 
b

y
 2

0
0
4
 In

d
ic

e
s
 o

f 
M

u
lt
ip

le
 D

e
p

ri
v
a
ti
o

n

d
a
ta

 s
o

u
rc

e
: 

H
o

s
p

ita
l E

p
is

o
d

e
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s 

(H
E

S
);

 G
P

 r
e
g

is
te

re
d

 p
o

p
u
la

tio
n
s

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 

H
W

4
C

IT
Y

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 P
L

A
N

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T

Page 27



in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
h
a
p

in
g
 t
h
e
 A

ir
e
 V

a
lle

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

 C
h
ild

h
o

o
d
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 U

rb
a
n
 D

e
s
ig

n
 G

ro
u
p
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 

fo
r 

p
la

n
n
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

C
h
ild

 
F

ri
e
n
d

ly
 

C
it
y
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
 

w
o
rk

 
w

it
h
 

Y
o

u
th

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 t
ra

v
e
l.
 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
: 

N
e
w

 c
it
y
 w

id
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 

a
d
u
lt
s
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
; 

w
it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h

 (
M

H
);

 a
n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
n
d

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
: 

 

 
N

e
w

 M
H

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 j

o
b
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
c
u
te

 
a
n
d

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 M
H

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

; 
e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
th

o
s
e
 o

n
 

In
c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 
A

p
p
o
in

te
d
 

C
it
y
w

id
e
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

C
o
o
rd

in
a

to
r 

to
 

w
o
rk

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

M
H

 
a
n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
  

 
F

u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 A

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1
1
. 

 
3
5
  
‘H

o
t 
S

p
o
ts

’ 
tr

a
in

in
g

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 L

e
e
d
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
  

 
‘B

iq
 
S

q
u
e
e
z
e
 
E

v
e
n
t’
 
a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
7
0
 
fr

o
n
t 

lin
e
 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 
s
k
ill

s
 
o
n
 

g
iv

in
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 f
a
m

ily
 i
n
c
o
m

e
  

 
D

e
b

t 
a

d
v
ic

e
: 

a
 n

e
w

 t
e

le
p
h

o
n

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 g

a
te

w
a
y
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

n
e
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

p
h

o
n
e

 n
u

m
b
e
r 

fo
r 

u
s
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a
d

v
ic

e
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 e

q
u

it
a
b

le
  
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e
a
lt

h
: 

 

 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 
a
g
re

e
d
 

to
 

e
x
te

n
d
 

th
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

to
  

in
c
re

a
s
e

 e
a

rl
y
 d

ia
g

n
o
s
is

 o
f 

 l
u

n
g

  
c
a
n

c
e
r 

in
  

in
n
e

r 
s
o

u
th

/ 
e

a
s
t 

L
e
e

d
s
 u

n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0

1
3

 
3

 C
lin

ic
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

s
 (

C
C

G
s
) 

c
o
n

d
u
c
te

d
 t

h
e

ir
 i
n

it
ia

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
s
a

ti
o
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 m

o
s
t 
in

 n
e
e
d

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e
d

 l
o

c
a

ll
y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t:

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 
C

o
ld

 
W

e
a

th
e

r 
P

la
n

, 
L
e

e
d
s
 
w

a
s
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 
W

a
rm

 
H

o
m

e
s
 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 P

e
o
p
le

 g
ra

n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
. 
£
2
0
0
K

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
 

to
 

p
ro

m
p
t 

e
a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
; 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
 

C
ri
s
is

 
F

u
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 
fo

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

re
p
a
ir
s
 

to
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

h
e
a

ti
n
g
, 

p
lu

s
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 
h
e
a
ti
n
g
; 

p
ro

v
id

e
 
a
 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
H

e
a
ti
n
g
 
S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 
F

u
n

d
 
to

 
p

re
v
e
n
t 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
h
e
a
ti
n
g
 

b
re

a
k
in

g
 

d
o
w

n
 

in
 

w
in

te
r;

 
e
x
p
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

G
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

 L
e

e
d
s
 G

re
e

n
 D

o
c
to

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 u

s
in

g
 

h
e
a
ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
, 

c
o
ld

 w
e
a
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 p

ip
e

 l
a
g
g
in

g
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
c
o
ld

 r
e
la

te
d
 i
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h

; 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 

a
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

G
ra

n
ts

 
F

u
n

d
 

w
it
h

 
L
e

e
d

s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

, 
to

 
w

h
ic

h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
a
n
 

b
id

 
fo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

c
o
ld

 
w

e
a

th
e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 k
e
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

u
ti
lis

e
 

le
is

u
re

 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

lif
e
s
ty

le
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n

ta
g
e
  

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
:

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 b
a
c
k
 t

o
 w

o
rk

, 
k
e
e
p
 

p
e
o
p
le

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 i
n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
tu

rn
 t
o
 w

o
rk

. 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
: 

 

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 

to
 

e
x
p
a

n
d
 

th
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 

lo
w

 
in

c
o
m

e
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 
 

A
im

 i
s
 f
o
r 

C
D

F
I 
to

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 
D

e
b
t 

a
d

v
ic

e
: 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

f 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 g

a
te

w
a
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
2
0
1
2
. 

 
F

u
e
l 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
: 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

H
o
t 

S
p
o
ts

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 f

o
r 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 e

q
u

it
a
b

le
  
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e
a
lt

h
: 

 

 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
‘L

e
e
d
s
 L

e
ts

 C
h
a
n
g
e
’ 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 

 
A

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l

if
e
s
ty

le
  

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 p

o
rt

a
l 
b
y
 N

H
S

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

  

 
P

ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

n
e
w

 i
n
v
e

s
tm

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 

C
C

G
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
  

to
o
lk

it
, 

C
C

G
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 J
S

N
A

 

 
A

g
re

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 G
P

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 

ta
rg

e
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
  

 
C

C
G

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

q
u
it
a
b

le
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

 
H

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 s

u
rv

e
y
 u

s
in

g
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 p

a
n

e
l 

 t
o
  

b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
  
in

  
2
0
1
2
  
 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

 

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
 a

n
d
  

s
c
a
le

  
o
f 

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
  

m
e

e
t 

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
 

th
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n

  
L
e
e
d
s
  

 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 e
n

e
rg

y
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

  
liv

in
g
 w

it
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 r

is
k
 t

o
 

h
e
a
lt
h
  
a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
m

o
re

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

  

 
C

it
y
 
w

id
e
 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 
u

n
d

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(H

e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 
B

o
a
rd

) 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

C
it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
B

o
a
rd

s
 

B
a
la

n
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 g

re
e
n
 

fi
e

ld
 
s
it
e

s
 
a
n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
in

 
a

re
a
s
 
o
f 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 
w

it
h
 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 f
o

r 
a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 s
it
e

s
.

Page 28



2011/12 Adult Social Care Directorate Scorecard Reporting Period :

Contribution to Cross Council Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Appraisals

The Directorate is at 96% for full appraisals and continues to do 

appraisals when people return to work from absence. We are taking 

the same approach to 6 month reviews as we did to appraisals, 

reviews are scheduled within the appraisal. Although appraisal 

reviews have been completed, managers need reminding to report 

appraisals to co-ordinators so they appear on our returns.  Work is 

ongoing to have all completed reviews recorded by the 31st Jan ’12. 

Community Support and Skills workers are having group appraisals 

which is seen as a realistic model for this large service. 

Amber Every year 100% of staff have an appraisal 51% 92% 96%

Staff Engagement

Employee Engagement Survey Feedback has been presented to 

DMT. Actions have been identified and agreed to support the 

Directorate and Managers to help close the gaps identified by staff. 

An Employee Engagement and Communication Plan has been 

agereed with the first session being held on the 30th Jan.  Work will 

commence with service specific management teams to identify and 

integrate EES and IiP actions into Service Plans.

Amber  increase the level of staff engagement N/A N/A 72%

Consultation

An interim assessment in Quarter 3 suggests that the Directorate is 

performing well against the measure however, quality assurance 

work highlighted a lack of links or references to Talking Point, which 

is requested in report writing guidance. Most reports explain how the 

output from consultation is shaping options/ decisions, but not all. 

Green

Every year we will be able to evidence that consultation has taken 

place in 100 per cent of major decisions affecting the lives of 

communities

Equality
An interim assessment in Quarter 3 suggests that the Directorate is 

performing well against the measure
Green

Every year we will be able to evidence that equality issues have 

been considered in 100 per cent of major decisions

Overspend mainly reflects non achievement of assumed 

procurement savings for residential and nursing care packages 

within Adult Social Care, partially offset by a reduction in the number 

of placements

£18m of savings were included in the 2011/12 ASC budget and we 

are on target to deliver £11m of these by the year-end. The £6m 

savings budgeted for reductions in residential/nursing care fees will 

not now be achieved in the light of recent judicial review 

judgements, but a future approach to this was agreed by Executive 

Board in September 2011. Savings of £4.5m are being delivered this 

year within home care services, including the impact of telecare and 

reablement.  In September 2011 Executive Board approved 

proposals to reduce the level of directly provided residential care 

and day care. Some slippage in achieving the budgeted savings for 

2011/12 has put pressure on the budget, but the directorate has 

successfully identified contingency savings to largely offset this.  

An under spend of £4m has been achieved for residential/nursing 

care. Tight financial control across the staffing and running 

expenses budgets has generated contingency savings of £2m and 

additional in-year funding from Health has also contributed. Overall, 

Adult Social Care is expecting a year-end position close to budget 

balance.  

Indicator being developed - to be reported in Quarter 4

Indicator being developed - to be reported in Quarter 4

Quarter 3 2011/12

Keep within budget Amber No variation from agreed directorate budget in the year
£2,849,000

overspend

£2,675,000 

overspend

£1,262,000 

overspend

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\1\AI00036191\$bwlvwnml.xls

P
age 29



Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Create the environment for effective partnership 

working

The Health and Well-being Board has now been established in 

shadow form. The JSNA has been refreshed, and the first draft of 

the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy will be approved on 26th 

January 2012. Leeds is leading one of the National Learning Sets 

for, ‘use of resources’ and sits on the national stakeholder group for 

the overarching learning network.  An organisational development 

programme is being developed with partners to ensure that the right 

environment for Board decision making is created.  Adult Social 

Care and Health are making positive progress  through the Leeds 

Health and Social Care Transformation Programme to achieve 

integrated working across the city. 

Green N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Deliver the Health and Wellbeing City Priority 

Plan

High level city priorities for health and well being have been 

established. A series of outcome based accountability workshops 

have taken place to develop the detailed plan. A complete action 

plan including will be approved by the shadow health and well being 

board in April 2012. Priority areas of work are being progressed 

through the Leeds Health and Social Care Transformation 

Programme.

Green N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Help people with poor physical or mental health 

to learn or relearn skills for daily living 

The provision of reablement services is now an option for all new 

service users, via community or hospital discharge pathways. Work 

is underway to extend the service to existing service users who 

would benefit from some short term support to regain their 

independence following an unscheduled review - this is live in 

WNW and ENE and will go live in SSE on 1 February.

Green
Increase the number of people successfully completing a 

programme to help them relearn the skills for daily living. 
166 317 462

5,303 people have personal budgets, this equates to 33% of those 

included in the NI130 cohort. Of these 1,759 are using cash 

payments to purchase services themselves, this equates to 11% of 

service users. Benchmarking data from 2010/11 shows Leeds is 

inline with the average. There are recognised issues with NI130, 

and alternatives are being proposed regionally and nationally. A 

regional approach used by Putting People First puts the actual 

proportion of people using personal budgets at 41% of those people 

receiving services which could be delivered through personal 

budgets.

Increase percentage of service users and carers with control over 

their own care budget
25% 31% 33%

Together with the Stamford Forum Leeds are developing an 

approach to extend the use of personal budgets through the 

Combining Personalisation with Community Engagement (CPCE) 

project. CPCE is aligned to the DH’s Building Community Capacity 

programme of work which exemplifies best practice in developing 

community based social capital to enhance existing resources. The 

CPCE project will develop three Neighbourhood Networks to 

become skilled brokers of self directed support, commissioning 

services from and for the local community to achieve earlier, less 

costly interventions. 

Increase percentage service users who feel that they have control 

over their daily life.
79% 75% N/A

Improve the range of daytime activities for people 

with eligible needs

Learning disability day services are being replaced with a range of 

community based options, this is informed by extensive ongoing 

consultation. 13 organisations have been identified to provide a 

range of daytime activities in North Leeds. 

An extensive consultation has been undertaken with users of mental 

health day services and will be used to inform the service model and 

availability of services going forward. The in-house provider service 

will work with commissioning this year to build on this work and 

transform services.

In September 2011 Executive Board approved the “Better Lives for 

Older People” proposals to reduce the level of directly provided day 

care. A range of alternative services are being developed and made 

available, for example, work with community support teams and 

Neighbourhood Networks, including the CPCE project (see above) 

and the SeNS (Senior Network Support) project which is a cross 

council project which aims to support and strengthen community 

based networks of older people as part of a European initiative. 

Green N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Extend the use of personal budgets Amber

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\1\AI00036191\$bwlvwnml.xls

P
age 30



Ensure more people with poor physical or mental 

health remain living at home or close to home for 

longer

There has been an overall downward trend in the number of older 

people supported in care homes over the last six years, from 985 

admitted in 2005/06 to 910 in 2010/11. The admission rate is better 

than the national average and inline with regional figures in 

2010/11. A higher number of admissions in quarter 1 led to a higher 

predicted year figure, this has dropped in quarter 2 and 3. 

 

A cross directorate project team aims to analyse the demand and 

supply for older peoples housing and care options and take a report 

to Executive Board in March 2012. Leeds received approval from 

the DH for its business case to develop a Wellbeing Centre and 

building work starts in January 2012. The centre will combine a 

range of state of the art health and fitness facilities with services 

which will promote independence, health and wellbeing. The centre 

will provide a model for future developments.

Green
Reduce number of older people admitted permanently to 

residential and nursing care homes (per 10,000 population)
86.8 84.6 82.8

Support adults whose circumstances make them 

vulnerable to live safe and independent lives

As part of its continuing work to ensuring appropriate cases are 

referred into safeguarding, the Safeguarding Adults Board has 

developed further guidance on the thresholds for referral and 

investigation, which was published as part of the revised policy and 

procedures on 9th January 2012. This will be incorporated into 

training for alertors and referrers, as well as those who screen rach 

referral.

An analysis of the figures shows that there is a higher conversion 

rate for some service user groups than others.Conversion rates for 

two user groups currently returns at 13% and this requires focused 

work, these are mental health and other vulnerable people and 

accounts for 22% of the total referrals. This is being prioritised by 

the Performance and Quality Assurance sub group to the 

Safeguarding Board for cross partner work.

Amber
Increase percentage of safeguarding referrals which lead to a 

safeguarding investigation
31.50% 34% 32.30%

Ensure resources are efficiently matched and 

directed towards those with greatest need

The £5.2m represents the achievement of 71.7% of the efficiency 

targets set in the 2011/12 budget.  It is projected that £6.3m or 

86.4% will be delivered by the year-end

Amber Delivery of efficiency savings for directly provided services £3.1m £4.0m £5.2m

Provide easier access to joined-up health and 

social care services

 There has been a successful bid for transformation monies for this 

year to pilot additional social work and Occupational Therapy input 

to divert people away from hospital admission where their needs 

can be better met in the community. Partners are developing a 

coordinated approach to assess patients at point of entry to avoid 

admission or to identify patients who can be discharged early. We 

are developing the role of two social workers who will, alongside 

health teams, develop discharge pathways, including putting 

services in place and addressing any barriers to returning home. 

These workers have access to a budget which enables them to buy 

items or pay for services which will enable discharge. 

Delayed discharges overall have increased over the year. Those 

attributable to Adult Social Care continue to make up around third of 

the total. The most recent figures show that Leeds have dropped 

from 86 in quarter 1 to 101 of all 152 local authorities regarding the 

number per 100,000 population.

Amber
Reduce number of delayed discharges from hospital due to adult 

social care only (per 100,000 adult population per week)
1.84 2.18 2.34

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\1\AI00036191\$bwlvwnml.xls

P
age 31



People with social care needs receive 

coordinated and effective personalised support 

from local health and wellbeing agencies

Health and social care have also started to work more closely on 

intermediate care and reablement services. A joint action plan will 

be implemented to align reablement and intermediate care services 

and is overseen by a steering group. The group is currently 

examining examples of fully integrated services to inform future 

actions. Adult Social Care and NHS Leeds have agreed to jointly 

commission a resource at Harry Booth house as part of a wider 

integrated Community Intermediate Care (CIC) bed provision and 

will become operational from June 2012.

Quarter 3 figures relate to 45 people supported though hospital 

teams to return home. Future figures will include those being 

supported through new reablement services. In 2010/11, 85% of 

people were still at home following a discharge from hospital and 

the target for this year is 87%. It should be noted that whilst a high 

percentage of people at home is desirable, there will be occiasons 

when it is right to give someone the opportunity to return home and 

then agree that they need more intensive support than can be 

provided in the community. 

Green
Increase proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at 

home 91 days after leaving hospital into rehabilitation services
92.90% 93.80% 89%

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\1\AI00036191\$bwlvwnml.xls

P
age 32



Our customer experience is enhanced through 

improved information systems developed with 

health partners

A key enabler to share Information electronically with the NHS is to 

complete the Social Care Information Governance Toolkit. A 

baseline assessment and Action plan has been completed and 

plans are in place to submit evidence by the annual deadline of 31 

March 2012. The technical infrastructure design for sharing 

electronic information securely has been completed and work is on 

target to put this in place. Options are being explored to establish 

the NHS number on the social care case management system and 

setting up secure email transfers between health and social care 

organisations has commenced.

Green N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Establish local joined-up services for older 

people

The  Leeds Health and Social Care Transformation Programme is 

working to integrate community based health and social care teams, 

streamline pathways to support and develop risk stratification 

approaches for providing support to those most at risk of long term 

conditions and hospital admissions. Three demonstrator sites for  

integrated teams are being established from January 2012 and the 

rollout of risk stratification is being prioritised for GP practices within 

these sites.

Green N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Self Assessment

CQC inspections of care homes have recently  resumed. The inspection reports of five care homes managed directly by the Council have been 

published during quarter three Three were found to be compliant and two were judged as “Not Meeting one or more essential standards. Improvement 

is needed”,  this is due to a number of mainly moderate concerns and a single major concern around the recording of staff training. Action has been 

taken to resolve all the identified issues 

An series of audits of social work cases work has been undertaken by Independent consultants during the year. The reports show an improvement in 

practice, for example in, capacity assessments and safeguarding. In September 2011 auditors commented  “…good practice in this area had become 

embedded into the day to day thinking of social workers… The case recording was detailed and decisions evidenced. There had been involvement and 

consultation with appropriate others and evidence of quality social work interventions”. Such comments are reflected across the reports provided by the 

Independent file auditors in 2011. 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\1\AI00036191\$bwlvwnml.xls

P
age 33



P
age 34

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 21 March 2012 

Subject: Leeds NHS performance report  

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Alongside the Quarter 2 performance information presented to and discussed at the 
Scrutiny Board’s meeting in December 2012, the Board also considered a report 
prepared for the NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds (NHS ABL) Cluster Board. The 
purpose of this report is to introduce the most up-to-date performance report from 
NHS ABL. 

 

2. The most up-to-date performance report is due to be considered by the PCT Cluster 
Board on 22 March 2012, and as such will not be available for publication at the time 
of issuing this report.  Nonetheless, this will be made available as soon as possible 
ahead of the meeting.  However, it should be noted that any discussion at the Scrutiny 
Board will be in the context of the performance report not having been considered by 
the NHS ABL Cluster Board. 

 
3. This report also seeks to address those areas highlighted at the Scrutiny Board’s 

December meeting, where further and additional information was requested.  Further 
information was requested in relation to the following areas: 

 

• Bariatric surgery 

• Fractured Neck of Femur operated on within 48 hours 

• Stroke care 
 
4. The additional information is appended to this report and appropriate NHS 

representatives have been invited to attend the meeting to help the Scrutiny Board 
consider the information in more detail. 

 
5. In January 2012, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) published a report that 

identified that improvements were needed at St. James’ University Hospitals (part of 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 8

Page 35



 

 

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT)) because government standards were 
not being met.  Concerns were raised in relation to the following essential standards:   

 

• Outcome 04 - Care and welfare of people who use services (moderate 
concerns) 

• Outcome 08 - Cleanliness and infection control (minor concerns) 

• Outcome 13 – Staffing (moderate concerns) 
 

6. The CQC reported is attached as an appendix and representatives from LTHT have 
been invited to the meeting to outline how the concerns raised are being addressed. 

 

Recommendations 
 
7. It is recommended that the Scrutiny Board: 
 

(a) Consider the information presented in this report and supporting appendices; and, 
 

(b) Identify any areas where additional information is needed and/or that require 
further scrutiny. 

 
Background documents  
 

• None used 
 

Page 36



Note on outstanding questions on Bariatric Surgery; Fractured Neck of Femur

(FNoF) and Stroke Care

Bariatric Surgery
This surgical work is actually commissioned across the NHS by the regional Specialised

Commissioning Groups (SCG), as the medical procedures that fall within the definition of Bariatric

Surgery are considered to be specialist in nature. Such services can be commissioned only from

those providers that have proven capability and capacity to be able to carry them out safely and

effectively. The PCT thus have no day to day direct commissioning control over the numbers or

type of procedures carried, other then through the governance and management arrangements

that exist between the PCT and the SCG.

Activity for the patients of NHS Leeds over recent years is shown below, along with the YTD, up to

the end of January 2012. The projection for the current year is that there will be a comparable

number in total for the whole year to that seen last year.

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Stomach stapling 7 8 5 10 0

Gastric Band 4 9 12 13 15

Gastric Bypass 18 32 60 100 86

0708 0809 0910 1011 1112 YTD

It seems clear that there has been a significant rise in bariatric procedures, most marked in the

carrying out of gastric bypass procedures. Overall, there is a rise of over four fold in the number

of procedures carried out in 2007/08, as compared to 2010/11.

Health scrutiny report

Page 37



Fractured Neck of Femur (FNoF) operated on within 48 hours
This is an indicator of good clinical practice, with early operations generally giving better health

outcomes. It is a recommendation of the National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) that

procedures are carried out the day of the fracture being identified or the day after.

Probably the best illustration of performance can best be seen using extracted information from

the LTHT performance report. This explains the different ways of measuring performance and

also the steps being taken to improve performance. It is important to understand that this

indicator is relatively new and there remains work to be done to ensure that the data sources

used are robust. Validation work is being carried to determine this.

The first extract, at 3.1 below, shows performance against the CQUIN standard. CQUIN is a

system to incentivise providers to improve performance and is separate from routine

performance management systems. Note that the CQIN indicator uses a different data source

from that used for the Dr Foster analysis shown later.

It is clear that performance using this measure is improving, from a low point near zero in 2009.

A performance level of 85% is expected to be achieved by the end of Q4 (March 2012).

Health scrutiny report

Page 38



The second extract, shown below at 3.2, shows the other system used to monitor performance.

It uses LTHT local records. Again it is clear that improvements in performance are being seen

overall. LTHT though are likely to underachieve against the Dr Foster standard of 70%, which

means performance over the year is likely to be in the regions of 60% to 70% of patients treated

within 48 hours.

Health scrutiny report

Page 39



Stroke Care
Performance in the delivery of quality stroke care is presently measured using two main

indicators for commissioners. These indicators are intended to support the delivery of NICE

Guidance on effective care for stroke patients. The indicators for 2011/12 are –

People who have had a stroke who spend at least 90% of their time in hospital in a stroke

unit. This is to ensure that patients receive the highest levels of specialist care.

Transient Ischaemic Attack (TIA) cases with a higher risk of stroke who are assessed and

treated within 24 hours. This ensures that patients with high risk of stroke who have a TIA are

treated quickly, which can reduce the risk of a future full stroke by up to 80%.

Performance at LTHT was of some concern to NHS Leeds at the start of the year, but recent

reports have shown that LTHT have turned things around, for both indicators. The hospital have

opened a specialist stroke unit and are now in the process of opening a hyper acute stroke unit,

due to complete soon.

Performance for the number of patients who spend at least 90% of their time in a stroke unit is

judged against a standard of 80%. There is a risk that the delivery of the standard over the whole

year will be below the standard, due to the poor performance earlier. Data available up to the

end of Q3 however shows that significant improvements have been made and there are no

serious grounds for concern moving forward. Performance is shown below.

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

Time spent on a stroke unit 57.0% 81.1% 82.0%

Target 80% 80% 80%

Q1 11/12 Q2 11/12 Q3 11/12

Performance for TIA patients treated within 24 hours is shown below. It can be seen that

performance has followed a similar pattern to that for time on a stroke unit. There are no

ongoing concerns about performance, now that systems are in place to ensure delivery.

Health scrutiny report

Page 40



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

TIA within 24hrs 60% 82% 85%

Target 60% 60% 60%

Q1 11/12 Q2 11/12 Q3 11/12

Next year 2012/13, performance will be judged using different methods. Whilst the indicators for

this year are set out in the NHS Operating Framework, for 2012/13, the key indicator covering

stroke is described in the NHS Outcomes Framework as the ‘proportion of stroke patients

reporting an improvement in activity/lifestyle’, based on a specialist clinical scale. It is not yet

clear how this will be monitored at the local level.

Health scrutiny report

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 24

Review of
compliance

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust

St James's University Hospital

Region: Yorkshire & Humberside

Location address:
Beckett Street

Leeds

West Yorkshire

LS9 7TF

Type of service: Acute services with overnight beds

Hospice services

Rehabilitation services

Community healthcare service

Urgent care services

Diagnostic and/or screening service

Date of Publication: January 2012

Overview of the service: St James's University Hospital is run 
and operated by Leeds Teaching 
Hospital NHS Trust, one of the largest 

Page 43



Page 2 of 24

trusts in the country, providing health 
care to one million people per year in 
Leeds and across Yorkshire. The 
hospital also provides a number of 
specialist services across the Yorkshire 
region and beyond. St James's 
University Hospital has an accident and 
emergency department and provides 
acute hospital services.

Page 44



Page 3 of 24

Our current overall judgement

St James's University Hospital was not meeting one or more 

essential standards. Improvements are needed.

The summary below describes why we carried out this review, what we found and any 
action required. 

Why we carried out this review

We carried out this review because concerns were identified in relation to:

Outcome 04 - Care and welfare of people who use services
Outcome 08 - Cleanliness and infection control
Outcome 13 - Staffing

How we carried out this review

We reviewed all the information we hold about this provider, carried out a visit on 6 
December 2011, carried out a visit on 7 December 2011, observed how people were being
cared for, talked to staff and talked to people who use services.

What people told us

We spoke with people who use the service and their relatives and visitors. 

People told us that the wards were very busy and there were not always enough staff. 
Some of the comments included:

"Staff don't have time to talk."
"Staff wouldn't be able to cope without the students."
"Sometimes not enough staff."
"Not enough staff to deal with wandering /shouting patients."
"Staffing levels vary."
"Relative does personal hygiene needs because not enough staff."
"Ward is understaffed."

However, some people said there were enough staff. Their comments included:

"Staff answer the buzzer quickly."
"Staff are approachable."
"Staff brilliant."
Staff explain everything and are friendly."
"Enough staff on the ward."
"Staff look after you well."

for the essential standards of quality and safety
Summary of our findings

Page 45



Page 4 of 24

"Staff talk to you about your care."

Most people we spoke with were happy with the care they received. They said:

"Staff explain care and treatment"
"Staff explain what is happening and will deal with concerns."
"Staff explain what is happening and do not talk across you."
"Staff explain everything and are friendly."
"Kept well informed about care and what is happening with discharge."
"Doctors explain what is going on."

The majority of people we spoke with said they enjoyed the food at the hospital. However, 
one person said, "On a moist diet but by the time food is served it is dry and difficult to 
eat."

What we found about the standards we reviewed and how well St 

James's University Hospital was meeting them

Outcome 04: People should get safe and appropriate care that meets their needs 

and supports their rights

We have assessed this outcome area as a moderate concern.

The delivery of care is not always safe and effective. The service needs to take action to 
improve and maintain their arrangements for delivering care treatment and support to 
protect people against the risks associated with unsafe or inappropriate care, treatment or 
support.

Outcome 08: People should be cared for in a clean environment and protected from 

the risk of infection

We have assessed this outcome area as a minor concern.

The trust has standards for hygiene and cleanliness but these are not effectively 
maintained and managed in all areas. The processes in place do not always promote the 
prevention and control of infections. There are no assurances that staff are following 
procedures for mattress and bed cleaning. There is inconsistent practice with the following 
of infection control procedures around the isolation rooms and bays

Outcome 13: There should be enough members of staff to keep people safe and 

meet their health and welfare needs

We have assessed this outcome as moderate concerns.

There are often times  on wards 28, 29 and 34 when there are insufficient staff, and it is 
difficult to get more staff quickly, to provide care that is always safe, effective and meets 
people's needs.

Actions we have asked the service to take

Page 46



Page 5 of 24

We have asked the provider to send us a report within 14 days of them receiving this 
report, setting out the action they will take to improve. We will check to make sure that the 
improvements have been made.

Where we have concerns we have a range of enforcement powers we can use to protect 
the safety and welfare of people who use this service. When we propose to take 
enforcement action, our decision is open to challenge by a registered person through a 
variety of internal and external appeal processes. We will publish a further report on any 
action we have taken.

Other information

In a previous review, we found that improvements were needed for the following essential 
standards:
• Outcome 01: People should be treated with respect, involved in discussions about their

care and treatment and able to influence how the service is run

In a previous review, we suggested that some improvements were made for the following 
essential standards:
• Outcome 14: Staff should be properly trained and supervised, and have the chance to 

develop and improve their skills

• Outcome 21: People's personal records, including medical records, should be accurate 
and kept safe and confidential

Please see previous reports for more information about previous reviews.

Page 47



Page 6 of 24

What we found
for each essential standard of quality
and safety we reviewed

Page 48



Page 7 of 24

The following pages detail our findings and our regulatory judgement for each essential standard and outcome that we 
reviewed, linked to specific regulated activities where appropriate. 

We will have reached one of the following judgements for each essential standard.

Compliant means that people who use services are experiencing the outcomes relating to
the essential standard.

A minor concern means that people who use services are safe but are not always 
experiencing the outcomes relating to this essential standard.

A moderate concern means that people who use services are safe but are not always 
experiencing the outcomes relating to this essential standard and there is an impact on 
their health and wellbeing because of this.

A major concern means that people who use services are not experiencing the outcomes
relating to this essential standard and are not protected from unsafe or inappropriate care, 
treatment and support.

Where we identify compliance, no further action is taken. Where we have concerns, the 
most appropriate action is taken to ensure that the necessary improvements are made. 
Where there are a number of concerns, we may look at them together to decide the level 
of action to take. 

More information about each of the outcomes can be found in the Guidance about 
compliance: Essential standards of quality and safety

Page 49



Page 8 of 24

Outcome 04:
Care and welfare of people who use services

What the outcome says

This is what people who use services should expect.

People who use services:
* Experience effective, safe and appropriate care, treatment and support that meets their 
needs and protects their rights.

What we found

Our judgement

There are moderate concerns with Outcome 04: Care and welfare of people who use 
services

Our findings

What people who use the service experienced and told us
During the last three months we have received a number of concerns from people who 
use the service and staff, telling us of incidences of poor care and neglect of people's 
needs. People said their care needs had been neglected due to lack of staff and their 
dignity at times compromised. People said they had been left in wet beds for prolonged 
periods of time and had falls due to lack of staff assistance and supervision. One 
person said they had seen elderly people wandering on wards in states of undress 
which severely compromised their dignity. Others said they were not given the help they
needed to maintain their personal hygiene and the assistance they needed with eating 
and drinking. Staff reported that staff shortages were leading to elderly people being left
wet after episodes of incontinence and being rushed with tasks.

People had also expressed concerns about spending long periods of time on trolleys in 
corridors on wards, waiting for admission to a bed. 

At this visit to the service, we spoke to people who use the service, their relatives and 
visitors.

Most people we spoke with told us that the care was good and staff were helpful. 
People said that staff treated them with dignity and would explain what they were doing.
Comments included:

"Staff explain care and treatment"
"Staff explain what is happening and will deal with concerns."

Page 50



Page 9 of 24

"Staff explain what is happening and do not talk across you."
"Staff explain everything and are friendly."
"Kept well informed about care and what is happening with discharge."
"Doctors explain what is going on."

The majority of people we spoke with said they enjoyed the food at the hospital. 
However, one person said, "On a moist diet but by the time food is served it is dry and 
difficult to eat." Another raised concerns that records of nutrition are not maintained 
properly when their relative is nutritionally at risk. 

Some people told us they had been involved in decisions about their treatment and 
most told us staff listen to their concerns and take them seriously. Some told us they 
had received conflicting information from different professionals. Some people felt that 
not all staff would deal with concerns raised. They said:

"Difficult to get explanation of treatment  different doctors give you different 
information."
"Feel can raise concerns but depends which staff on duty if concerns are listened to 
and dealt with."
"Can raise concerns but don't know how seriously they are taken."

Other evidence
During this visit, we saw that staff treated the patients with care and dignity. Staff 
explained what the were doing and always pulled the curtains around the bed when 
providing personal care such as changing, washing and giving treatment.

Our observations of people's care showed that staff were kind and considerate. Staff 
delivered care sympathetically and explained what they were doing when carrying out 
any tasks. Care was delivered in a timely manner, we did not see people waiting for 
prolonged periods of times for assistance they needed. 

Overall, meals were served well, staff took meals to people and arranged trays so they 
were in easy reach and people could manage themselves. This encouraged people's 
independence. However, on one ward, it was not clear which people needed assistance
with their meals and what level of help was needed. We spoke with staff who told us 
they verbally discuss with new staff the assistance that people need at meals time. We 
looked at some care records and they did not give clear details of people's needs 
regarding assistance with meals. This could lead to people's care needs being missed 
or overlooked.

On another ward, we saw that the food served looked well presented and all people we 
spoke to confirmed that it was hot. We observed staff helping people with their meals 
where required. Drinks were served after the meal and people were given a choice of 
drinks. During the visit we observed the serving of meals and found that assistance was
given to patients in an appropriate manner. For example a nurse was helping a patient 
who could not feed themselves. She told the patient what was on the plate and took her
time feeding the patient and encouraging her to eat. However, patients were not always
given opportunity to wash their hands before and after their meal and we saw some 
staff give assistance with feeding without washing their hands first. This issue will be 
addressed in outcome 8 of this report. We also saw one person had food left in front of 
them for 30 minutes as they were asleep. Staff walked past and didn't assist until 

Page 51



Page 10 of 24

matron saw this and pointed it out. They were then given assistance with their meal. 

We observed staff involving people in the daily routine and making choices available to 
them and including them in any procedures. For example we saw one patient being 
assisted to mobilise by the physiotherapist They were careful to explain fully what they 
were doing and gave plenty of time for the patient to be involved and help themselves, 
as much as possible. 

Staff we spoke with showed a good understanding of respect and dignity. They were 
able to give good examples of how they try to ensure this for people who use the 
service. They understood the principles of person centred, individualised care. 

However, most staff said they were aware of times when people's dignity has been 
compromised due to being short of staff. They said that people can have unnecessary 
episodes of incontinence as they cannot get to them in time. They said that people's 
personal hygiene needs are not always attended to promptly. They said it can be the 
afternoon before people get a wash or shower. They said that men may not get a shave
every day and if they are so busy, some people may only get a 'hands and face' type 
wash rather than a full bed bath. 

One staff said that they have, on some occasions, not had enough staff available to 
safely manage people's moving and handling needs in a timely manner. They said they 
had 'rolled' a patient who really needed the assistance of two staff and a hoist as they 
felt it was better to take this risk rather than wait for the assistance of another staff 
member. (The patient had been incontinent). This put the staff member and patient at 
risk. Another said that people are sat in chairs for too long when they want to get back 
in bed or are in uncomfortable positions in bed and have to wait for enough staff to be 
available to assist them. 

Staff also said that when they are short of staff, they have to rush tasks and don't have 
time to spend with people giving them reassurance and allaying feelings of anxiety that 
people often have when in hospital. One staff said, "You feel like you have failed 
people." Another said, "Basic needs are met and priority is given to emergency care 
needs but you always wish you could do more." Staff said it can be difficult to supervise
people who may need extra attention due to being confused or agitated. During our visit
we saw that a person who had been assessed as needing one to one support did not 
always have this. 

Another staff member said that people were missing their physiotherapy appointments 
because of staff shortages they were not washed and dressed in time for the 
appointment.

On one ward we visited, one staff member said that people who use the service had 
suffered falls due to lack of supervision when short of staff. We asked for an analysis of 
information on falls from this ward. The information showed there had been 16 incidents
of falls, slips or trips reported in a four week time period. We were told that none of 
these incidents had resulted in serious harm for the people who sustained the falls. 

Staff said that essential care such as medication, pressure area care and the carrying 
out of observations such as temperature and blood pressure checks are prioritised and 
always done.

Page 52



Page 11 of 24

Staff said that people who use the service receive good care when they have enough 
staff to provide it properly. They said they were well trained in delivering person centred
care and their ward sisters and managers supported them well. 

We discussed discharge planning and arrangements with some staff. Staff said that 
discharge can be delayed due to not having enough time to arrange it promptly. One 
staff said that discharge planning could be better organised but they have to wait for 
ward rounds to finish before they can start planning. They said this then results in 
delays, bed shortages and leads to the situation of people being admitted to wards and 
waiting on trolleys. A matron told us they try to work to the policy of people waiting on 
trolleys for no longer than 30 minutes.

We looked at records that are kept on 'trolley admissions' and could see that people 
can be waiting for a bed from three to seven hours. Staff said they try to make people 
as comfortable as possible during this time and they have a room available where 
people can be examined in private while on the trolley. Staff said this wasn't 'ideal' but 
they try to make the best of the situation. 

In general we observed that people receive care appropriate to their needs.  However, 
it is evident from staff and patient comments that there is sometimes a shortage of staff 
and that this can impact on people's care, the likelihood of patients slipping and falling, 
discharge planning, and on occasion their dignity can be compromised as a result.
While none of these incidents appear to have caused significant harm to patients there 
is risk that due to staff shortages these incidents will recur.  Staffing is discussed further
under Outcome 13.

Our judgement
We have assessed this outcome area as a moderate concern.

The delivery of care is not always safe and effective. The service needs to take action 
to improve and maintain their arrangements for delivering care treatment and support to
protect people against the risks associated with unsafe or inappropriate care, treatment 
or support.

Page 53



Page 12 of 24

Outcome 08:
Cleanliness and infection control

What the outcome says

Providers of services comply with the requirements of regulation 12, with regard to the 
Code of Practice for health and adult social care on the prevention and control of infections
and related guidance.

What we found

Our judgement

There are minor concerns with Outcome 08: Cleanliness and infection control

Our findings

What people who use the service experienced and told us
We did not discuss this outcome with people who use the service.

Other evidence
In October and November 2011 we received information that wards and toilets were 
unclean and that nursing staff had to perform cleaning duties that should be carried out 
by cleaning staff.

During our visit we found the wards generally in a good state of repair and all the 
fixtures and fittings observed were in a good state. We found commodes were clean. 

On one of the wards a bay was closed due to the need to isolate the patients in this 
bay. We saw that the 'bay closed' sign had fallen off which meant that it was not 
obvious this bay area was closed and we saw a staff member enter the area with no 
gloves on. We discussed this with the ward sister at the time of our visit and the sign 
was replaced. 

We looked at four bed mattresses on one of the wards. All four had staining on the 
foam mattresses that had penetrated the covers. We saw that one of the forms which 
indicates whether the mattress and bed space has been cleaned and ready for the next
patient had not been completed in full. None of the nursing duties had been ticked as 
completed. The other three beds did not have any forms in place to say they had been 
checked at all. Nursing staff told us there was no space to tick on the form that the 
mattress should be unzipped and checked, however the matron pointed out that it was 
on there. None of the staff on the ward could confirm that they would unzip the mattress
covers to check for stains inside the cover.There was no assurance that the nurses or 

Page 54



Page 13 of 24

health care assistants were actually cleaning the areas they were supposed to. This 
issue was brought to the immediate attention of the ward sister who began making 
arrangements for new mattresses to be brought to the ward. They also told us that the 
procedure for mattress cleaning would be brought to staff's attention through a specially
organised meeting and they would make sure that bed, mattress and bed space 
cleaning records were properly maintained in future. 

After the inspection visit, the trust informed us that the staining on the mattresses had 
been reviewed by infection control and tissue viability nurse consultants. They had 
confirmed that the staining on the mattresses was discolouration due to light or heat. 
They also said they have gained guidance from the mattress manufacturers to assist 
staff in their inspections of mattresses. 

Through our observation of mealtimes we saw that patients were not offered hand 
washing before or after meals. However, on one ward we were told that patients are 
given hand wipes before meals. We also saw during this time that a number of staff did 
not follow infection control procedures, regarding the changing of aprons and gloves. A 
number of staff walked in to bays and side rooms that were clearly signposted as 
having infection control procedures in operation. One staff walked in to the bay wearing 
apron and gloves that had been used for food distribution and then out again and into 
another side room with the same apron on. Another walked in to the bay area and out 
again with the same apron on. One staff kept the green apron and gloves on and went 
into the sluice area and came out with it still on

We also saw that two staff did not wash their hands before they fed a patient at 
lunchtime.

Staff told us there were good systems in place to ensure wards were clean. They said 
there were enough cleaning staff.

Our judgement
We have assessed this outcome area as a minor concern.

The trust has standards for hygiene and cleanliness but these are not effectively 
maintained and managed in all areas. The processes in place do not always promote 
the prevention and control of infections. There are no assurances that staff are 
following procedures for mattress and bed cleaning. There is inconsistent practice with 
the following of infection control procedures around the isolation rooms and bays

Page 55



Page 14 of 24

Outcome 13:
Staffing

What the outcome says

This is what people who use services should expect.

People who use services:
* Are safe and their health and welfare needs are met by sufficient numbers of appropriate 
staff.

What we found

Our judgement

There are moderate concerns with Outcome 13: Staffing

Our findings

What people who use the service experienced and told us
During the last three months we have received a number of concerns from people who 
use the service and staff, telling us of their concerns with regard to staff shortages. As 
mentioned in outcome 4 of this report, they have reported that people's care needs are 
being neglected due to there being insufficient staff. 

We were told that a person with dementia went missing due to lack of staff supervision. 
We were also told that staff were not available to assist people in getting to the toilet or 
to change soiled bedding. People told us that they had heard staff complaining about 
being short staffed and not being able to use bank staff to cover shortages. Staff told us
they did not have enough staff to meet people's needs and that staff were 'tired and 
stressed' and unable to take breaks when at work. 

During our visit, people told us that the wards were very busy and there were not 
always enough staff. Some of the comments included:

"Staff don't have time to talk."
"Staff wouldn't be able to cope without the students."
"Sometimes not enough staff."
"Not enough staff to deal with wandering /shouting patients."
"Staffing levels vary."
"Relative does personal hygiene needs because not enough staff."
"Ward is understaffed."

Page 56



Page 15 of 24

However, some people said there were enough staff. Their comments included:

"Staff answer the buzzer quickly."
"Staff are approachable."
"Staff brilliant."
Staff explain everything and are friendly."
"Enough staff on the ward."
"Staff look after you well."
"Staff talk to you about your care."

Other evidence
When we last visited the service in August 2011 we said the health and welfare needs 
of people who use the service were not always being met because there were often 
insufficient staff to ensure needs were being met. We set a compliance action for them 
to be able to rectify the service. 

The trust responded by sending us an action plan of what they were going to do to 
improve the service and ensure their compliance with this outcome area. They told us 
they had recognised the need to 'grow the nursing and midwifery workforce' and were 
developing the way in which they would do this. They said they had calculated the staff 
numbers they needed based on patient's needs and had used a nationally recognised 
tool to assess this. They told us that in July 2011 their vacancy rates were in the usual 
range they expected and that the majority of vacant posts were covered by bank staff. 

Since the August inspection the trust also said that they had improved recruitment 
practice and sickness and absence monitoring. They told us they had improved staff 
deployment by introducing 'e-rostering'. (This is a computer assisted system for 
developing rotas.) We found during our visit that this has not yet been fully implemented
on some wards. However, sisters told us they are working to the principles of e-
rostering and have been trained to do so. The trust also said that from December 2011 
they would be introducing new patient surveys to ask people if there had been enough 
nurses and said that senior staff would be reviewing staffing levels and rotas through 
the e- rostering system.

We spoke with a matron who told us that staff had raised concerns about staffing in one
of the wards visited. They said the ward had been reviewed in order to improve staffing,
leadership and care. They said they had recruited to some vacant posts in September 
and October 2011, audited rotas and would be introducing patient experience surveys. 

As previously mentioned in outcome 4 of this report, all staff we spoke with at this visit 
said they were at times short staffed due to vacancies and sickness. They said they felt 
staffing had improved on the whole, from about September 2011 onwards in that there 
was an increased willingness from senior managers to provide cover from the trust's 
bank staff and they could see vacant posts being recruited to.  However, they said it 
was often not possible to find staff to cover sickness, especially when there was not 
much notice of sickness given. Staff also told us that some bank staff are reluctant to 
work on wards where the work is seen as 'heavy'. They said bank staff can 'pick and 
choose' where they want to work. Some staff said there had been an increase recently 
in the numbers of staff leaving as they did not like the changes that had been made 
such as re-locations of wards from other hospitals and expectations of more flexible 
working.

Page 57



Page 16 of 24

The acting divisional nurse told us they have introduced a new initiative, commencing 
December 2011.  A 'pool' of 10 bank staff are employed for each shift on a daily basis 
to be deployed where needed to cover staffing deficits such as last minute sickness. 
Documentation was provided to show this had been established and how it will work. 

Some staff said they didn't think sickness absence was well managed. One staff said 
they had raised concerns about 'lazy' staff and staff who were frequently sick but didn't 
see anything change. Another said they thought this was improving and being managed
better.

Most staff said they received good support from their managers. We received 
comments such as:

"Best sister I have ever worked for."
"Brilliant support, very approachable."
"Sister leads by her own good example."

However, some staff said they did not receive good support and guidance. They said 
there were issues with consistency of leadership having had a number of ward sisters in
a short period of time. They also said they were often "Shattered and stressed" due to 
working short staffed and not being able to take adequate breaks.

One staff told us that leadership was not good on one particular ward and they had 
raised concerns with senior managers about this and the staffing levels with regard to 
rehabilitation for people who have had a stroke. They said that reduced staffing levels 
results in prolonged lengths of stay, reduced quality of care and dignity and can be a 
co- factor for health care acquired infections. (HCAI's). We asked the trust to provide us
with their response to these concerns. They assured us that staffing levels on this ward 
had been developed, taking into account, national and regional guidance for stroke 
services. They also said stroke service development is under discussion at the trust 
board meetings. When we looked at recent rotas for this ward, we saw that staff 
sickness was occurring daily and they were working below the agreed numbers on 27 
shifts out of 63. While this suggests that for 42% of the time over the three week period 
we looked at, they have functioned without a full staff complement. This in effect means
usually that they may be one staff person down on a shift.  This may be a qualified 
nurse or a clinical support worker. 

Most staff said they worked in good supportive teams. However, in one area we visited 
staff said they had not properly established their team and sense of team as they were 
all new to working together. This is a ward that has been established to to provide 
additional capacity within the hospital to help manage operational pressures during the 
winter period. We saw that the sickness absence rate in this area seemed higher than 
in others. Some days there were up to four people sick. 

Most staff said they felt their concerns about staffing levels were listened to and taken 
seriously. They said they complete incident reports whenever there are staff shortages 
and these are then investigated. We saw evidence of some of these and saw that short 
term staff cover from other wards was recorded and action taken such as sickness 
monitoring was documented. Staff said they had increased confidence in matrons who 
have the responsibility of ensuring safe staffing levels and understood that 'cover' 
cannot always be found at the last minute. They said that matrons would assess 

Page 58



Page 17 of 24

situations of staff shortage and move people from wards that were better staffed if 
needed. Records on the wards did not show evidence of this and how this was 
managed. Matrons' daily checks showed where staff shortages had been identified but 
did not record what cover had been provided. The chief nurse said they would be 
looking at ways in which they could represent in future the cover that was provided. 

We looked at rotas covering a three week period on three different wards. These 
showed that there were still a significant number of times when they were working 
below the agreed numbers of nursing and support staff. On one ward 46% of shifts 
were short of at least one staff member, on the other two wards it was 42.8% and 
34.9% % of the shifts worked where they were one staff member below the agreed 
numbers. Staff told us that these shortfalls were in the main, due to staff sickness 
incidents. As mentioned above, the rotas did not have information recorded as to 
whether staff cover was provided from other wards to cover any of these deficits. On 
the day of our visit, they were working below agreed numbers on two out of the three 
wards visited. We did see that efforts were being made to try and find staff cover. 
However, on one ward, they had been trying for two days to find staff to cover gaps in 
shifts to no avail. 

Staff told us that new documentation called   'patient nursing care checks' had recently 
been introduced. These are a self assessment to be completed by the nurse in charge 
of the shift. They are asked to assess whether they have met people's needs properly, 
if they are happy with the level of care they have provided, what has gone well and if 
they have identified any problems such as staffing levels that need to be reported to 
matrons. We saw that these were being completed and in the majority of cases staff 
had said they had provided care in a timely manner, despite being short of staff. We 
also saw that actions had been identified such as needing additional staffing due to 
individual patient needs and it had been recorded that this had been provided from the 
'pool'.

Matrons have also introduced rota audits. We saw from these that issues regarding the 
planning of rotas were being addressed. For example, uneven roster shift allocation 
such as deficits on some shifts and surplus on others. We saw that meetings were 
planned with ward sisters and managers to discuss these matters. 

It is evident that on the three wards we visited that they are frequently understaffed.  It 
is also evident that since our inspection in August 2011 efforts have continued to be 
made to ensure sufficiency of staff at all times. Staff also said that matrons endeavour 
to fill staff gaps from other wards although there is not always a record of these 
changes. The wards we visited were Ward 28, 29 and 34 and these primarily care for 
elderly people. In order to ensure that the needs of elderly patients are met effectively 
the trusts needs to assure itself that they have sufficient staff in place to meet people's 
needs and also contingencies in place in the event of staff absence. 

As noted under outcome 4 these staff shortages have not resulted in significant harm to
patients.  However, the risks to patients are heightened when these wards are routinely 
functioning understaffed

Our judgement
We have assessed this outcome as moderate concerns.

Page 59



Page 18 of 24

There are often times  on wards 28, 29 and 34 when there are insufficient staff, and it is
difficult to get more staff quickly, to provide care that is always safe, effective and meets
people's needs.

Page 60



Page 19 of 24

Improvement actions

The table below shows where improvements should be made so that the service provider 

maintains compliance with the essential standards of quality and safety.

Regulated activity Regulation Outcome

Diagnostic and screening 
procedures

Regulation 12 HSCA
2008 (Regulated 
Activities) Regulations 
2010

Outcome 08: Cleanliness and 
infection control

Why we have concerns:

We have assessed this outcome area as a minor 
concern.

The trust has standards for hygiene and cleanliness 
but these are not effectively maintained and managed 
in all areas. The processes in place do not always 
promote the prevention and control of infections. There
are no assurances that staff are following procedures 
for mattress and bed cleaning. There is inconsistent 
practice with the following of infection control 
procedures around the isolation rooms and bays

Treatment of disease, disorder 
or injury

Regulation 12 HSCA
2008 (Regulated 
Activities) Regulations 
2010

Outcome 08: Cleanliness and 
infection control

Why we have concerns:

We have assessed this outcome area as a minor 
concern.

The trust has standards for hygiene and cleanliness 
but these are not effectively maintained and managed 
in all areas. The processes in place do not always 
promote the prevention and control of infections. There
are no assurances that staff are following procedures 
for mattress and bed cleaning. There is inconsistent 
practice with the following of infection control 
procedures around the isolation rooms and bays

Action
we have asked the provider to take

Page 61



Page 20 of 24

The provider must send CQC a report about how they are going to maintain compliance 
with these essential standards.

This report is requested under regulation 10(3) of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 
(Regulated Activities) Regulations 2010.

The provider's report should be sent to us within 14 days of the date that the final review of 
compliance report is sent to them.

CQC should be informed in writing when these improvement actions are complete.

Page 62



Page 21 of 24

Compliance actions

The table below shows the essential standards of quality and safety that are not being 

met. Action must be taken to achieve compliance.

Regulated activity Regulation Outcome

Diagnostic and screening procedures Regulation 9 HSCA
2008 (Regulated 
Activities)
Regulations 2010

Outcome 04: Care and 
welfare of people who 
use services

How the regulation is not being met:

We have assessed this outcome area as a 
moderate concern.

The delivery of care is not always safe and 
effective. The service needs to take action to 
improve and maintain their arrangements for 
delivering care treatment and support to 
protect people against the risks associated 
with unsafe or inappropriate care, treatment 
or support.

Treatment of disease, disorder or injury Regulation 9 HSCA
2008 (Regulated 
Activities)
Regulations 2010

Outcome 04: Care and 
welfare of people who 
use services

How the regulation is not being met:

We have assessed this outcome area as a 
moderate concern.

The delivery of care is not always safe and 
effective. The service needs to take action to 
improve and maintain their arrangements for 
delivering care treatment and support to 
protect people against the risks associated 
with unsafe or inappropriate care, treatment 
or support.

Treatment of disease, disorder or injury Regulation 22 
HSCA 2008 
(Regulated
Activities)
Regulations 2010

Outcome 13: Staffing

How the regulation is not being met:

Page 63



Page 22 of 24

We have assessed this outcome as moderate
concerns.

There are often times  on wards 28, 29 and 
34 when there are insufficient staff, and it is 
difficult to get more staff quickly, to provide 
care that is always safe, effective and meets 
people's needs.

Diagnostic and screening procedures Regulation 22 
HSCA 2008 
(Regulated
Activities)
Regulations 2010

Outcome 13: Staffing

How the regulation is not being met:

We have assessed this outcome as moderate
concerns.

There are often times  on wards 28, 29 and 
34 when there are insufficient staff, and it is 
difficult to get more staff quickly, to provide 
care that is always safe, effective and meets 
people's needs.

The provider must send CQC a report that says what action they are going to take to 
achieve compliance with these essential standards.

This report is requested under regulation 10(3) of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 
(Regulated Activities) Regulations 2010.

The provider's report should be sent to us within 14 days of the date that the final review of 
compliance report is sent to them.

Where a provider has already sent us a report about any of the above compliance actions, 
they do not need to include them in any new report sent to us after this review of 
compliance.

CQC should be informed in writing when these compliance actions are complete.

Page 64



Page 23 of 24

What is a review of compliance?

By law, providers of certain adult social care and health care services have a legal 
responsibility to make sure they are meeting essential standards of quality and safety. 
These are the standards everyone should be able to expect when they receive care. 

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) has written guidance about what people who use 
services should experience when providers are meeting essential standards, called 
Guidance about compliance: Essential standards of quality and safety.

CQC licenses services if they meet essential standards and will constantly monitor 
whether they continue to do so. We formally review services when we receive information 
that is of concern and as a result decide we need to check whether a service is still 
meeting one or more of the essential standards. We also formally review them at least 
every two years to check whether a service is meeting all of the essential standards in 
each of their locations. Our reviews include checking all available information and 
intelligence we hold about a provider. We may seek further information by contacting 
people who use services, public representative groups and organisations such as other 
regulators. We may also ask for further information from the provider and carry out a visit 
with direct observations of care.

When making our judgements about whether services are meeting essential standards, 
we decide whether we need to take further regulatory action. This might include 
discussions with the provider about how they could improve.  We only use this approach 
where issues can be resolved quickly, easily and where there is no immediate risk of 
serious harm to people.

Where we have concerns that providers are not meeting essential standards, or where we 
judge that they are not going to keep meeting them, we may also set improvement actions
or compliance actions, or take enforcement action:

Improvement actions: These are actions a provider should take so that they maintain
continuous compliance with essential standards.  Where a provider is complying with 
essential standards, but we are concerned that they will not be able to maintain this, we 
ask them to send us a report describing the improvements they will make to enable them 
to do so.

Compliance actions: These are actions a provider must take so that they achieve
compliance with the essential standards.  Where a provider is not meeting the essential 
standards but people are not at immediate risk of serious harm, we ask them to send us a 
report that says what they will do to make sure they comply.  We monitor the 
implementation of action plans in these reports and, if necessary, take further action to 
make sure that essential standards are met.

Enforcement action: These are actions we take using the criminal and/or civil procedures
in the Health and Social Care Act 2008 and relevant regulations.  These enforcement 
powers are set out in the law and mean that we can take swift, targeted action where 
services are failing people.

Page 65



Page 24 of 24

Information for the reader

Document purpose Review of compliance report

Author Care Quality Commission

Audience The general public

Further copies from 03000 616161 / www.cqc.org.uk

Copyright Copyright © (2010) Care Quality Commission 
(CQC). This publication may be reproduced in 
whole or in part, free of charge, in any format 
or medium provided that it is not used for 
commercial gain. This consent is subject to 
the material being reproduced accurately and 
on proviso that it is not used in a derogatory 
manner or misleading context. The material 
should be acknowledged as CQC copyright, 
with the title and date of publication of the 
document specified.

Care Quality Commission

Website www.cqc.org.uk

Telephone 03000 616161

Email address enquiries@cqc.org.uk

Postal address Care Quality Commission
Citygate
Gallowgate
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 4PA

Page 66



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 21 March 2012 

Subject: Health Inequalities – Looked After Children 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Health inequalities was identified as a specific work area at the Board’s meeting in 
July 2011.  To date, the Board has considered the development and production of the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), in addition to some of the data sets 
available as a result.  The Scrutiny Board also specifically considered details 
associated with two specific Medium Super Output Areas (MSOAs) from the City to 
help highlight and demonstrate the inequalities that exist across the City.   

 
2. Draft action plans from the Health and Wellbeing City Priority Plan (2011-15) were 

presented to the Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board at its meeting on 26 January 
2012, which focus on delivering the following strategic priorities: 

 

• Help protect people from the harmful effects of tobacco 

• Support more people to live safely in their own homes 

• Give people choice and control over their health and social care services 

• Make sure the people who are the poorest improve their health the fastest 
 

3. The priority ‘Make sure the people who are the poorest improve their health the 
fastest’ essentially relates to addressing health inequalities across the City.  Within 
this priority area, the following priority actions are outlined with a range of supporting 
activities: 

 

• Minimise the impact of poverty on health of under 5s 

• Action on housing, transport and environment to improve health and wellbeing 

• Support people back into work and to healthy employment 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 9

Page 67



 

 

• Increase advice and support to minimise debt and maximise income 

• Ensure equitable access to services that prevent and reduce ill-health 
 
4. The above priority areas are being used to provide the focus for a series of working 

group meetings to deliver this aspect of the Scrutiny Board’s work.  At the time of the 
Board meeting, working group meetings will have taken place covering the following 
areas: 

 

• Minimise the impact of poverty on health of under 5s 

• Action on housing, transport and environment to improve health and wellbeing 
 
5. Due to the timing of the meeting, the working group meeting that considered ‘Minimise 

the impact of poverty on health of under 5s’, this did not focus on any specific details 
associated with Looked After Children.  As such, the purpose of this report is to 
present some information to allow the Board to specifically consider this area. 

 
Looked After Children 
 
6. At its meeting on 7 March 2012, Executive Board considered a report of the Director 

of Children’s Services that provided an update on the number of looked after children 
in the city and advising of the key outcomes for children. The report also set out the 
key initiatives being taken forward to reduce the number of looked after children and 
to ensure that those children looked after by the City of Leeds receive high quality 
care.  The Executive Board report is attached at Appendix 1.  The extract from the 
draft minute from the Executive Board meeting is set out below: 

 
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report providing an update on the 
number of looked after children in the city and advising of the key outcomes for 
children, for whom Members act as a corporate parent. In addition, the report detailed 
the key initiatives that were being taken forward to reduce the number of looked after 
children and to ensure that those children looked after by the City of Leeds were in 
receipt of high quality care. 
  
Copies of the recently published Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Inquiry 
Report entitled, ‘External Placements 2012’ had been circulated to Board Members 
prior to the meeting, by way of some background information. 
  
Members highlighted the need to ensure that more placements were undertaken by 
in-house carers and less by the Independent Fostering Agency and welcomed the 
related review which had been undertaken by the Scrutiny Board (Children and 
Families). In addition, Members emphasised the need to ensure that the 
communications process with such foster carers was clear and effective. In response 
to the comments made, the Executive Member for Children’s Services paid tribute to 
and thanked the Scrutiny Board for all of the work it had undertaken in the past year, 
which had been very constructive and helpful. The suggestions made regarding the 
recruitment of in-house foster carers were acknowledged, however it was emphasised 
that the such recruitment was complex and did not solely relate to financial incentives. 
    
In conclusion, the Executive Member for Children’s Services reassured the Board that 
Children’s Services would not be complacent in respect of its efforts to continue to 
improve the levels of service provided to young people. 
  

Page 68



 

 

RESOLVED – 
 

(a) That the progress made by Children’s Services in stabilising numbers of looked 
after children be noted. 
 

(b) That the strategy and key actions being taken by Children’s Services and partners 
to ‘Turn the Curve’ on the number of looked after children in Leeds be endorsed. 

 
7. It should be noted that the Deputy Director (Safeguarding, Specialist and Targeted 

Services) has been invited to attend the meeting and address any questions raised by 
the Board. 

 
Recommendations 
 
8. To consider the information presented and identify any specific issues to be included 

in the Board’s report relating to health inequalities. 
 
Background documents  
 

• None used 
 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�����������	��
�����������
	������������������

��������������������������


�����������	������

�� !�����"��#���$�����
	�������%"$
&��������

���������	����
�����

��
����
		�������� ������ �����

�	���
��
�����
�������	��
�������
� �

���� ������ ���
��
������ 	��� ���

���� 
��� ���������� 
��� ��������� 
���
������
������

������ �����

�����������������
��� 
��	���!


"���� ������ �����

#�������������������
������	������

�����$�������	���
������ ������ �����

�	���
��
����������������	���
�����%���������&�
����� ����

�������$���� ����

��''��(����'������������

�
'(� )��*����	����!��
�����
���
����������	�������!�����
�
����
������(�&��������������� ����	�


��*���
	���� ���
����� ���)����� ���  �����
��������
�������	� ���� ������ +� ��������,�  �� ����
!��
����,��-�����.�
����
�������!��
�����
���/
��
����0��������.�
����
�� ����������
*����

������1��	��

��������	������
�����
�������������
��1���
����
*���������
������)����(�����

�
2(� -��������������
��������
���

�������)������
����������+-����������!����,������

������������

��� ����	�
��*���
	�������
�������������
�����
������� ��!��
����,��0��������
����
�������
�
�� 

��
��� �
�� 
�� ���
��� ���  ���� ��� ���� 
��� ������ 
�����
���� 1���� 
��*��� 
	����
���
����(� ��� )����� ���� ��� ��� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� �
�� ��
 �
����� 
��� ������ 
��� ����
�
������ ����	�
��*���
	�������
�����
��	�����������
����0����� ���23''�(�4�1����������
��� ���� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ���  ���� ��
������

� ����� ����� 
��� ����� ������� �
���
���������� ��� �����
��� �����	��
��
�(� � �	� ���� ��� ��� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ��� )����� �
��
�����
����
�������
����
���
����
���	�������
������

������ ������������1��
�� ��'553�
��*���

	���� ���
����� ��� ���� ����� 6'� 7
���� 23'2(� %��������� �

�������� 	��� 
� 	������� 89� ���
�����
1��
���
������������!�����
�:���

����������(��

�
6(� 0�������� ���� ����
����� �����
��� ��� ���� ��� ���� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
������ �
	�
�� 
���


�������
��
��� ��� 
� �����	��
��� 
����������� 
��� 
�� ������
��� ���������� ��� +-������� ����
!����,(� -���� ������� 

��� ����� ���� ���� ���
����� 
��� *��� 
�������  ����� �
*���  ��!��
����,��
0��������
����
�������������������������� ����	�
��*���
	�������
����(��

(��
�
�

�&������
��������0������

*���

-�
���3''6�2;�<9589�

Agenda Item 20

Page 271Page 71



�

�

����''����������

'(� =$��������.�
��� ���
�*��� �������� ��������������
��� ��!��
����,��0�������� �����
 �
������
��� �����	�
��*���
	�������
����(�

�
2(� -��� =$�������� .�
��� ��� 
�*��� ��� �������� ���� ���
����� 
��� *��� 
�������  ����� �
*���  ��

!��
����,��0��������
����
����������+-��������!����,����������� ����	�
��*���
	�������
�����
���)����(��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 272Page 72



�

�

�)�� *�����������	����������
�
'('�� )��*����	����!��
�����
���
����������	�������!�����
�
����
������(�&��������������� ����	�


��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ��� )����� ��� ���� �	� ���� ������ +� ��������,�  �� ���� !��
����,�� -�����
.�
���� 
��� ���� !��
����� 
��� /
��
���� 0�������� .�
��� �
��  ���� ������
*���� 
� �����1� �	�
�

��������	������
�����
�������������
��1���
����
*���������
������)����(�����

�
'(2� -����������������������� ����1����
�����
������ ������� ����	� 
��*���
	�������
�����
���

��	�������� ����
 ����*������������	������
�����	���1���������
���
��������
����
����(�
-��� ������� ����� ����� ���� ���� *��� �����
������ ��
�� 
���  ����� �
*��� 	��1
��� ��� � ������� ����
��� ����	� 
��*���
	�������
�����
������������
�� ���������
�����
��*���
	���� ������!�����	�
)��������������������

�����
��(��
�

�)�� ���#+�����������'������

2('�� ��� 7
���� 23'3� !��
����,�� 0�������� ��� )����� 1�����
��� ���� �� >���� �	� 
�� ������������
�������  �� ���� ?����� 0�����
��� �	� 0�
��� 	��� !��
����� 
��� /
��
���(� � -���� 	�

�1��� �1��
������������
���
��
���

�
���������� ��@	������1���������
����������������	��������	��
���
�������������
���������������	�����
���
 
�����
����(��

�
2(2�� ��� ��

����� ��� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
������ @	����� 	����� 
� ��� ��� �	� 
��
�� 1����� �
�����

��

������������1
���������������������
�������

•� ���
��������� 	��� ����������� 
��� �
�
�� �������������� ���
������ ���� !������
�����������/�
��1��*�1����������		������
���� �����

•� 0�������� 1���� ���� �
������� ��� ���
����� 
��� ������ ����
�� 
�� ���� ������ �	� ������� ����
��������	
��
�� ��
*��1�(���

•� �������1����������

�����	��
����

�����(��

•� �������1������������
�������	���
������������1��	���
��*���
	�������
����(��
�
2(6�� ���1
��������������$���	� ������
��
��	��� ��������������
��)������$����������
������	��
���

�����
������������� �����	�
��*���
	�������
�����������������	����'6<3��������� ���2338����
';6;��������� ���23'3(���

�
2(;�� =		��������
���������������������
��� ����
�*����
�������	�����������������%

��
�������

�����������1��*��	�����������������.�
�����
������0��������.�
������	
��
�
��1���(�����
���
������������

������	��
���1��*���� ����������������������
�������
��������	
��������������������

�	������	�����������������������(�

�
2(5�� 7���������


������������
������	��
��� �����	�����
��������
����������
��
��*���
	�������
�����

�
��� ������� ��������� ��
�� ������ ���
����� 
��� ������ ����
�� ��� ���� ���������� 
��� ��
��
��������� ���� ��� ���� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
��� ���������� ������ ��������� ��������� 
�
�������
�����		����	����
��������1��*����1�������
����������������
��
���	
��
���(��

�
2(:�� .��
��������������������	��
*����)��������� ������������.���
���
�������������	�
��1��*��	�

����!��
��/�����
��!����� ����!�����
��
���� �
��������������
������������� ���������
�����

��� ������ ����
�(� � 7�� ���� 
������ ��� �����
��� 	������� 	��� !��
����,�� 0�������� 
���
���������� ������

���� �	� ��������
������������ 	��� ��
���
 
�� ���
������ ����������
��
���
������	
��
�����
�� ��������	������	� ����!�����
�
��������
�������1��*���������������������
����!��
����,��-�����
�������)��

�0
	���
������!��
����,��.�
��(��

�
2(<�� &��������������� ����	����
�����
�������������
�� ��������
��*���
	����1
��
�������
��

�����	�����������+� ��������,�������	����1����������

�����!��
�����
���������%���
�,��%

�(��
�
,)�������������������

Page 273Page 73



�

�

,)��� -�' �������	���������������

6('('�� -������ ����	�
��*���
	�������
��������)������
�� �������
��
�������
�����������2335��1����
���� ����� �����	��
��� ����� �������  ��1���� 2338� 
��� 23'3(� � A�
���� '� 
��� 2� �������� 
�
����
�
�������
������

�
�

������	�������� �����	�
��*���
	�������
��������)�����������
����	�

��*���
	�������
���������'3�333����
�����������������

�����

������
�
����� ������
������

�
����� �����
����������������1������
�������

��������
�������
�
����������(��

6('(2�� A�
��� '� �

����
���� ��
��� 
�� 
� ����
�� �	� ���� 1��*� ������
*��� ��� ����������� ��
������� ����
��� ����	�
��*���
	�������
��������)������
�����������
������	��
��������
�������������
���
��
�(� � ��� ����� ��� 23'3� ������ 1���� ';6;� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
��� ��� ����� ��� 23''�
';;5(��@������';����	�/� ��
���23'2�������1����';52�
��*���
	�������
��������)����(���

6('(6� 4�1������������
���

�������
��������
���

�������)������
����������+-����������!����,����
��

��������������� ����	�
��*���
	�������
�������������
�����
������� ��!��
����,��0��������

����
��������
��

��
����
��
�����
������ ������� ����
���������
�����
����1����
��*���

	�������
����(����)������������ ����	�
��*���
	�������
������
����
 �
�����
���������
�������
�
������ ����	�
��*���
	�������
�����
��	�����������
����0����� ���23''�(�4�1����������
��� ���� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ���  ���� ��
������

� ����� ����� 
��� ����� ������� �
���
���������� ��� �����
��� �����	��
��
�(� �	� ���� ��� ��� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ��� )����� �
��
�����
����
�������
����
���
����
���	�������
������

������ ����� �������6'�7
����23'2�������
1��
��  �� '553� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ��� ���� ����(� %��������� �

�������� 	��� 
� 	������� 89�
���
�����1��
���
������������!�����
�:���

����������(��

6('(;� 0�������� ���� ����
����� �����
��� ��� ���� ��� ���� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
������ �
	�
�� 
���

�������
��
��� ��� 
� �����	��
��� 
����������� 
��� 
�� ������
��� ���������� ��� +-������� ����
!����,(�-�����������
����	� ����� ������� ��
�
��
���6(5���1
�������������� �������
�����
���
*��� 
�������  ����� �
*���  �� !��
����,�� 0�������� 
��� �
������� ��� ������� ���� ��� ��� �	�

��*���
	�������
��������)����(��

.���	����"��#����������	�������������������/������''��(�%���0�1�����&�
�

"$
�������������/������''��(�%���0�1�����&

53

:3

<3

93

83

'33

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�
�

)���� 9: 95 99 98 99 86 85

0�
������� ���� 5< 58 :' :2 :6 :9 <6

!���������� 99 99 86 82 8' 85 85

=��

�� 55 55 55 5; 55 59 58

2335 233: 233< 2339 2338 23'3 23''

Page 274Page 74



�

�

.���	����"�����2���'�����������	���������������������#����������	�����������	������

�
6('(5� -
 
�� '� ��������� 
�� 
�

����� �	� ���� ��� ���� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
�����  �� 
��� ������ 
��

B
��
��� 23''� 
��� 
�
��� ��� ����� ��(� � -���� �����
���� 
�� �����
��� ��� ���� ��� ��� 
���
������������	�
��*���
	�������
�����������;���
���
���
������
������������
���� ��1����''�

���'5(� �-�����
�� �����
��� ��
�� �����
������ ��������������
����������
����
����

���������
���������
�
����������������
�� ���
�����
������
��(��4�1������-
 
��'�

�������
����������
������
�����	������
����������������������	������	�������
����(���

�
6('(:� -
 
�� 2� ��������� 
�� 
�

����� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
�����  �� ���������(� -����� ��� 
�� ����"

���������
����� �	� ���
����� 
��� ������ ����
�� 	���� 
� ��

� �����
��� 
��� 
� .

�*� .�������
 
�*������� 1���� ����
���� 1���� ���� ���
�� ����

����� 
�� 
� 1��
�� 
��� 
�� �����"
���������
������	����
�����	����
�����
�� 
�*������(��

�
3� ������-�' ����������#����������	������� (��+��+��������4�������-��������

�

$+��.����� 3";� 5"'3� ''"'5� ':�"'<�

B
��23''� 6;;��2;C�� 658��25C�� ;58��62C�� 2<2��'8C��

����23''� ;28��63C�� 6<'��2:C�� 68:��29C�� 2''��'9C��

�
3� ������"��#����������	������� (���	�����(�

�

��	�����(� ������?D� .

�*� E� .

�*�
.�������

���
�� E� ���
��
.�������

#�

�
4����
���

@�����

� <8C� 6C� 6C� '2C� 6C�

�
�
,)�� 
	��������������'�����
�
6(2('�� %�����������������������	���
��*���
	�������
�������������������� ���
��������������
�����

������ �������1���� 
� �

������� ��
�� ��� 
�������
��� ��� ������ �����(� � -
 
�� 6� ��������� 
��

�

����� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����(� ��� ���1�� ��
�� 2<C� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
���  �����

"��#����������	�������������������/����%,������	�����&��"�����������'��������

���	�������

3

23

;3

:3

93

'33

'23

';3

':3

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�
�

)���� !���������� 0�
������

������ ����

Page 275Page 75



�

�

�������������
����1������������ �����	
��
������$�������	
��
���%

����1����%
���������/
��
��
���1��*�(� �B����������

	��	� 
��*���
	�������
��������)�������5;(;C��
����

����1����	������
�
�����1����
�	��������������������� ������

����1����������������
���������
�����(��-�������
����������� 1���� ���� �
*�� ��� �	� ���� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ����

����� �-
 
�� '��� 1�����
�����
������
��5:C��	�
��*���
	�������
�����
���������'3���
����	�
��(���

�
3� ���,��"��#����������	������� (������'����

�

/������!
��� /
��
��
���1��*�
%

�������

%

�������
1����%
������

&��������

�
!
���

!��
�����

1
������

��������

�
5;(5C�

�
'5(5C�

�
''(5C�

�
'3(5C�

�
9C�
�

�
6(2(2�� -������ ����	����
��������)������

�������������������/�����������������

���������
��

�����
���� �����	��
��
�� ��� ��������� ��� ���� �
���� �����
��� ��� ���� ��� ���� �	� 
��*��� 
	����
���
����(� � %�������
�� ������������ /��������� ������� ��/��� �

�������� 1���� ����� 1�����
���
����� 
��� ������ ����
�� �
�� ������ ��
�� ���
�� ����  �� ����  �� 
�� ��"������ 	������
�

������F� 	��� �$
��
�� ����
�$� ������ ��� 
� 

���� �� 
���������(� �4�1������ ������������
/�����������������

��������
�����1�

��� ���������������������

�*��	�
�
�

 �
�����	���"
������	�������

�������(� ���������� ���� �������������	� 	�������
����� ���
������	��
��� �
�����
	���!��
����,��0�������(��

�
6(2(6�� -����� ���
�����

���
������ ��� ���������	� ���������

��

��������
���
� �����1��	� ���������

�

���������� ����������
�������1
�(� ��
������� ���������	� ������������/����������������
���
�$����

����������

��

���������
������������������1�������������	��
���

���
��� ������
���
�����
������ ��
�� �

������� ��� ���� ��� ���� ��������
����� �
��� ���
���������� ��
 
�� �2<:�
�/���
���'3'��$����

����������

��

��������
��'9E'2E''�(�

�
,),� *����'������� ����(��
�
6(6('�� -�����
 �
�����	�
��

����������
����	�
������
�����	�1����������
�����
�������������
��
���

 ����� �
������ 1���� �
����� ��
�� �
�� ����� ������ �����(� � -
 
�� ;� ���1�� ���� �

�������
��
 �
����	�������
�
�����������������
�����
������

������ ����(����������
������
��������� ����	�
���
����� 
��� ������ ����
�� �$����������� ������ �������� �

�������� �
�� �����
���(� � -����
�
�������
�����		���
����� ��� �����

��
�������
����������	������	�1��*���� ��������������������

����
����

����������������������
�(��4�1���������
�����
�������������
���

�������
����
������

���������
������
�������

����
����
 
�(��

�
3� ���5��"��#����������	��������*����'������� ����(�

�

%

�������0�
 �
���� ���61��� 
����
��(� �����
-��+	 ��
��

����1���

���:2�0�
 �
���� �	�
�

��������
�	�!)��

%������
��� �	� ���
�����

��*��� 
	���� 1���� 6� ��� �����
�

���������������������
��

��)�7� ''(6� '3(:� �,),7�

���:6�0�
 �
���� �	�
!)��

%������
��� �	� ���
�����

��*��� 
	���� 	��� 
�� 
�
��� 2(5�
��
���1����
�� ���� ��� ������
�

������� 	��� 
�� 
�
��� 2�
��
���

89)57� :9(:� ::(5� 8�)87�

�

Page 276Page 76



�

�

�
,)5� :����'����������#����������	�������
�
� ��������'�	��'�
�
6(;('�� ����� ����	��������
����������

��	����
�����
�������������
��1����
����� ��
��*���
	����

 ��������	
��
����
������ ���
	��	�����
����
�

•� -��������� �����������1�����������

�����

�������F�

•� -������
�������
�� ����������� ��
���

�	��������

�1��*���1������1�

��
�
����
���
���������F�

•� -�������� ����������������
������*����������

�
�� ������������

�1��*��F�

•� -����

��	����������
���
����������
�����
���������
�� �������1�������

�
�(�
�
6(;(2�� -����� 	
������ 
��� ������������  �� @	����� 
�� �
��� �	� ������ ����������� �	� �
	���
������


��
��������(�-���B
��
���23'3�@	����������������>��������
��
��
�������������
	���
���

��*���
	�������
������
�����������
���1������1�+
����
��,(�-���������������������������
�	� 	���������
���
������������B����
���#���� ���23'3���
�����������������
 �
���� ���*����
���
������
	��	�����
���
������
����
��+����,(�

�
6(;(6� !��
����,�� ������ 
��� 

��� ���������� ����

�
��  �� @	����(� � !������
��� 	���� �	� ���� 
��

�


��������,�����
����,�������� ���)�����
����
����
�� +����,�� 	����
�� +�
���	
�����,�
������� ���
�
����
����
����
��(�������������
������������
�
��
�������

���
�������

���������������
��
������
����������������
��� ������
������
�����������������
���������
��
����
������


�
)��������
����,�������(�

�
� �����������	
����
�
6(;(;�� �������� ���23'3��������������
��
��*���
	�������
�����1��������������
��������

��������

�

1��*���������
���������������$���	�����1�����������������1��*��
*�����

����
�

������

��

����� �	� '385� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
��� ���
�� ����������� �
��� 	�
���1
�� ������
*��(� � -���

����� 
��*��� 
�� ���� ��

���� �	� ��
������ 
�
����� �
�
�� ��
������ ��
��
���� 
������ 1����
��
����������(�-���	���������	�����
�����1��������������������������
�������������
��1�

�

�� 
��
�� �	� ����� ��
������ 
������ ���� �������� ��� ��
�� �
���� ��
��
���� 
��� �����
���
�����������(�
�

6(;(5� ���
���	�
��
�����	�
��1��*��
�� ��������
�����
������
���������1�����
�
��������������
���������
*��
�����
������ ����	�
�������
��������������������������������
�(�-����
��
��
�	� �
���� 	��� 
����� ��� ������
*��� �����


��  �� ���� %��	���
���� -�
�� ��� ������� �
�����
��
������(� !����� ��
�� 
������ 
��� ����� 
��� ��� 
�������� ��� ��������

� 
��
�� 	��� 
������ 
���
����� ��
������  ����� ������	���� 
�����
���� ��	���
����� ��� ��

������ ��� ��	���� ��������
����
�������
��������������(��

�
� �

��
�����������
��������������
�
6(;(:�� !
����

���	���
��*���
	�������
�����
����� >���������������������������� ��
��������������

&����1���� @		����(� � -�� �������� ���� ����
������ 
��� ��

���� �	� �����1��� ���� ������������
&����1���� @		����� 0������� �
��  ���� ������������� 
�� �
��� �	� ���� ����
������� �	� ����
������������ 0
	���
������ ?���(� � ��� 
� ����
��� ���� �������
��� �	� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����,��
�����1���
����������1������ ��������� ������

����
�� ��������� 	����<'C� ���2338E'3� ��� ����
��������	�������	�8'C(��-�������	���
�����������

�������
������

������ ����������������������

� ��������
�����	���
�������)�����1�

��������������������(���

�
�

Page 277Page 77



�

�

����
����	�������
�����
��
�
6(;(<�� 0���� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
��� ������ ����
�� 
��� �
�����

�
�� ��
���
 
�� ��� �$�
���
����(�

!��
����,�� 0�������� 
��� ���� )��

� 0
	���
������ !��
����� .�
��� �
���  ���� 1��*����
��������� ��� ������� ��
�� ������ 
��� 
�������
��� 
��
��������� ��� �

��� ��� �
	���
��� ������
����������
�(���

�
6(;(9�� ��1�
��
��������������������
�����������1��*����������������		������
��1�����������
���

�����������
��
���������������
�� ��
�����*��	��$�
���
������
��� ��������
�����
�������
��1������������1�

� ��	���


�� 

�������
��
����
��"
�������������������6����	�/� ��
���
23'2(��
�

6(;(8�� �� �����

���� !��
�� 0�$�

� =$�
���
����� ��
���������� 1
�� ���������� ��� 23''(� � .
���� ��� ����
������
���� 0
	���
������ ?���� ����� ��
���������� ��� �������� 
�� 	��� �������
����� ����
����

�

��� ���
������ �
������ ��� ��

����� ��� !��
�� 0�$�

� =$�
���
����(� � -���� �
�� 
��� ��� ����� 
�
�������
���� ��������� ����
����


�� 
��� 
� 

���� ��

�� ������ ��� ����
����� ����� ������ ���
�

�����	���/� ��
���23'2(�
�

6(;('3��-��� )��

� 0
	���
������ !��
����� .�
��� ��������� ��
������ ��� ����� ������ 
��� 
��� 1��*����
�
���
��1����


��
����������
����������������(�

�
� 
	������������	����	(�������
�
6(;(''��-��� ����
������ �	� ����
������ �	� �����

� 4�

��� ������ ������������ �
��  ���� �	� ���������

1����
� 
�*
����	�
������������
��������	��
������ ����	��������
�����������(���������1�
�	������������� ������������
������������
������
�������������������������
��

��
������
���
�
�����E�
������������ ��*�����1������
������
��������������������
�����(��-����1�

����������
��� ������������
���	���������������������
��� ������������������������


����
�����
���

�����
����� ���������
�����
�������

�1��*���
��1�

�
���������
����1������������� 
�(�

6(;('2��-���������������	� ���� 
��*���
	���� ���
������
�������� ����
�����

���������
�����������
���1��
���
�������
�� �����������(� � ���233:E<�<2C��	� 
��*���
	�������
������
��
���

���
������
����������� ���23'3E''��1��
��������82C(��-�����
������

������ ����
���
���1
��
92C(�

6(;('6��-���������������	����
�����1�����������
�������

�����*��

������1��
�����

����
�������
��
������������	����<9C����233:E<����9<C����23'3E''�
�
�����
���
������

������ ����
���
���
�	�<5C(�

6(;(';��-���������������	� 
��*���
	�������
�����
����
��� 
�
�����1������� ����
��� �������
������ ���
���������
���


�� 
����
��

��� �����
���� 	����5<C� ���233<"2339� ���<:C� ���2339"2338��
9;C����2338"23'3�
���83C����23'3E''(��-�����
������

������ ����
���
���1
��<;C��������
�
�����
�(�


	�����������(���+�����������;��������������+�����	�����#��������������

6(;('5��!����$��

�G

������������������
�1
���������
�����������	����
�����
�������������
��
1������		�������������������
����

��$��������(��-����������������������
�����������������
��������������	�������������

����������
���
�	�
������
����	������������
��


�1��������
��������
���  �� ����
���� 1���� 
������� ������� ����� ������� ���� ������� ������ �
��� ��		������
+
�
�����,��������

(�
�

6(;(':��-��������
����!����$��

�G

��������� ��1����D���0�
����'�
���2��
������������
��	


���
 ��1����88�
���'3'������ ���������
��(� ����������	�'33� ������


��
��������
�����������

Page 278Page 78



�

�

��
��
���������	����
��������
������������
����1�����$����
������
������������������
�
������
�������

��	���
��:���������
���
�������������������
��������������������
������� ��
�
�����

����1�����$����
�����(��-��������
����!����$��

�G

��������� ��1����*�����
����2�
���;�
�
�����������
���������������
��
��	����8:3����2339����886����23''(�����
������

��������	�����
'333� ��
�� 1��
�� �������� ��
�� ���� ������� 1
�� 
��������� 
�� �$�������� ����� ����� ���1� 
�
����������������	������������(�
�

6(;('<��.�����������	�*�����
���2������������
����	�
��*���
	�������
�����1����
��
��������
���
�;�
���
 ������������������ >������
�������������	��
��
��������2339����5;C�
���;3C����=��
����

��� 7
���� ����������
�(� � -������ ����� ���
���� 
�1��� ��
�� 	��� 


� ���
����� ���� �
�� ���

��
��������
���1���	����;3C����23'3����2:C����23''�����=��
�����
���	����;;C����69C����
7
���(�

6(;('9��-����������
����	�
��*���
	�������
�����1���
��������'H�I"A�
��A!0=� �����������	�D���
0�
���;������ 	����:;C����2339� ���9;C� ���23''�
��� ������
���������5�I"A�	����;;C����
58C�����������
���������(��-�����
���������5�I"!������
����	����8C����2339����66C����
23''�
��� ������
���������5�I"!�� ���
������=��
����
���7
����� ����� 	����:C����8C������
���� �
��� ������(� � -���C�I"!� ���
������ =��
���� J�7
���� 	�

�  
�*� ��� 23''� 	���� ';C� ���
23'3��1������
����	
����
����������� ����
����

� 	������������	�����������������������1�����
�
����������
��	����������=��
����
���7
���(��

6(;('8��������
���� �� 
��*���
	�������
����� �������
��������
� �8:(;C���
�����������
����
��������
2339��8:('��
������
����'(:C����������
����
���	�


����
������8;(9C�(��%����������� ������

�����
��*���
	�������
������������
��������
��
�����
�����	����������23''�����3(9C�
������
23C�
 �������������
���
������
�1�����
��
�����


����
������'(;C�(���������'5C��������
��
�	� 
 ������� ����������� 
 ������ 
����� ����
��� �����
� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ��� 2(3C�
����
�������;(6C�
�����


�����
��������
����
����(�
�

6(;(23��������
���� ��
��*���
	�������
��������������
��������
��83(2C�����
����
�1�����
����
���	�



����
������82(;C�� ����
�� ��������� ��'(9C�������2339(�����
��%����������� �������
��
����23C��������
��� ���
�����������
����� 
��*���
	�������
����� ��
��


����
����� ���)�����
�'2(<C�����
�������:(6C�������������	��
��
��
�1�����
�����1
�����2339��'9C�(�

6(;(2'��@�
��2�
��*���
	�������
�����1��������
����
���$�
�����	����)����������
�����23'3"23''(�
#
�
���� 	�$��� ������$�
����������� �� ���
����1�����
������
�
�������
������� ��������� ���
�� ���� 	�$��� ������$�
������ �
�
� ��� ���� 
��������� 
��� �������� ���(� �4�1������  
���� ���

�
�

 
�� �
�
�� ���� ���

� ��� ��� �	� �
��� ��
�� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
���� ��� �$�
������
���������� ��� 	


�� 	���� 929� ��� 2339"38� ��� ;'2� ��� 23'3"''� 1��
�� ���� ��� ��� �	� ���
�����
�$�
����� 
��� ���� ��� ��� �	� �$�
������� ����� ��		����� 

��� ���������� ��� 	


(� � =$�
�������

����� 
��*���
	���� ���
����� ���������� ��1������ ��� �� �����	��
��
�� ������� ��
��
�����


�
���
����(�

� 
	�����������(���+�����������������������<����;	��������	�(�	������������������������

6(;(22����� �
�� ����		���
�� 	��� 
��*���
	���� ���
������  ��
�����	� ������ ������
�����������
������ ���
�
������
����������������
*����
��������	
��������������������
�������
��������	���������(����
����������

������	������
�������
�����������������
���������
�����	
�����(��

� 
��*���
	����
���
�����
����
���
�
������
��������
�������������������������
�������
����
������������
������������������������!��
����,��&������0��������������������	����.
��
����(�

6(;(26��)��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
��� �
��� 
�
����� 1���� ����
���� 1���� ������ ������� 
����������� ���
!��
����� 
��� ������ %���
�,�� 0���

� !
��� 
�� 1�

� 
�� ���� 
����������� �	� ���� #�������� �	�
!��
����,��0�������(��-�����
���

��������� ����������������
��������	�������������������

Page 279Page 79



�

�

•� -���+)�����%������,����
��*���
	�������
�����1
����������������1����
����������
�������



� 
��*��� 
	���� !��
����� 
���� 9� 
��� ����� 
��� ������ ��������� 
���  ����� ����� ���
����������������F�

•� -��� !��
����,�� &������ �������� �
�� 1��*��� ��� �
���������� 1���� �������� 
��*��� 
	����
���
����� 
��� ��
		� ��� ���� �	� ���� ���
����,�� ������ ��� �������� 
� �
���� �	� �������� ���
�

����
��� ���� �������� ��� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 
��� 
������ ����� ��� �������
��� ����
��
��������������
����(������������������
����������1��	�
���������1�

� ���� 
�����F�

•� -��� =
������7�� ���� !�����
��� !
���� �����,�� 	��1
��� �

�� ���
����� :������
�� >�����
���������1��������!��
��������!
���!�����
(�

6(;(2;��-��� +4
���
�G����������,�� �!��
����� ���!
���!�����
�� ���1��*���� �
���
��1���� ����)��*���
�	���� !��
����� %
���������� ������ 
��� =
������ 7�� ���� ��� �����1� ���� )��*��� �	����
!��
����,�� 0��
����� 
��� ��	���� �������� ����
������(� � -��� ���
����� 1�

�  �� ����� 
�� 
�
�
�

�������	������������������
�������
�����	
�������	�
��*���
	�������
����(�


	�����������(���+��������	��������+��;��+����

6(;(25��7
���
��*���
	�������
�����
�������������
��1�

��
����
��
�����������������������
������
���
�������������	�	���
������������
����������
�����
�������������
���
*��	�����
����(��

6(;(2:��0��������"7
��23'3�����+!��
�����0�
���%��>���,��
����
�������
��
�����	�
�����������������:�
���
����,�� ������ 
������ )����� K� 


� 
����� 
�� ����
������ 
� 
���� ����� 
��� ����
��
 
��
��������� ��� ���� 
���� 
����� ���� ������ ����
�(� �!��
����� 0�
��� �
�� 

��� 	������ ������� ��� 
�
�
�������	� 
��
������ ���
�������������*������0��
������%
�*�
���-���#�������4�

��
����
��
 ����������
������-���!�������������������
		�
���1��*�1�����1����


���������	�
��������������
����
��
��������)�����������
���
��1��*���������� ���������
�������

6(;(2<��-��� )����� L/���� ����� -

���L� ��
��� 
��*��� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� 1���� 
� �
������ 
���� 
���
�����
���
���������(���

6(;(29��-��� ������ �������� �
�� 1��*��� �
���
�� 1���� ���� ���
����,�� �����(� � �

� ������ �
��� 
�
������
���� 
��*� 1������ ���� �������� 1��� 1��*�� ��� �
���������� 1���� ���� ������ 
��������
�������
����������������
��
��*���
	��������������
���
���
����������������

�
����
�������
��������������(��-�����
������
�����������������
*������	���������������
���������(��

6(;(28��-��� )��*��� �	���� !��
����,�� 0��
����� �����1� �
�� ���������� 1���� 
� ����
���� �����1� �	�
+4
���	���A��1������,(��-����
������������
����������
����,��������
��������
��1������
��
�������������������� ��
��


����
������
��������������
	��������� ��
������

���������
 �
�����
����� ��

���������� 1���� �
����� 
��� *��� 
��
��� 
��� ����� 	�����������  ���  ���� 

����
���
��������� ���������
������
 ���� ����������
������ ���
� �
�����	�
���������(� �-�����1�

� ��
����
����������
��
�������

��
���	�����
����	�����)��*����	����!��
����,��0��
����(�

,)0� ������+(���������1�,�

6(5('� -�����
���	����*����
����������
���		����������
���������
	�
���������������� ����	�
��*���

	�������
������

•� =		�������
����������
�����������
�����
����
�
�����������������������F�����������������������

•� -
���������������������������	
��
����
�������������	�������F� � � �����������

•� %

�������!�����F������

•� !
���%

�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�

Page 280Page 80



�

�

-���� �������� ��������� ��� ���� 1���� 
� ����
��� �	� ���� 
�������  ����� ������
*��� ���
23'2E23'6(����

*������������������(�=������������;��#�

�� ����(�������

6(5(2�� =
�
��0�
���-�
���
��� ��������
 
���������!��
����,��!������(�-���	���������	������������

�
�����1� ��� ��

����� ��� =
�
�� 0�
��� -�
��� �
��� ��1�  ���� ���
�������� ��� ���� �
�������
0�
���	�E7
�������1���������=
�
��0�
���-�
���������

��(��=
�
��0�
���-�
���1�

� �����
���
��������
��������������� ��0����� ���23'2(�

�
6(5(6�� =
�
��0�
���-�
���1�

�������	��
���1��*�1����	
��
����
����

������
�����	�������	����2���
��

�
�� ���
�� �
��� �

���� ��� !��
����,�� !�������� �����	��


�� �
�������� ������ 
�*�
�� ���  ������

��*���
	���(�

�

�''���$�����'����>��'�;��#�

�
6(5(;�� -��� !������ ����������� /�
��1��*� ��� ��������� ��� �������� 
�������� ��� ������	�� ����

������ �	� ��
���
 
�� ���
����� 
��� ��� ������� ��
�� 
�������
��� �������� ��� ��������� 
�� ����
�
�
����� �����������(������� 
� ��
���������� ������	���� ��
�� 
� ���
�� ��� ��
���
 
�� ����� ����
��
����
���� 
� ������� 
���������(� -��� ������� 
���������� 1�

� ��
�� ���� ��
���������� ���
�������
����������
�,��������
������
����������������	�������
�������(���������$���������
��
���� ��� ��� �	� ���
����� �������� �������

� ��� �
������� ���������� �����	���� �
��� 
�� 	��� 
�
������� 
����������� ����
�� �$����� ������ �������� 
� �����

���� 
���������� 	���� ����

�
�
��(� �4�1������ ��� ����23'3E''�	��
���

���
���''6'��������
�����������1���� �����
���(��
.��1����3'�����
�23''�
���63������ ���23''�5<3��������
�����������1���������
���(���	�
����� �
��� �	� ����
������ ���������� ��� ��� 
������
���� ��
�� 955� ������� 
�����������1�

�  ��
����
��������23''"'2��
�������	�
����$��
��
��2;C(���

�
6(5(5�� -����� ��� �����	���� 
� ����� ��� �����	��
��
�� �����
��� ��
������ 
��� ��

���� �	� �������


�����������������
*���������������������	��
��������������
��
���
�
����
��(���	�

���
��"

������ �����1� �	� ���� ������� 
���������� ��� �����1
�(� ��� �
�� ������	���� ���� ����� ���
����
�	�� �$������� ���������(� 0������� 
��� 
������ ���  ����� ���������  �� %��	������ 4
������
�
��� 	���� ���� !������ 	��� !��
�� 
��� /
��
�� &���
���� 
��� 7
�*� %��
� 	���� )���������
?����������1����
���1��*���1����
���� ����	�
�������������������������	�
����
�����
�����
�	������������
���������(�!����
�
�������������������
���������
*�����

�����1�
������
���
������
������
��������1�
��
���������1�

� ��

��������������
�23'2(��

�
�����1�+���(�;��#��+��	���+	��������(�������������;��#��+�

�
6(5(:�� !
������
��
�����������������
���
��"
������ 	�
��1��*� �������������
���
 
�����
����� ���

������
��

������������(��
�
6(5(<�� �

� �
������� ��� ���� ����� ��1� �
��� ��� �

��� 
� ���������� ��
�� ���
����� 
���
��"
������ ������

1��*������������������������������������������
���
 
�����
����������������
��
���	
��
���(�
-����� ������� ����� ����

�
�� ��� �������� +&�������� /��� 0������,� 	���� ������ �������

�
���������������
��
������
����,�����������1����������������������
���
���
 
�����
�����������
������� ������ 
�������

� �������(� -��� ��
��"
������ ������ ��
���� ��	���
������ 1�����

�������
���� 
��� ���������� ���� ��������

� ���
�� ��� ������ ������� ��� ������	�� 1�
�� ��������
����� �������� 
��� ��1� ����� ���  ���� ��������(� � �� 
�
�� ������� ��� �����
���� ��� 
�
�� ��� ����
�������� ���������� ��
�� ��� ����������
����
��� �����������1�
����		���������� ����
*���� ��� ����
���
�(��������
�������
�������������1�

���	��� 
�*���������������

���������
�� �����

�������

Page 281Page 81



�

�

���������
�������������
�������	����$
��
��������
*����
��������
���������(�������
����-
�������0�������)�
�����������������������
���������������(�

�
6(5(9�� �

� �	� ���� �
������ ��
��"
������ ������� 
��� 
�� ��		������ ��
���� �	� ����
�������� �����

 ������������1��*��		������
���
�����������

����
����(� �4�1������1�����
��
���������
���
���
 
������������
���������$��

�����$
��
����	���1�������
������	���	���
������
��
������
������������������	����������
����������������
��
��������� 	
��
���(�=		����������
��� �����
�
��� ��� ���� ���� �	� ����������  �� �������
����� ��������  �� 
�������� 
��� ���������
���
��
����(����
� ����
���	� ���� ��	���
����� ��

������ ��� �
������� ������
�������	� ���������"
 
�����
�������������
�������� �������������������������(�

�
6(5(8�� #���
��������	������
��������
������
�����	�
���������������"����������������
�����
����������

�������� ���
������ ���� )�����0
	���
������!��
�����.�
��� �)0!.�(� �-��������	��
���� 
���
��


����� �	� ����� 1��*� ��� ��������
 
�� 
��� 1��
�� ��������� ���  ������
��� ���� ��

�� 
���
�������������������
������ ������������
���(�

�

•� �

� �	� ���� ������ �
�
�� 
������� �
������� �
��� ��
�� @�������� .
���� �������
 �
����
1��*������	����������������� ��������M������������������	������
�������� ������
��NF��

•� -����
���������������� 
�
������
���1����� ��� �������
����� ���6��
��������B(=(0(0�� ������
=
���
���.�
�
��� ��� ��������� ������1�������������(� � ��

� ��������
��� �
���������1�
�
�������

���
�
�����	��������������
���
 
��	
��
���(��?���������-���'33��������
����
������
����
�
�������������	��������	
��
������
�������
��������
�������������
�*
���
����

����
����
���������	�������������
�������
���
�
��
�����F�

•� !��
�����)�����
�
����������
���
���������	����
�	������������������
��1�

���1���������
	���������'9�-
�������0��������)�
�����������
���������������
��� ��
���������
�
������
�	�������
����
������F�

•� �� �*�

�� 
����� �
��  ���� ������
*��� �	� 


� �
������ 	
��
�� �������� ��
		� 
��� ���� )�����
0
	���
������ !��
����� .�
��� �
��� ��������� 
� 
���� �	� ��
������ �������� 1����
���������
��������������
����������1�������
��
�����F������

•� -�� �������� ��
����������� �������
��� �	� �		������� ������������ 
��� �������
��  �����
����
������ 	��� �
��	��
�����  �� ���� )����� 0
	���
������ !��
����� .�
��� 	���
���
�����
�������������
��
����
������(��

•� @�������
��
�� 	��� ����
������� ���
�����
�������
��"�
�
�������
����		�������
���

�������
�����	���
�������
����(���

�
,)8� ���������+������?��������������������������������
�

��1���������������
�
6(:('� �����

� ����
���� 1���� !��
����,�� 0�������� ��� )����� 
��� *��1�� 
�� +��������� 	��� �������,(� ��

���������
 ����������	���
���������
��������
����������	���������������
��� ��
�����

�1��*�
�
�
�����������������1�������
���	���

����
�����

�1��*���
�����������(�����	���

�1�

� ��
��

�� 1���� 1������ ���� 1��*���� �
�(� -��� ��������� �	� 
� ��	���

� �
��  �� ��
�� ���� �
��� ���
�
�����
	���� ���������������	� ��	���
������
������
�������
�������
�� �����

�
���������� ���
�
������������	���
����(�-����
����
�� ���
�����	�

�1�������������

�
�����������	����������
��� ����� 	��� �������� 	���� 
� ����

� 1��*��(� �	� 
� ���
�� ��������� ����

� 1��*� �������� ���
�
	���
��������������������1�
	
���
���������1�

� ����������(�-�����
�� �����
������������
��� 
���� �����  
���(� ��� ����� �
���� ����� 1�

� ���
���� ����������� ��������� 
��� �
��� ���

�������
����(��

�
6(:(2� �	�
	����
��
�������
�������������	���������!��
����,��0��������
�
���1�������1�
���������������

��� �

���	���� 
�� 
� ��"��	���

(� -��� �
��� �	� ��"��	���

�� �
��� �����	����� �������� 
� ���	�
�

Page 282Page 82



�

�

�����
������	���1��		������
���������
�����	
��
�,��������1�������(�-
 
��5����1����
��������
�
�� ����
������	��
��������
������������� ����	���	���

��
��������
����	���"��	���

��������
2339(�7
�
�����������
�����	���	���

�����
�����������
 �
�����	�!��
����,��0������������������
�������� ��� ���������
����� ���)�����1���
����������
���
 
��
��� ����)�����0
	���
������
!��
����� .�
��� ������������� ����
���� 	���� %��	������ #
���� -������ ��� ������ ���
�������
���������
�����	������������
�����������
��
������	������
�����
���	
��
�������)�����

���1�������������1
���	��
�
�������	���

��
������������	���������������
�� ����������(���
�
3� ���0��������������������������1������������
	������������������

�

�
���91�6� ���61��� ����1���

-��� ����� ���
-��������

-�' ��� ��� ���������� ���
����������(����

9�::<� 8�838� '2�8;5� ';�'68�

-�' ��� ��� ��1����������
;��	��� ��� '���	�� ���
������������������

'�92'� 2�<83� ;�'5;� 5�325�

��1�������������� 2'(3C� 29(2C� 62('C� 65(5C�

�
�
,)�� $���(������������������#��+����"�����
�
6(<('�� %��	������#
����-�������
����������
�� ����������������� ��
����������������������������

�����1���	���

�� ������
������!��
����,��0��������
�����������������
�����1�������1����
�
�
���(�-���� ������ 
��*��� 
�� 633� ��	���

�� 
��������  �� �
��� 
��

� 
���������!��
����,��
0���

�!
���0������� ���2339(�-��� ��	���

��1������������ ��� �������	�����������
*����
���
���������
�� �����������	� ��	���

� ���

���	�

�1�����������	���������
��1���������

��
���
���
���������
����	����������������	�����(�

�
6(<(2�� -���0
	���
������!��
�����.�
����������������%��	������-������ �������
�� ����������� ���

��

����� ��� ��	���

�� 	���� B���� 23'3�� 1����� 1���� ��
�*��� �������� ��� B���� 23''�� 
�� 
�
���
����,��������������
���
�� ����������������	�
������!���
���!����������������������(�

�
6(<(6� %��	������-�������
����1�����
���������
�

�����
���
�������������� ����
������������
�(��

�����

� 	�������� �����
��� ��
��
������	��
������ ����	� ��	���

�� ���!��
����,��0���������������
�������� 
� ����

� 1��*��� 
��� ��
�� ����  ���� ������� �	� �������� ��� 	���� �������

� 
��� ������
�������� ��������(� %��	������ -������ �
�� ������	���� ��
�� 

������� 	
��
���� 
��� ��������� ���
������ ��������� ������ ��� ��� ����
����� ��� �

��� ��� ������	�� 1������� 	
��
���� �
*�� ��� ����
��������
����1���������������	�����
�����������������
��(����
�����
�������
����	���"��	���

��
�
�� �����
���(�%��	������-�����,�� ����
�����
��

��� ������	���� ��
���
����
����������
��
���
������������������
��������
����������
�����
����
����
���
���


��+1�
	
�����������,�1�����
���
�� �
���  ���� ��

�� 1���� 
�� ���
����� ��� ����� 1����� 1��
��  �� ����� �������	�
� ���
���
�����	
��
���(�

�
6(<(;� %��	������-�������
��������������
���� ������������������
���
�� ���
����������1
��

���1�����!��
����,��0���������
�
������������	�����������
�����	���

��1�����1�

� ��������
���������	������
�����
���	
��
����
����������������������������
������(�@����������$��������
�������!��
����,��0��������1�

� ��1��*����1����*����
�������
���%��	������ ��� ���
������
������ ��
����(� � -��� ��1� 
��
��������� 1�

� ������� ��
�� ��
���
 
�� ���
����� 
��� ������
����
���������� ������������ ����������������
��� ���
��������
�����
�����
��� ��� ���������

�������
���1
�(��

�
�

Page 283Page 83



�

�

�
,)9� >�'��(�.�����
����������+�

�
6(9('�� /
��
��A�����!��	������������������
����


�������������
��
����������� 
������������	�

1��*����1����	
��
���(��������
��
����
�����
����������������1����������������������)��������
1��*������	
��
�������
�������
�����1
����
��*�������������
����
�������
�������
��������
��
����  ���� ��
������ ��� ���� ��� 
���� ����� 
��� 	
����� 
��� ��
������ 
� ����� �������� 	��� ������
���
�(� /
��
�� A����� !��	���������  ������ 	
��
���� ��������� 
��� ��������� ����� ��� 	����
��
������� ��� ������ ��		���
����(� � -��� �$������� /
��
�� A����� !��	������� �������� ��� ���  ��
�$�
����� 	���� ���� ��� ������ ��
��� ��� ��
 
�� ���� �������� ��� 1��*� 
������ ���� ����(� ��� ���
��������� ��
�� /
��
��A�����!��	���������1�

�  �� �����1���� 	
��
���� 
�� ������� �	� ������� ���
������� ��
�� 	
��
�����$�������������		���
�����
�����
 
��� ��� 	������
�������1������ �������1��
	
��
��
����������������1��*��1������������
��������������	����
�������� ���������� ��
��
���
����� ���
��� �
	�� 
�� 


� �����(� � -���� 
����
��� 1�

� ������	�� ���������� ��� 	
��
���� 
���
��
���������
��
�������
��
 
��1����������������	����$��������
����������
������(�
�

6(9(2�� )�����1�

�  �� ������
*���� ����� �$�
������ ��� �
����������1���� ���� /
��
��&������A������ 
�
�
����


��������������$�����
��������������	��
�(��-����$�
������1�

��
*���

���	����7
����
23''���1
���(�

��
,)6� ='������+��������������	�����������	������������������
�
6(8('�� ��� ������ ��������
����� 1����� ���� ����� �		������� 
��� �������
���� �
�
�� �������������

��������� �
��� ����  ���� 
 
�� �������� ���� ������ �	� ���
����� 
��� ����� ��
��� ������� �������
�����	���������	��
������������1�

� ��
�
�

 
���������������
�������
��
�(�

�
6(8(2�� 7�
��"0�������� -���
��� �
�� ������� ���  �� ����� �		������� ��� )����� ������� ��,�� ��
��� ��������

��1������������������
�������������	�������
��
��������������(��-�����
��1��*��1����''�K�
':���
���
������������
��
�����*��	��
�������������(������
��

�����������		�����������
���


�
��� ��� �	� �
����� ��� ���������� ���
����� 	���� �$����

� �

��������  
�*� ��� )����� �1��
�

��������
���������
����,��	
��
���(�

�
6(8(6� -������������������ ���$�
����������������
���1��*����
����������������
�����������
��������

����������	��
�������������(��-����1�

�

��� ������
����1����
���� ����	�����������
��1���
�
��� 

��
���  ������ 
��*��� 
	����  ��� 1����� ������ ��� 
� ��������� �	� 
� ������� ����(� � ��
��� ����	�����������������
���
���
��� ��������
���	���������������1������
�������1��*�
����������� ���� �������� 1�

� 	����� ��� ���������� ���
����� 
��� ������ ����
�� 1��� �
��� >����
 ������
��*���
	���(�
�

6(8(;�� &���
���� ��������� ��
�� ���
�����1��� ������ 
��*���
	���� 
��� ���
��� ��� �
��� 	��� 
������
��
����$� ���������1��*��
������������� 
�*�
�� ��� ���
��� ����
��� 	�������� �1����
��(� �-����
1����1� �	� ������������ �����	���� ��� ����� ������
��� ��� ���������� ������ ����
�� ����� 
���
���������� ������ ��������(� � ��� 1�

� 
��70-� 
� ������� �������� ��
�� ��� ���  �� ����
����� ���
���������
��	
��
��������������������
�������������

�������������������
�������������������
���
��������
��
�(�

�
,)��� ����������������������+�
�
6('3('��-����� �
��  ���� 
� ����� �����	��
��� ������������ �	� !��
����,�� 0�������� ��� )�����  ��������

�������������	������=���
�����)�����
���)��

��������������������
������ 
�����	�
������
1����� �

�� �	� ������
����� �	� ��������� ��� ���
����� 
��� ������ 	
��
���(� � -��� ������
����� �	�
!��
����,��0��������

����1����������		��������
�
���������������
���������	��
������������
���
�����
 �������
�����
��������������������	���������������������������	����
�������(�
�

Page 284Page 84



�

�

6('3(2��-�������

�1��*���
���
������ ����

�����������
����


�������

�������
������������������
��
�
�����
����

�������
���


���� ����	�
��

������
�����

��������������
���
���������
��

�

�������(� -����� ��

���������� 1�

� 	���� ����  
���� �	� ����� �		������� �
	���
������ 
���
�������
�����1��*�1���������
��

�����

�1��*��
�
����1�

����������������������
����
���
��
����
����������	������

�������
��������������������������	����
������
�
����
������
�����
��������������	���	�������������

�����������(�-����1�

���
 
��
������������
������������������
������������
�����1���
��������������
���
 
�(��
�

6('3(6��0����

����)��*����	����!��
����,��-�
���
���

��� ��������
 
������������������
��
��*���

	�������
����� ���	���	���������
������������

�����������(�-����1�

����������
���
����

���
	���
��*���
	�������
�����
����������	��1
������
�����+���	�,(�!
����

���1�

� ������������
����
��

����
������� �������������������1�����		������������������
�����������������������	�����
���
��
�������������������
�����������
�����(���

�����������
��
��*���
	����1�

��
���
�
����
������ �

�� 1����� ��
��� ��
�� 
�������� 
��� 1��*���� ��������� 
�����
�� ��1
���� 
�
����������$��� 	�����
��� 	���


� 
��*���
	�������
����(�-������$����1�

� ���
���� ������� ��� ������
	
��
��������

���
���
�������
���
�������(��!��
������
��������������������

�����������
����
���	�������
������ ��� ��� ����������

� ��
���
���
��*���
	�������
���
��
��
�
���

�����

��������������

�
���
��

����������������������
�����(�

�
,)��� *����'�����	�����
�
6(''('� %

�������������� ��� ������
��� ���
����������������������� 	��� 
��*���
	�������
�����
�� ���

����������
�����
�����
����
������1�����
�������
���
������������������(����*���������1
��
��� �������� ���� ������� �	� �

�������(� -��� 	��������� 
��� 
�������� ��
�� �
��  ����
�������������
���
���������������������������1
����������
����������
����
������ ����	���"
������ 	������ �
����� 
��� ������������ 
�������(��� �����1��	� ���������

� ���������� 
�����
��
�����������
����"���������������

��������������
�������
�����������������	����
��������)�����

��� ������� ���� �����	� �$�������� �$����

� �

�������� ��
�� �
*�� ���
�����
1
�� 	���� ������
���������(����1�

�

��� �� 
��*���� ��� �����
��� ���������	������

���
���
������������� ���
��
�����
�����������
���1�������������$�������	
��
���(���

�
6(''(2� %

��������������1�

�

��� �������
����
��1���������������� ����	����
�������
����������

 ������ 
��*��� 
	���� ��������������		������� �������
����� 
��� �
�
�� ������������� ��������(�
-����$�
�������	���"��������������������
���1����
�����������������
���	����

�����������

���������������������������!�����
�
���1�

�����������		�������
����		������������	�����������
�����������
����,��������
�������
���
������
������������������������
������)����(�

�
5)���� 
������������������������

5)�� 
������������������+�+�'�����

;('('�� ����������	��


��	������������(�

5)��� �?�����(�������������(�@���	��������������+�������

;(2('���-��������������	�
��*���
	�������
������������
���������������
��� �����	������������
������1��

��
��
����1������������

������	����
��������)����(�-��������������� >�������
�

�����
���
���
�	� ���� �������� ��������� �	� !��
����,�� 0���

� !
��(� �
����

� ����
���� ����
������ ����� 
�� 
�
��������� �������
�������
�����������
���
�����������������������������1���
������

�1��*�������
������ 1�
	
��� ���	������

�� ����
��� 
� ��		������ �������
�� 	��� ������� 	���� ������� ���������
	
��
����1�����		������������������������������
�����	�����������
����,���
��(�

;(2(2� -�������
������� ���)�����
��� 
���������	��
��� ��
���������

���� ��� ����?D���1������ 	�������
1��*������� ��������
*�������������
�����������������)����(�

Page 285Page 85



�

�

�

5),�� 
��������������������
��(������������

;(6('�� -���1��*�1���� 
��*���
	�������
��������
�����������	��
������������
���������������������	���
���
�������� ��
��*���
	������������

��������
� �������	���)�������� ������
����
��	�����
��
����(�

;(6(2�� ������

��������	�������� ������������!��
����,��0��������
���1�

����������������������	�����
1��
��!�����
�
��������
�������
������������
��
�1��
�(�

5)5�� ������������������������'���(��

;(;('�� -���1��*����
����� ��� ����� �������
��� ����)��*����	����!��
�����%

�� ��� 
����������������
���� ����� 	��� ���
����� ���  ������ 
��*��� 
	���(� -���� 1�

� �������� ����� �		������� �
�
��
�������������� 
� ���
���� 	����� ��� ���
����� ��� ���� ����� �	� �
��� 
��� ����� �		������� �
���
�

������ ��� 
������� ����
������ 1����� ���
����� 
��� 
��*��� 
	���(� �

� ������ 	�
������ 1�

�
��
����
�����������	������
�����
����������������(�@����
���������	�����������������������
������� ����	�
��*���
	�������
�����1�

�

���
�
�����	��
���

��
������	�������!�����
(�

5)0�� "�+����'����������/����������������'������������������

;(5('�� -���������������� >�������!


���(�

5)8�� ���#�'���+�'����

;(:('�� ����������	��


��	������������(�

0)��� 
�����������

5('� -����� �
��  ���� ��������
 
�� ����������� 	���� ��� ���� 
��� �
������� ��� ����������
���������	�����
���
 
�����
����(�-�����
������
�������������� ����	�
��*���
	�������
�����
��
 �
������ ��� ���� �
��� ��
�� 
��� �����	��
��� ������������� ��� ��������� 	��� 
��*��� 
	����
���
����(���

5(2� -������ ����	� 
��*���
	�������
��������)��������
�������������
���������������������	���
���
����� ���  ������ 
��*��� 
	���� 
��� ����������� 
��*��� 
	���� ���
����� ��� 
�������
����
���������
����������	�������!�����
�
��������
������(�-��������
��
�
�����
���������

���
���
������������
������������1�

� ����������� 
�*��������=$��������.�
���
���0�����������
�
����

�� 
���(��

8)�� ����''����������

:('� =$��������.�
��� ���
�*��� �������� ��������������
��� ��!��
����,��0�������� �����
 �
������
��� �����	�
��*���
	�������
����(�

�
:(2� -��� =$�������� .�
��� ��� 
�*��� ��� �������� ���� ���
����� 
��� *��� 
�������  ����� �
*���  ��

!��
����,��0��������
����
����������+-��������!����,����������� ����	�
��*���
	�������
�����
���)����(��

�

Page 286Page 86



�

�

�)�� ���#+����������'����'���

<('� -���)��*���
	�������
������ ��������
�������

�����
�
�

 
������������(��

<(2� 0����������������/��

�&���������=$����

�%

�������(�

�

�

���������������������������������������� ����
'
�-��� 
�*�����������������
����������������������
���
�
�

 
��	�������������������������	���
���������	�	����
��
���	�

�1���������
����	�������
��
����������(�����������
�������
����������������
������������������
������
�$�����������	������

���	���
���������
����� 
������1��*�(��&�������������������
��� 
�*�����������������
����
�� ���� ���������������������
�����(�

Page 287Page 87



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 21 March 2012 

Subject: Work Schedule – March 2012  

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. In July 2011, the Board identified the following priority areas for inclusion in its work 
schedule during the current municipal year: 

 

• Reducing smoking in the over 18s (as detailed in the Board's Terms of Reference 
agreed by Council);  

• Service Change and Commissioning in Adult Social Care (as detailed in the 
Board's Terms of Reference agreed by Council);  

• Reducing avoidable admissions to hospital and care homes (as detailed in the 
Board's Terms of Reference agreed by Council);  

• The transformation of Health and Social Care Services (as detailed in the Board's 
Terms of Reference agreed by Council);  

• Consultation (across adult social care and health);  
• Health inequalities; and,  
• Leeds Crisis Centre (follow-up on the work from the previous Adult Social Care 

Scrutiny Board).  
 

2. These were presented as a draft work schedule at the to the September meeting of 
the Scrutiny Board.  An updated work schedule is attached as Appendix 1.  This 
should be considered as a live document and may be subject to change, to reflect any 
changing and/or emerging priorities identified by the Scrutiny Board.   As such, it 
should be noted that the work schedule is likely to be subject to change throughout 
the municipal year. 

 
3. The minutes from the Executive Board meeting held on 7 March 2012 are 

attached at Appendix 2. 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 10

Page 89



 

 

 
4. Attached at Appendix 3 is the Council’s current Forward Plan (1 March 2012 – 30 

June 2012) relating to the Board’s portfolio and terms of reference.   
 
5. A summary of each of the main areas of inquiry detailed on the work schedule are 

presented below: 
 

Reducing smoking  
 

6. The draft Leeds Tobacco Action Plan was presented and discussed by the Scrutiny 
Board at its previous meeting on 25 January 2012.  A summary of the discussion was 
detailed in the minutes presented to the previous Scrutiny Board meeting. A draft 
report will be presented to a future Scrutiny Board meeting for agreement.   

 
Service Change and Commissioning in Adult Social Care  and Reducing avoidable 
admissions to hospital and care homes  
 

7. A series of reports about the integration of health and social care services were 
considered at the Scrutiny Board meeting in February 2012.  A summary of the 
discussion is detailed in the minutes of that meeting, presented elsewhere on the 
agenda.  These will be used to draft a report on behalf of the Board, which will be 
presented to a future Scrutiny Board meeting for agreement. 

 
8. Other activity in the area includes general input into the Health Service Developments 

Working Group, where matters detailed on the Council’s forward plan are included as 
part of the horizon scanning of future service changes/ developments. 

 
The transformation of Health and Social Care Services  
 

9. An update on the work of the Transformation Board and associated projects / work 
streams that are coordinated by NHS Leeds was presented and considered at the 
Scrutiny Board meeting in February 2012.  A further report has been requested fro the 
April Board meeting, detailing the efficiencies generated and re-investment in services 
resulting from the transformation projects. 

 
10. The Scrutiny Board may wish to consider incorporating this aspect of its work into the 

report on Service Change and Commissioning in Adult Social Care  and Reducing 
avoidable admissions to hospital and care homes (referred to above). 

 
Scrutiny Board inquiry: Consultation  
 

11. The Board held its second (and final) session associated with this inquiry at its 
December 2011 meeting.  The Board’s draft report and any associated 
recommendations will be presented to a future meeting. 
 
Scrutiny Board inquiry: Health inequalities 
 

12. Health inequalities was identified as a specific work area at the Board’s meeting in 
July 2011.  To date, the Board has considered the development and production of the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), in addition to some of the data sets 
available as a result.  The Scrutiny Board specifically considered details associated 
with two specific Medium Super Output Areas (MSOAs) from the City to help highlight 
and demonstrate the inequalities that exist across the City.   

 

Page 90



 

 

13. It should be noted that draft action plans from the Health and Wellbeing City Priority 
Plan (2011-15) were presented (for information) to the Shadow Health and Wellbeing 
Board at its meeting on 26 January 2012.  The draft action plans focus on delivering 
the following strategic priorities: 

 

• Help protect people from the harmful effects of tobacco 

• Support more people to live safely in their own homes 

• Give people choice and control over their health and social care services 

• Make sure the people who are the poorest improve their health the fastest 
 

14. The priority ‘Make sure the people who are the poorest improve their health the 
fastest’ essentially relates to addressing health inequalities across the City.  Within 
this priority area, the following priority actions are outlined with a range of supporting 
activities: 

 

• Minimise the impact of poverty on health of under 5s 

• Action on housing, transport and environment to improve health and wellbeing 

• Support people back into work and to healthy employment 

• Increase advice and support to minimise debt and maximise income 

• Ensure equitable access to services that prevent and reduce ill-health 
 
15. The above priority areas are being used to provide the focus for a series of working 

group meetings to deliver this aspect of the Scrutiny Board’s work.  At the time of the 
Board meeting, working group meetings will have taken place covering the following 
areas: 

 

• Minimise the impact of poverty on health of under 5s 

• Action on housing, transport and environment to improve health and wellbeing 
 
16. It is hoped to present specific health inequalities information associated with Looked 

After Children elsewhere on the Board’s agenda, and feedback on the above areas 
will also be provided at the Board meeting.    It should be noted that further working 
group meetings are still to be arranged. 

 
Leeds Crisis Centre (follow-up on the work from the previous Adult Social Care 
Scrutiny Board) 
 

 

17. As agreed at the October 2011 meeting, in lieu of an inquiry into the impact of the 
closure of the Crisis Centre, the Director of Adult Social Care was asked to submit a 
monitoring report to the Scrutiny Board.  This was considered at the previous Scrutiny 
Board meeting, with a further 6-month progress report requested. 

 
Health Service Developments Working Group 
 

18. In July 2011, the Scrutiny Board established a working group to consider proposed 
NHS service changes and/or developments and the required level of public 
engagement and involvement, alongside progress and implementation of agreed 
developments.   

 
 
 

Page 91



 

 

19. The working group meeting scheduled for 5 March 2012 was postponed, however 
updated schedules have been distributed to members of the Board for information.  
As such, the most recent working group meeting was held on 9 January 2012.  Draft 
notes from the 9 January 2012 meeting will be available at the meeting. 

 
Request for Scrutiny: Arrangements for meeting needs of blind and visually impaired 
people in Leeds 
 

20. Following the request for scrutiny received and considered at the October 2011 
meeting, a site visit to Fairfax House took place on 9 December 2011 and a working 
group meeting took place on 16 January 2012.  The findings of the working group, 
along with a series of recommendations were agreed by the Scrutiny Board at it 
previous meeting (25 January 2012) and presented to the Executive Board on 10 
February 2012. 

 
21. Follow-up to this aspect of the Board’s work will be scheduled for the new municipal 

year.  It should be noted that in the event of any significant changes to the scrutiny 
arrangements for the new municipal year, both in terms of membership and remit, this  
may be subject to discussion and agreement with the relevant Scrutiny Board.  

 
Recommendations 
 
22. To consider the information presented in this report and supporting appendices, in 

order to amend and/or agree the work schedule detailed at  Appendix 1. 
 
Background documents  
 

• None used 
 

Page 92



APPENDIX 1 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

 

Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

 January February March 

Area of review 
(detailed in the Scrutiny 

Board Terms of Reference) 

   

Reducing smoking in the 
over 18s 

SB 21/12/11 – report from Director of 
Public Health on Tobacco Reduction 
Strategy 

 Draft SB report and 
recommendations to be agreed 

Service Change and 
Commissioning in Adult 
Social Care  

 

Reducing avoidable 
admissions to hospital and 
care homes  

 

SB report –– 29/2/12 focusing on 
Health and Social Care Service 
Integration: considering the 
implications (including governance 
issues) for the organisations 
involved, alongside the benefits for 
service users.   

 

The transformation 
of Health and Social Care 
Services  

 SB 29/2/12 – Update report from NHS 
Leeds 

 

Board initiated piece of 
Scrutiny work (if applicable  

   

Future options for long 
term Residential and Day 
Care Services for Older 
People 

   

Consultation (across adult 
social care and health) 

   

Health inequalities   9 March 2012 – Focus on Under 5’s 
19 March 2012 – Focus on housing, 
transport and environment 

 

P
age 93



APPENDIX 1 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

 

Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

 January February March 

Leeds Crisis Centre   SB 29/2/12 – monitoring report from 
ASC (including data from NHS Leeds) 
on service user access 

 

Request for Scrutiny: 
Arrangements for meeting 
needs of blind and visually 
impaired people in Leeds 

SB – 25/1/12 – outcome of working group   

Recommendation Tracking    
 
 

Performance Monitoring   SB – 25/1/12 – Quarter 3 report 
Performance report from NHS 
Leeds 
 

 

P
age 94



APPENDIX 1 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

 

Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

 April May  

Area of review 
(detailed in the Scrutiny 

Board Terms of Reference) 

   

Reducing smoking in the 
over 18s 

   

Service Change and 
Commissioning in Adult 
Social Care  

  

Reducing avoidable 
admissions to hospital and 
care homes  

Draft SB report and recommendations to be 
agreed 

  

The transformation 
of Health and Social Care 
Services  

Update report from NHS Leeds on 
efficiency savings and reinvestment 

  

Board initiated piece of 
Scrutiny work (if applicable  

   

Future options for long 
term Residential and Day 
Care Services for Older 
People 

   

Consultation (across adult 
social care and health) 

Draft SB report and recommendations to be 
agreed 

  

Health inequalities Draft SB report and recommendations to be 
agreed 

  

Leeds Crisis Centre     

 

P
age 95



APPENDIX 1 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

 

Work Schedule for 2011/2012 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2011/12 

 April May  

Request for Scrutiny: 
Arrangements for meeting 
needs of blind and visually 
impaired people in Leeds 

   

National review of 
Children’s Neurosurgery 

Consideration of proposed standards and 
service specification as part of the 
preparation for establishing clinical 
networks (TBC) 

  

Recommendation Tracking    
 
 

Performance Monitoring  
 
 

  

 
 
 

 

P
age 96



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

����������	
��
�
�

��
���
��������������������
�

���������
�

�

	����
���������������	�����������

� �

	����
��� �!����������������"��
��
	���
#�$�		���	��%�&
��
	��'�&�
�	��#�(�)����
��*��������	��(�+���
	�

�
�

���� ����� ��!"#$�% &#!�'��#((&)*����+*,(&#!�#"� -���$�((�%!.��,)*&+��
���
/��
�0�,���������
���������-��
������
�����������	���
��	������
�
	��������
	�
�������
��
)�	��������
���������	��������	���������-�����
	�
������

	�����������������������	����)�
������	��
���
�������
��	�����
����
���	�������
������	��
���
��������
�����	��������������������
�������
�����
)���������	��������)

�����������
�
����
������
���-������	�
�����
	��
�
�����	���������
��
)�./�
�
0�1� ����	��-����
��������
�������������
��	�"�	
���2
3�����
	��������������


����������
�4	�
�����
	�'�
���
���#
�����35061��	��
	�������

	���
������������������������
���������
�������
	��	���
��(
����(���������
�	��
����)����	���������	��-3�,�����
�������������	��-���������	��������
�-������������
	���	���	�
�����
	�)��������������
�"
��������
���	���
(��3�������
��	������	��������������)

������7
������������
���������
�	��������3���������
����)����
���	�������	�
�����
	����������)����	�
����	��-����
������
�����������
�������
	���������
�

�)����������
�����
�	���������	�����
�������������3�

�
0�1� !
�������	��-����	��'��	����
��������
�������������
��	�"�	
���2
3���5�


	��������������
����������
�4	�
�����
	�'�
���
���#
�����35061��	��

	�������

	���������������������	�������)����	������-���������	��-����
�
�����
�����������
����)�������������
�������	�	�����
���
��	������������
��
�����

	���3�������
�
���
����
���������)

���������7
��������
�����
�	��������
�������

	���3��4	�������
	�������
�
���
����������������

���	�
����	��-���)

���������7
��������
������
��	�����	��������
��
8������
	���	��
������������������
	��	
�	���
�	��
�������������	���
)������	�
)	�����	����	�	��3��4�����������
����
	������������������
�����
�	��������	�������	��������	�
�����
	�����-�����

�)�����������
�����
�	��������	������
��	����3�

�
0�1� ����	��-�!��
��������
�������������
��	�"�	
���2
3���9�
	��������������


����������
�4	�
�����
	�'�
���
���#
�����35061��	��
	�������

	���
���������
	���	���
�������������	��������	�
�����
	�
	������

	���:��
����
�����
���
�
����	�����
���0�	��
��	��'�
7�������
����������
�
����
	1��	���
�������������	��������	�
�����
	��	�������
	��
�����
'���������!�����3�����
���������
�������	�����
��)����
���	�������
�	�
�����
	�����
	�������������������	������
�����
)�	���
�������������
�
��3�
�

Page 97



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

��1� /% ��� ��(��
,�����)����	
����������������
�����
)���������)���	
���������;-��
�����!
����
"��������������	���
������)�����
�����
����������	�����
��������%��
��	��
!
����0�������	��	��$�������1�4	<
����#��
����	��������=;-���	���'������	���
����:3�,�����������	�����
�������
�"����������
���
����������	������)���
��
�
���������

	���	�
�����
	��
����	������������(

�����������������	�
#��
���0"�	
���2
3���6���������13��
�

���� 
�+*%$% &#!�#"��! �$�( (��
�

	����
��$�		���	����������������
	����	��������	��������	���������	��������
=(������(
	�
	��!����
	�8�����	��8
������>�'���$�	�	�������
���$�	���!
��	����
������	��%����
	��9���������
	�#�<
���:���
���
����	����������
��
�������
?������8
�����("*�!
����0"�	
���2
3���9���������13�
�
�

	����
��*����������������������
	����	��������	��������	���������	��������
=�����?������(�����;	���������@
	��(
����������*������.�%
����'�	���:���
���
�
���	�����������
�����������?������#���	�����
	�!
����0"�	
���2
3�����
��������13�
�
�

	����
��#�(�)������������������
	����	��������	��������	���������	��������
=�����?������(�����;	���������@
	��(
����������*������.�%
����'�	���:���
���
�
���	�����������
�����������?������#���	�����
	�!
����0"�	
���2
3�����
��������13�
�

��2� �&!, �(��
���
/��
�0�,����������	
����
�����������	�������
	������$���
������������
����
����������
���������
��3��
�
/�������
�

��3� ���$�! &+�(-&�(�&!��%$4(�%!.��#,! $5(&.���
,���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
�������������	����
�
������
�
�����
���	������	�����������
��������
������'������	���

	���������������3�
4	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�
�
,���!
����
	�	��

�����
��
�����������
�
��������������)����	������
��������
���
�����	������	��������
������)���
��������
��
��
	������)�����)�����
����
��
�������
�(

�����������������	���������
�������	����������"����������������
���
��	�����	���������
���
)��
���
��
��
	������)

�����������������3�
�
���
/��
�>�,�����������		��������
���	��
���	������	�����������������	�
'������	���

	������������
��
����3�
�
�
�/�����/�����
��
���/������
�

���� ��*�+%$���6,&���! �"#$� -��/��.(���*�+%$����$7&+������8���9��
$
�������
�"�	
���2
3��5����A���"�������������������
��
����
���%
�����
%���������
�������������
���)������

�����
��
������
�����������������
�-��	���
���
��B����������
	�������
����
	�
��,���������<
����	���
������

Page 98



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

(�����,��������%���������
��������������
�"��������6���	����
���	���)����
�����

	���:��$�	�	�����'�
���
���#
���3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
����
�

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�
�
,���!
����
	�	��

�����
��
�����������
�
��������������)����	������
��������
���
��3�
�
���
/��
�>�,���������
��������������
�����������-��	���
���
��B����������
�
������(�����,��������%���������
��������������
�"��������6�����
��
�����3�
�

���/
��������
�������
�
���
�

���� �! �$�$&(��:#!����.% ���
$
�������
�"�	
���2
3��C����	�� 
	������������������
��
������������
���	��
�
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�����;	���������@
	���	������?������
(������	�������	��	�����������
������
�����
	��
)�����D
	����
�
�����
�

��������)������

���	�	��������	������)�����)

�����������������
���
���
�
���	�����
����	���
�����D
	�3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�
�
"�������������������������
���	���
���

���	������
��
����	�����	��
���
��	����
��	����
������;	���������@
	�������������	�
������
	������������
��
�	�����������
���	�����	��
����	���
�����D
	���	��)���
����������
�
����
��

�����������
	�����
����)�����)�������������)����	��������
��3�4	�������
	��
��������������������������	�����
���
������)
����
����
	�������	��	���������
��
�����
����������
��
������	�������������
��������	���)����	������
���������	�
������
�
�	�
��������
��
��
	������)����������������
���
���������	���	��	����

	������
D
	���)�����
�����������������	����
�������
�����!
�����	��
���

���3���
�
$
��
)�	���
	��������
	�
������	��-����
������
�����������
���������	��������
�-�����
	������������
�4	�
�����
	�'�
���
���#
�����35061��)�����)���
�
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������)���
�
���
/��
�>��
0�1� ,�������������������	��
������;	���������@
	���	����������?������(������

)����������	�������	���
��
����
���
���	�����	��7
������������	�������
)����	������
�����������
�����������
���3�

�
0�1� ,�������	�����
�����!
��	����#�������������
	������������������

�
��
����	����������������
��������
�����
������������
	���
������
����

	���
���
��	�������
������)����	������	���������D
	������
����
���3�

�
0�1� ,�����-��	���
���
��B��E��������
��
��
����������������
���������	��

�
����
�����(
����(������������
�����
	������
���
��	������������
)���
��������	�����;	���������@
	�������
��
�����3��0,�����
���)�����	�����
�
��������	��
�����	����
�;����(������
��������
�����	���	������
����
��
�����������������
�����7
��
��
��
	���������������	�����;	���������
@
	�13�

�

Page 99



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

0�1� ,���������
	������������
���������������������)����	��-���������	��-���
�
������
�����������
�����������������
�
	�)����������
	��	��)�������
��
�������
����������
����
������(
����(������������������
������	��
���������	����������
��
�������������������
�����������
��
�������
�����
���	����	���������
����������
	����������
����	�����	������������
��
�����
	��	���������	�3�

�
0�1� ,�����
������)
������
	�������	�
	������
����������
��
������	������

�������
��������	���)����	������
���������	�
������
��	�
��������

��
��
	������)����������������
���
���������	���	��	����

	������D
	���
)�����
�����������������	����
�������
�����!
�����	��
���

���3���

�
���� �&$���%**�5�/��.(��! �$�$&(��:#!��
$%" �/#+%*�
�7�*#���! �
$.�$����

�#*%$��%!�*(��
$
�������
�"�	
���2
3��C����	�� 
	������������������
��
������������
���	��
�
�������������
��������	��	����������
����(
���������
���	��*�����0(�*1�
��
�
�����
��
��
������������?������;	���������@
	���	��F���	�;�
�
%�������	���
	�����������������	���������		�	����
������	���������3��,���
��
�
����(�*�����������������������
����
)�	�������	��������
	�
���
������	����

	�	
	/�
��������
����	���)���

������	�����
��������
�����		�	����������
	3�
4	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�
�
���
/��
�>��
0�1� ,��������������
�����������?������(�����;	���������@
	��>�(
����

�����
���	��*������.�%
����'�	������������

��)����	�����	��-����
�����
�
�����������
�����������
������	�����������������'��		�	��*�������
�
���������������(�*���
�������)���������������	��
������
	����
�����
%���������
��%����3�

�
0�1� ,�����
�7�����
�����%���������
��%�����	
������	�����������
	�
	����

%����
	�C�!0�1�
������,
)	��	���

	����'��		�	�������AA�����
���	��������������?������(�����(
���������
���	��*�����0�1.�%
����
'�	���������
�����)�������������
��������������3�

0,���������������������
�)����	��������	
���)����	
������������
�������4	������	��
������)

�������

�������7
����������

	���:��
�������
������	������3�,��������
��
�
�������������������;	���������@
	��)�����
���	���
	�����������������������
���
����������������
���������	���	���
	�
���	��
	�(�*����������	�������������	��
���������	��������	������(�*��
�����%���������
��%�����)

���	
�����
)�����
����
��
������	�������
������������
������;	���������@
	�1�

��9� �%��$%��!"#$+���! �#"�	,(�/%!�(�'��-%(�����
,���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
��������	���	����	������
����
�����
��-��	��������������	�
�����	��
���
����	����	����������
�����
�����	�	���
����	�����������
���(�������	�������
	��
����
)�	�������	��
�
���
	�

����������
	�	�)��
����	���������3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
����
�

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�
�

Page 100



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

"�����������������������	�����
���������
��������
������	�����
�����
������
�	���	���	��)��������������	�����
����
	�������
����������-��	���
�)�����������
��������	������	��
����������
	��	���������
�������	�
�����	�����

���������
�����������	������
����	�����	����������������������
	�
	������������
����-��
��������
��
����	��3�
�
���
	���	�)�����������������	����������	��
��������
�
�����-��	��
	��
�����
�	�
�����	�������	������
���	����
	
��������������	�����
�����������	���������
��

���	
������������������	���
���
���������	��(�����
��	�����������������
�
	�
��������:����
	
��3�
�
���
/��
�0��
0�1� ,���� ���� �
������
�� �	��
�
���
	� 
�� ���� ���
�� �
�� ��	�� �	�
�����	��

��������	������������	��������	
���3�
�
0�1� ,�����	����	����������
�����������	��
��-��	��������������	�
�����	��


���
����	����
����������	�	���
����	�����������
���(�������	��
��	��
�����	��
�
���
	�
����������
	�	�)��
����	�����������������
	�
�	�����
����������������	����	�����	����
����
������

	���3�

�
0F	����������
����
	��
���

	����'�
���
���#
����C3E���

	����
�����������
��<
���������
�������
��������������
��������	��������������
	������������
�
)����	��������	
��1�
�

��;� �%( <% ��=,%$ �$�'����!.��! � #�/�<%*�
#+,��! % &#!�%!.��#���$+&%*�

�%*��
$
�������
�"�	
���2
3��G���A���"����������������������
��
������������
���	��
�
�������������
��������	������
�����
������������������
������;��������
�����
���	���������	��)����8������
	��)�
��������<
���������������
�����
���	���������	��)��������)����	����������������������������������	�

������
�������������������������
��������
7���3��4	��������	�	�������������������
!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	��
���
��3�
�
4	��	��
�
��	���������
��������;-��
�����"�������
�������
���	���	������
;�
	
�������������
������
�����
	��	���)������������	������������
������
$���	���
�����������"�������	������(��������������!��	���
������2���
	���
"������,������:�$�������
	��	�����	
)������������
�	�����������	���������
��
��������)����	��������
����������	���
	�
�����
	3�
�
,���!
��������������������
��
����
������;�������������
���	����
7������	��
����������������-�����������
�������
�������)�����������	�����	������
���	��
�	������	�	��
��
��
	������)�����)

��������������������������
��3�
�
$
��
)�	���
	��������
	�
���
�������	��-����	��'��	����
������
��������
���
���������	���������-�����
	������������
�4	�
�����
	�'�
���
���#
���
��35061��)�����)�����
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������
)���
�
�

Page 101



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

���
/��
�'��

0�1� ,���� ���� �
	��	��� 
�� ���� �
�������� ���
���� �
������� )���� ���� �
���	��
�
����
	�
��������
7��������	
���3��

0�1� ,��������8�����
��,�������������

��)����	������
�����������
����
������
�������
	�
�����������
���	���������	����������
���3�

0�1� ,���� ���� ������
�� 
�� ����� �����
���	�� �	�� ���� ����� %
�����
�� ���
�
��
������ �
� �
	��
��� ���� ���� �
�
��	��� ��<
����� �
� ���	�� ����
�-����	�� �����
���	�� �������	�� �	� ���
���	��� )���� ���� �
��������
���
�����	�����������������
��
������������
���	���	�����������%
�����
��
����
��
�������
��������	���
��������������
	������������������<
�������	�
�
	�
�����
	� )���� ���� ;-��
����� "������ �
�� �����
���	�� �	�� ����
;�
	
��� �	�� �	� ���
���	��� )���� ���� ����
������� �������� 
��
��������
	3�

0,���������������������
�)����	��������	
���)����	
������������
�������4	�����

	���������

	���:���
	����
��
	����������
	�����������������������	���-�����
��
�������4	�����������
	��������������	���������	��������	��	������������
	�
)

�������

�������7
����������

	���:��
�������
������	������3���	���������	�
�
������	�������������
�
��	����
	�����

	�����������������
����������������
�	��������
	�������������������
������
�����)������������	���

�����
�����
��
8������
	��	�� 
�	�(�)���!
������	�"����1�
�

���� ��6,�( �"$#���+$, &!5�	#%$.�>��<�!�$% &#!?�"#$�%�/% ���,)�&((&#!� #�

�"$%�#!�& (��#!(,* % &#!� #���"#$�� -���$#+�((�#"���<&( $% &#!�#"�/%!.�
%(��#@!�%!.��&**%<��A$��!(�%!.� #��! $#.,+��/#+%*�A$��!���%+��

�7�*#���! (��
0�1� ��#�<
������
��%��
��	��!
����0#���	�����
	1��
����(����%
������
	��
�

�;$#��
	������
	�
�����
	��
�#��
�������'�
�����
��#���������
	�
��
(�	�����,
)	��	��?�������&���	���	���
�4	��
�
���(
����&���	�%�����
�����
���	���
,���8����
��%��
��	���	��"�����������
���	���
�������������
���


���	�	������<
������
��%��
��	��!
����0#���	�����
	1������;-��
�����
!
�����������������
������
	��
��;$#��������
�
	������)���������
���	������

�����
���������������*��	�%�����%
��������	���������
������
�
	�
�����
	��-�������
	�������	�����;$#��
	���
�
������
����
�������
��
��������)�������	��)�����������������,
)	��	��?�������&���	���	��
�
��	��
�
���(
����&���	�%����������	���
	�3�4	��������	�	���������������
����!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	�����
���
���	��	�����
��3�

�
�

	����
�� �'�
���������������
��%��
��	��!
����0#���	�����
	1������	����
���������	���	�
������
��	��
�
����������
���
	��������
������%��
��	��
!
�����	���
���������������!
���:��������	��	��3�

�
*	��������
������!
������������������	��������%��
��	��!
�����
������
���
�����)
���)�������������
	�������	�
	������������3�

Page 102



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

�
���
/��
�0�,���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
����	��������<
����
������������%��
��	��!
�����
��������������
������
	��
��;$#������
	
���3�

�
0!1� ��#���
	����
���#�<
������
��%��
��	��!
����0#���	�����
	1��
����(����

%
������
	��
��;$#��
	������
	�
�����
	��
�#��
�������'�
�����
��
#���������
	�
��(�	�����,
)	��	��?�������&���	���	���
�4	��
�
���(
����
&���	�%����������
���	���
,���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
����	�
���	��
������
�

	���:������
	����
��
	�
�����
	�
	�������	�����;$#���������	������
���
�����
���������������
	�
���
)	��	��������������	���)����������������	��
�������
������	��������
�������

	�����	�������
	��
���������������
	��	��
�
�
�����	�����	��
����	�������	�����������
)	��	��������������	3�4	�
������
	���������
����

��������
�����
������	��������<
����
������%��
��	��
!
����0#���	�����
	1��
�������

	�����
��������������
������
	��
�
�;$#���������
	����������

���
������
	�������������*��	�%�����
%
�����3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�����
���������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�

�
4	�����
	��	���
����
������
	��������	�������
������������	���
	�
���-����
��	��)����	�(������
���
��������������������(
���������
���	��
$����)
�������)�����<
������������
������)
���)���
	�������	�
	������
������3�

�
,���!
�������	
)��������	���
	�������������)��-���������
��	������
����
���
	���������
����
�
����
������
	���

������������
��;$#��
	�
�������
�������

	���3��

�
���
/��
�0��
0�1� ,���������

	���:������
	����
��
	�
�����
	�
	�������	�����;$#��

�������	���������
�����
���������������
	�
���
)	��	��������������	��
���	
���3�

0�1� ,�����������
����
�������

	�����	�������
	��
���������������
	��	��
�
�
�����	�����	��
����	�������	�����������
)	��	��������������	��
���	
���3��

0�1� ,����������<
����
��%��
��	��!
����0#���	�����
	1��
�������

	�����
�
�������������
������
	��
��;$#��������
	������
������
	������
�������*��	�%�����%
��������
��
)�	�������
	�
�����
	�
	���
�
�����
�
� ���
��� ���� ��
����� 
�� ����������
	� 
�� ��	�� ��� ,
)	� �	�� ?�������
&���	�� �	�� �
� �	��
�
��� �
���� &���	� %����� �����
���	���� ���
�����	��3�

0�1� ,���� �
������ )
��� ��� 
	�������	� �	�
� ���� �
������� �����	���
	� 
��
�-������	��)����	�(������
���
��������������������(
���������
���	��
$����)
��3�

Page 103



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

�����
������/����������
�

��1� /��.(��*&�% ���+ &#!��#%*& &#!�
��, % &#!� #��#,!+&*���<%$.&!<� -��
���%+ �#"� -��B��.�&!��%$&""���7&�@�#!�C#)(��B,�*��#7�$ 5�%!.��%$)#!�
��.,+ &#!�&!�/��.(��
,���������
��
��;	���
	��	���	��2�����

��

����
�������������
���
����
	��	���
��������
����
	������	�����
��

	����
	��G��� �	
������������
(�����������������
	��
�����
	��������	�������������
������$����4	�,������
�����)�
�
	�7
�����
����
�������	������
	����
���
	��	�(����3�4	��������	�	��
�����������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	�����
���
���	��	�����
��3�
�
���
/��
�0��
0�1� ,��������	�������������
	�����������������������
�����������
��
��

;	���
	��	���	��2�����

��

����	�
������
�
������������
�����
����
	����
�'�������
��������������	��
��;	������	����������
���	��:���
	�
�����
	�
	�$���/4	�,������3�

�
0�1� ,����;-��
�����!
�����
	��	
���
��
/
���	���������

	���:���
)�����
	�

��
�����������

�������;	���
	��	��'�
�������!
���3�
�
0�1� ,��������	����������
��
�������������������
�����������
��
��

;	���
	��	���	��2�����

��

����	�
������
��	�����)��������'?�
��������
�������
������������
�
�������
���
��	�����'?��	����������	��
�
����
�	�������	���������������	�����������������
���)���������
���	�
�����

�����������
�������

	���3�

�
���A�	
���


����
����A���
���A�������
��
�

���� /&  *��/#!.#!��	��( #!��&**�%!.��#*)�+4�'��$��B&!%!+&%*��*#(��B&!%*�
	,(&!�((��%(��%!.���+ &#!����
�*�<% &#!���6,�( ��
$
�������
�"�	
���2
3�EE���9��� 
�������������������
��
��;	���
	��	���	��
2�����

��

����
�������������
���

���	�	��������
������������	���������
��
����(������(
	�
	��!����
	�8�����	��8
������'$4��

��	����
7�����	��
����������	������

��
����)�����)�������	���

�����
��
	����
����
)���������
����	�����
	�
���������		���������
����������3�4	��������	�	�������������������
!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	��
���
��3�
�
4	��
	������	���������
����"�������)���
����������
������)������������	�
����������	�����	
)��������������
����)������������	�������������������	��
���������
�����������
7�����
������
���	�������	�����
����
	3�4	�������
	��
"��������������������������	�����	��	
�����
������	�	���	������
���	��

��
��
	������)�����)

�������������������
�������
����������	�����
	��������
���
���
��������
7�����	�������������������-�����	
���
���

��	����
����
	�
�����������
7�����

�����
������������	������������
��
	�����3���
�
#���
	��	���
���"�����:���	<
�������
����������
����������!
����)������������
�������	������������

	���
������
���	���
	�
������(������(
	�
	��	������
!����
	�8�����	��8
������'$4��������3�

Page 104



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

�
$
��
)�	���
	��������
	�
������	��-�!��
������
�����������
���������	��������
�-�����
	������������
�4	�
�����
	�'�
���
���#
�����35061��)�����)���
�
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������)���
�
���
/��
�'��
0�1� ,����������
������������	���������
��������
7������	�������	��	��
	��
�

���������
	��������������	��
��"�����������	�
������
����
)���������
	�
�������� 
������������	
���3�

�
0�1� ,������������
	����<
������
��������	��
����
���������<
���������
�����

�	���
��������	����
��
������
	��
����������
	���������	
������	���	�
������
�������������
	�����	��������������
��
��;	���
	��	���	��
2�����

��

����
�������������������
	��9�8

��	�������AGE�
�
	��	����	��
��
���
������'�
7��������	
�����	���	�
����3�

�
0�1� ,����������	�	��������������
	���	�����
�����������
����
	�����

���	���

)����	��-���������	��-�!��
������
�����������
�������	
���3�
�

��2� ��.,+&!<����#$ �.�
#��( &+�	,$<*%$5�&!�/��.(�'���.% ���
,���������
��
��;	���
	��	���	��2�����

��

����
�������������
���
�����	��	�����
����
	��������	��
	��������������
����������:���
���/���	���
!
�������#��
���
	�'�
��������)������
���	�����	�%�������������3��4	�
�������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�
�
,���!
����)���
���������
��������)������������	�����������������
��
��������
�������	���������	����������:���
��������
���������
����3�
�
���
/��
�'��
0�1� ,���������
������
��������
��������
��������	���������	����������:��

�
��������
���������
���������	
���3�
�
0�1� ,����
	/�
�	���
��
��������
�������
���
�
����	��������
����	�����

�
���/���	�������
����)������������	���
��������
�����������3�
�
0�1� ,�����	�
	/�
�	���
������	�������
�������
������������	��
������������	�

����������������
���
	���	��
������H���63�
�
0�1� ,�������
���������
�������
���������	��
�
�	������)�������
�������	�


������
	�������
������������	��)�����

���	��������
�)�������������
�
������!
�������#��
���
	�'�
������3��

�
��3� ���#$ �#!�/��.(��! &'�#+&%*�	�-%7&#,$���%���

,���������
��
��;	���
	��	���	��2�����

��

����
�������������
���
��
����	���	�
������
	�����)
����	����
��������������(������	��/%
�����
!�����

��,����0(�%!,1���	��������������	����
	��	�������������	��
����������	���
)������
�������������
	����
��	��/%
�����!�����

�����
���
(�������������
�����
��	������H����3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
����
�

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�

Page 105



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

�
4	��
	������	�����������������<
����)�����������������������	��%��
��	��!
����
	
��
	����
	�����������������
���	��
������	
��������������
�����������
%��
��	��!
�������
��
	����������
�����������)����	������
�����������
���
������	���
��	��/%
�����!�����

�3�
�
���
/��
�'��
0�1� ,���������������
������	�)�(������	���%
�����!�����

��,������	���

�������	����
	����	
���3�
�
0�1� ,�����������	�����
�������
�������	
�������������
�%�����(��������

	
���3�
�
0�1� ,��������<
�������������
�����������	��%��
��	��!
�����
��-���	���	�

����	�)�"
	�������+�������������
���	��
������	
��������������
�������
)������
�����������)����	������
�����������
����������	���	��/%
�����
!�����

�3�

�
���
��������
��
��
�����B�����
���
�

���� B&!%!+&%*���%* -��#!& #$&!<�����8�����'��#! -�����
,���������
��
��#��

������
�������������
��������	��

�������

	���:��
��
7��������	�	�������������
����
	�����������
	����
��������	�	���������3��4	�
�������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	�������������
�
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�
�
,���!
����)���
���������
����������	��)������������	�����������
�������
�
)�������������	�����	���������
������8������%��������
	����
��
	�
�
	�����
�

	���:���
���	����	�	������
����
	�)��������������3�
�
���
/��
�0��
0�1� ,����������
7��������	�	������
����
	�
�������
��
�������������	��
	����
��

������	�	�������������	
���3�
�
0�1� ,��������	�-��$�	�	�����8������"
	��
��	�����
�������
���������
�����"���

�����;-��
�����!
���������	���)�����)���������������

��
�	��
������
��	�	������������	��������
����������H�6�"
	�������+������
	��
��	��
���
�����
	��	
���
�����
���������
������;-��
�����!
���������	�3��

�
���� ���#$ (�$�<%$.&!<�
�7�*#���! (�&!�$�(��+ �#"��#��,!& 5��!7#*7���! �

&!�/#+%*��, -#$& 5��((� (�%!.���$7&+���$#7&(&#!��
0�1� �������
���
��
	����?��
��/�(��������
	��	��4��������
	��

,���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
����������	������
��
����
	���
������)�����������
���
��
	����?��
���	�����(
�����������
�	�������	��

���������
���	����<
�����	����	�������
��	�����
���������
	���
�������

	���3�4	�������
	���������
����

��������
�����
�
�
������������
�
����=(����
���������
���
��
	����?��
�:��	�����
��
�
����������
��
������
�����������
��
������������
���	���
��
��
�����
�	��
��
	�
���
��
	����	
��	���
	���	����������
���������
���
��
	����
���
��)������������������������������������

��)����	����������	����
���

Page 106



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

)�����)

���������	�
����������
����	��	
��	��������
	�
������
��
�
��
	����	
��	���
	�3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�

�
4	��
	������	���
����������
��������������
��	�"�	
���2
�3����0�1��	��
���0!1�������������������"����������������������	�����
��	�
���
�����������
��������)������
��
	�������

�����<
�����������
��
�
��
	�������
���	�������
��
	�������������	�������
���
���)����	
��
�

��
���
���������	�
������
���-�������
��
	�������������������
�����3�
4	�������
	��"��������������������������������

�������	��<
������
��
��������
���	���
��
���)�����
�����
����������
��������
��
	������
���

��

��(����3�#���
	��	���
������
���	�������������������
;-��
�������
�����������
��	���������	��	����	���	��=��	��
:�
����
����)

����������	���������

	�����	��������	���
��
	�������
)�����)

���������
���	��������	����	��	�����������
��

���	�����
	���
������(����������3�4	�������
	�����)���	
����������	��
�
������
���-������
	��
���	�������)

���	�����
����������
���
��������
�����)������	�	�������������3�
�
"�������������������������������	��
���
������C��
	���)�	�
)�
��

��
��
	����������
��
	������

���)

���������
��
�����������������
�
��<
������������	�������������
���
��
	�������
���	�����������������
	�����
���	������	��
�����-��������
	��
�������������3��

�
�������������
��
��
	�������������	�������"�����������
�����)�������
�
������������

���������	��������
	���������
���
�������
����������
�	��	
����������
�������
	��������
	��

����������	��
������������3�

�
4	��
	��
��
	��
��������	
���������
���	���)������������	�������	��
������������������	���������
�������
��
	�������������	�������
���
���
�����
�	��������)

����������	��	�
��
	��������
	���������
������
�
	�
�����
	���
�����
	������������
������
���������
�����!
���3�
8
)���������)�������������������������
�������������	���
�����
��<
�����
	�
���������
���
��
	�������
���������	����������������
��	�����&
���	��	�3��

�
���
/��
�'��
0�1� ,����������	
�������������(
���������������������	��)�����������


���
��
	����?��
������-��������
��
����
�����	�
��
����������
�����������
	�����������#��
����
	����������	�������������
%���������
��%������)�����)������������������
	���
�������

	���3�

�
0�1� ,��������
�����������	��
������
�������
	�
��������
�
����������

���������������������	��-����
������
�����������
�����
������
�
��������=(����
���������
���
��
	����?��
�:��	�����
����������
��
��	��	
��	��������
	�
������
���
��
	����	
��	���
	�3�

�
0�1� ,�����
��
�������������������
�����������
��
������������
���	���

�	��
	�
�����
	�)��������;-��
�����"�������
�������
���	���	��
����;�
	
�����
��
��
����������	��
��
	�
���
��
	����

Page 107



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

	
��	���
	��)������������������������������

��)����	�����������	�
����=�����
���������
���
��
	�������
�:��	����
���)�����)

��������
�	�
�����=�����
����	��	
��	��������
	�
������
���
��
	����
	
��	���
	�:3�

�
0!1� �
��
	����������,��	�����

,���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
��������	��

������
������

	���
��
��
	�������������	������

���	�	�������
	��-���	�������

��&
���	��	���
����������������	��������	������
���
��
	����������
���	�����������

	���:���-�����	����
��������
�������)�����	������
	��
����	��3�4	�������
	���������
������
������	�������������
������	��
��������	�������)
����
���
	��������
	��	���������
���	���
�
���
�
��
	�������������	�����3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

��
�	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	��
���
��3�

�
,���!
�����
	���������
����������
��������������
��	�"�	
���2
�3�
���0�1��	�����0!1�������������������������
���������������
������

��������	������
���
	�
	��
������
�����������������)����	�"�	
���2
3�
���0�13��

�
���
/��
�0�,������
�7�����
������
���	���)������������	������
�
��	����������
���
	��������
�
�����������
������	�������)
���
�
�
��	�������	�����
������
�����������
��������������
��
����	�
�������	���
��
	�������������	�����3��,���������)��������
�7�����
����)
�
�
	����
	�
�����
	�����
����
������������������
�6����"���������)������
��	��������
	����	���
���������
�;-��
�����!
�����	� 
�������3�

�
0�1� �
��
	����#������
�������	���

,���������
��
��#��

������
�������������
�����
����	�����
������
��
������<
�����	��������	����
������=�
��
	����#������
�������	��:�
��
����
	��
������(
������������������	����
����	���	�
��
��
	�����
�
��������	���������	������)�������������

	�����������	�������
���
����������������
	3�4	��������	�	�������������������!
�����

���	�
�
�
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	�����
��3�

�
���
/��
�'�,���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
������	
�����	��
�
��
�������	�����������������������
���������
�������
���������
�����
!
������������	���������
����
	���
	�������������
�������3�

�
0F	����������
����
	��
���

	����'�
���
���#
����C3E���

	����
�����������
��<
���������
�������
�������������������	�����
���
��	��
	�����������
	��
����������
�)����	�"�	
���2
�3����0�1��	�����0!11�
�

���� /#+%*��, -#$& 5��#$ <%<���+-�����
,���������
��
��#��

������	������������
��
��;	���
	��	���	��
2�����

��

����
����������7
�	�����
���

���	�	�����������
���	��
����	�)�
��
�
����	����������(
�����
��
�����"
�������%��������	���������������������
�
(����3��4	�������
	���������
����

��������
�����
�����������������������	�

������
��
��
��������

��	����������	�(����3�4	��������	�	�������������������

Page 108



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

!
�����

���	�
��
	��������
	��������������
	���	���)����	��������
���	��	��
���
��3�
�
"�������)���
����������
�
�����)������������	����������������������
�
��������	��)��������������������������	�����
	�)

��������
	������

��	��
��������	��
	�����	��������������������������
��������/����	��������������
�	�(����3��
�
#���
	��	���
����
	���	���������������	������AEI��������
���
�������)�����
�������	���
�
�����
����
���������������
��������������"�������)����
�����
��������������	���������)���	
���
��	�

����������������	��	����
���
�
������
�	�������������
���
���������������
�����)�
��������	��
�7�����
���
���
�

����	�	�����������	����
���
��3�
�
4	�����
	����
��	��	<
���������������)����
	���������������)����	��	�����
������
��������
�����������������
�������)�
���
������(���������3�
�
4	��
	��
��
	������������)���
���������
��
����
�������	���������)���������
���	�����	��	����<
��������������
���������
���)����
���������
�����!
�����	�
�
���

�������
����	���������)�
��������������	���	����	���
	��������
	�
��
)������������	�����������

����
	��	
���	������
�
��3�
�
���
/��
�'��
0�1� ,�������������������	��
����(
�����
��
�����"
�������%�������
��

(�������
��������������)����	�����(�����"���
�
����	�������������������
����
���3�

�
0�1� ,��������
�����������	��
�B�����������
	������
������	
������������

���	���������)��������	�������������-��
���������
�������
�����	���	����
�
����
�������
	��������������3�

�
0�1� ,��������
�����������	��
�����-��
���
�	����
��
	���������������
��

B�E�����3�
�
0�1� ,������������
����
�������������������������	���
���������������

�����������
�����������
��
��#��

����3�
�
0�1� ,�������
���������
�������
���������
�����!
�����	��
���

�������
����	��

�������)�
��������������	���	����	���
	��������
	�
��)�����������
�	�����������

����
	��	
���	������
�
��3�

�
���/
���D�����������
�

��9� /##4�.��" �$��-&*.$�!�>/��?����#$ ��
,���������
��
���������	:��%���������
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�
����	
�����
���

�����������������	��	�����������	��������	��
����������


��
�����
���������	���
��)�
��"�����������������
��
���������	�3�4	�
������
	���������
���������������������	���������������)�������	������	��
�)�����
�
���
�������	
�����
���

�����������������	��	���
��	�
����������
����������	�
�

����������������������
��(�����)�����	���������
�������<
����������3�

Page 109



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

�
�
�����
����������	�����
��������%��
��	��!
����0�������	��	��$�������1�
4	<
����#��
����	��������=;-���	���'������	�������:��������	�����
�������
�
!
����"����������
���
����������	������)���
���
���������

	���	�
�����
	3��
�
"�����������������������	�����
��	�
���������
����������	���)����

	�������	�����	/�

�����������	��������������4	����	��	��$
�����	�����	���
�	��)���
���������������������)�)������������	�
	�������	��������%��
��	��
!
����0�������	��	��$�������13�4	�������
	��"����������������������	�����
�
�	�
�������������
��
	�����
	����
�����)�����
����
������������)���������
�	�����������3�4	�����
	����
������
���	�������������;-��
�����"�������
��
�������	:��%�����������������
����
��	�����	��������%��
��	��!
�����
������
��
����)
����������
	�������	��	����������������)������������	�������
	���
������
�	�������
�3�,����
������
	��������������	����������
����	��
���	/�

���
�
������������)�������	
)���������
)��������)������������������������
���
����
����	��)����
����-��	������	
���
�������������
���	�	������	��	�����3����
�
4	��
	��
��
	������;-��
�����"�������
���������	:��%�������������
��������
!
����������������	:��%��������)

���	
������
������	���	���������
������
���
�����
��
	��	
���
�����
��������������
������������
�������
��

	����
���3�
�
���
/��
�'��
0�1� ,����������
���������������������	:��%���������	����������	��	
������


���

�����������������	����	
���3�
�
0�1� ,������������������	����������
	�����	������	�����������	:��%��������

�	������	�����
�=,
�	������
���:�
	�����	
�����
���

�����������������	�
�	�(���������	�
����3��

�
��;� 	%(&+����.��������%$$��%!#$�%!.��#,!.-%5���**��-$#,<-���+-##*(�

��7&(�.��#( (��
$
�������
�"�	
���2
���9�������*��
�������������������
��
���������	:��
%���������
�������������
���

���	�	����������
	������	�������	��������	��
����
�	�������
	��
��
������������"�	
���	��#

	�������
7���������	�����	������
������
	����
	��	����	�������	������
�����
������	���������-��	���
���
	��
���
��
7������	�
������
���������A���
������������	�����3��
�
#���
	��	���
�"������:��
���	����	���
	���	������
��	����)�������������
���������
����
/
���	���������
����)

�������	����)��	�������
������)��	�
��������	���
��������
���	����	������
�
��3�4��)������	
)�����������������
�������)���	
���
�7�����
������4	���
���
�����	�����
��	�
������������
���
��
����
	�)����	��������
��%����������������
)���������)�����<
������
�����������������)�������������
�����������	��%��
��	��!
������
������������������
��
��������

�����������)��3���
�
4	��
	��
��
	���������������	
)�������������<
�����
��������������
����
����������
�%��
��	���	���	�������
	�����
���<
����������������
���)���
�
���������
����
�
��������	��
��;-��
�����!
�����	�
�������
�������������
��
��������
	��)������������	�����	�����������
���
����������
���	���	�����	����
�
���
���
���)������������	��������	���3��

Page 110



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

�
���
/��
�'��
0�1� ,���� BCEE����� 
�� ���
���� ���	�� �
	��	�� ��� ���	�������� ��
�� �������

�5�GEH���H�����	�������������
	����-��	���
���
��BCEE����� �	���������

�����������"�	
����
7��������
��
�������	�
������
����
)�������������
�
��
�������
����
�����
������
������
��������	���
����
)�6����������
����
�����������
������3�

�
0�1� ,����B��99E�����
�����
�������	���
	��	��������	����������
����������

�5�GEH���H�����	���C5�5H���H�����	�������������
	����-��	���
���
��
B��99E������	���������
������#

	�������
7��������
��
��������	�
�����
�
����
)�������������
���
�������
����
�����
������
������
��������	���
�
���
)�C����������
���������������
������3�

�
0�1� ,����������
�������������	���
���������������������������������
�����

������	��%��
��	��!
�����
�������)3�
�
0�1� ,�������
���������
�������
���������
����
�
��������	��
��;-��
�����

!
�����	�
�������
�������������
����������
	��)�������������	�����	���
��������
���
����������
���	���	�����	�����
���
���
���)����������
���	��������	���3��

�
0,���������������������
�)����	��������	
���)����	
������������
�������4	���
���
�
����
���	���)����)����������
�����
������
�����������������������
��
����
	�
����
���������������
������1�
�

���� ���%+ �#"��,& &#!�B����&(�(�"#$�/��.(��
$
�������
�"�	
���2
3��EE��E��� �	
��������������������
��
���������	:��
%���������	����������������
���	���
����������7
�	�����
���������	��
������
�
��	�������������
���
���
	������������	������)��������	�����
��������
��
����
	��
��(����3�
�
,���;-��
�����"�������
���������	:��%��������	
�����������������
�
�����
	��	����������	������������
��(�����%�
��	��F	�
	��
	������
������3�
�
,���!
��������������������������
	����
��
	��������
��	���������
����������
�	���
	������������
	����������:��
���)����	��
�����
��
	�����3�#������	������
�������
���
���
	�����������)

��������
�
	�(������"����������	
)�������
��������)����

��������
����)��	���
	��
��
	���	�����)���������
�����<
������
��������
���������
���)����
���������
�����!
�����	��
���

������
���
	������
��������	�����
��	�������
	��
�������
�����	�
�����	�������
	������������

���
�����
�
	��
�����
��
	�����3�
��
���
/��
�'��
0�1� �
���	��
	������
	��	��
������������������
��3�

�
0�1� ,�������
������������
��)
�������
������
	����	�
������
������������

��
	
�����������
���
���
	������������	������)��������	�����
��������
��
����
	����	���������	�����
����������
����
	�������	��	����

Page 111



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	������������������������

�

�
	����������)���������
������	���
���������
�;-��
�����!
�����)�����
���
���
�������
���������������������	�������	�
�����	��
������

	�����������)����	��
�����
��
	�����3�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

����
B���	/�����
���� A,8�"�#�8������
�
/����
����B
����//����

B��/�A�	/��
�����
���� �C,8�"�#�8������0E3���'3"31�
�
0%��
��	��%
��
���)����	
�����������
���
���	����������������	������3����3�3�
	�
�A���"���������1�
�
�
�

Page 112



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
Relating to Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

 
 
 

1 March 2012 – 30 June 2012 
 
 

P
age 113



 

What is the Forward Plan? 
 
The Forward Plan is a list of the key decisions the Authority intends to take during the period 1 March 2012 – 30 June 2012.  
The Plan is updated monthly and is available to the public 14 days before the beginning of each month. 
 
What is a Key Decision? 
 
A Key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution is an executive decision which is likely to: 
 

• result in the Authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising 2 or more wards 
 
What does the Forward Plan tell me? 
 
The Plan gives information about: 
 
Ø  what key decisions are coming forward in the next four months 
Ø  when those key decisions are likely to be made 
Ø  who will make those decisions 
Ø  what consultation will be undertaken 
Ø  who you can make representations to 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 114



Who takes key decisions? 
 
Under the Authority’s Constitution, key decisions are taken by the Executive Board or Officers acting under delegated 
powers. 
 
Who can I contact? 
 
Each entry in the Plan indicates the names of all the relevant people to contact about that particular item.  In addition, 
the last page of the Forward Plan gives a complete list of all Executive Board members. 
 
How do I make contact? 
 
Wherever possible, full contact details are listed in the individual entries in the Forward Plan.  If you are unsure how to 
make contact, please ring Leeds City Council and staff there will be able to assist you: 
 

Leeds City Council  - Telephone: 0113 2474357 
 
How do I get copies of agenda papers? 
 
The agenda papers for Executive Board meetings are available five working days before the meeting from: 
 

Governance Services, Civic Hall, Portland Crescent, Leeds, LS1 1UR 
Telephone: 0113 2474350 

Fax: 0113 3951599 
Email: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

On occasions, the papers you request may contain exempt or confidential information. If this is the case, it will be 
explained why it will not be possible to make copies available. 

P
age 115



Where can I see a copy of the Forward Plan? 
 
The Plan can be found on the Leeds City Council Website www.leeds.gov.uk.  The Plan is regularly updated and for 
legal reasons is formally published on a monthly basis on the following dates: 
 
2011/12 
 

16th June 2011 17th December 2011 

15th July 2011 17th January 2012 

17th August 2011 15th February 2012 

16th September 2011 16th March 2012 

17th October 2011 16th April 2012 

16th November 2011  

 

About this publication 

 
For enquiries about the Forward Plan of Key Decisions please: 
 
E-mail: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk or telephone:  0113 247 4357 
 
Visit our website www.leeds.gov.uk for more information on council services, departments, plans and reports. 
 
This publication can also be made available in Braille or audio cassette. Please call: 0113 247 4357 
 
If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, please phone:  0113 247 4357 and state the 
name of your language.  
 
We will then make arrangements for an interpreter to contact you.    We can assist with any language and there is no 
charge for interpretation. 
 

P
age 116



(Bengali):- 

 
(Chinese):- 

 
(Hindi):- 

 
(Punjabi):- 

 
(Urdu):- 

 

P
age 117



 
LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 

 
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

For the period 1 March 2012 to 30 June 2012 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Adult Social Care Voluntary 
Sector Grants Schedule 
2012/2013 
The Director of Adult 
Social Services to agree 
the grant payments to 
voluntary sector 
organisations during 
2012/2013 
 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/12 Executive 
Member Adult 
Social Care 
 

 
 
 

Report to the Director of 
Adult Social Services 
 

 
mark.phillott@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
age 118



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Learning Disability 
Framework Procurement 
The award of the 
Framework Agreement  to 
provide supported living 
services for people with 
learning disabilities 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/12 Adult Commissioning 
Board 
 
 

The report requesting the 
award of the Framework 
Agreement to provide 
supported living services for 
people with learning 
disabilities from December 
2010 for a period of 2 years 
until December 2012 with 
an option to extend for a 
further 1x12 month and 
1x12 month periods 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
janet.wright@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Capital Scheme 16486 
Adaptations 2012/13 
To approve the release of 
Capital expenditure of 
£400,000 on Adaptations 
from April 2012 to March 
2013 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/12 Stakeholders, 
Government’s 
Community Equipment 
Services Agenda 
 
 

Design and Cost Report 
 

 
john.lennon@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
age 119



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Award of contract to Leeds 
Partnership Foundation 
Trust for the care and 
support services to adults 
with learning disabilities 
To invoke contract 
procedure rule 31.4 (to 
allow waiver of contracts 
procedure rule 13) 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/12 Department of Health 
requirement for 
2011/12. The following 
boards were advised 
of the requirement: 

• Council Executive 
Board Report 2009 

• Joint Commissioning 
Strategic Board April 
2009 

• Leeds Learning 
Disability Partnership 
Board 19 June 2009 

 
 

Report to the Director of 
Adult Social Services 
 

 
janet.wright@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
age 120



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Leeds Community 
Equipment Service 
Partnership Agreement 
Approval of the Director of 
Adult Social Services to 
agree to Leeds City 
Council continuing to be a 
partner, with Leeds 
Community Health Care, in 
the provision of community 
equipment services, with 
effect from 1st April 2012 
for a three year period with 
the option of a further two 
one year extensions 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/12 NHS, Children’s 
Service, User 
Involvement, ASC 
Disability Services 
Team 

 
 
 

Report to the Director of 
Adult Social Services 
 

 
katie.cunningham@lee
ds.gov.uk 
 

P
age 121



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Telecare Equipment for 
Leeds Telecare Services 
2012/13 Capital Scheme 
15989 
Executive Board 
authority to release 
capital expenditure of 
£1,000,000 on Telecare 
Equipment for the 
Leeds Telecare Service 
from April 2012 to 
March 2013 
 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Adult 
Health and Social 
Care) 
 

7/3/12 Original consultation 
with NHS Leeds, 
Environments and 
Neighbourhoods and 
Service Users 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

 
katie.cunningham@lee
ds.gov.uk 
 

Yewtree and Rosewood 
Extra Care Provision 
To award a contract to 
Methodist Homes 
Association to provide 65 
housing tenancies for older 
people residing in the Moor 
Allerton extra care housing 
provision 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

26/4/12 Project Board and the 
Health and Social 
Care Executive Board 
Member 
 
 

Report to the Director of 
Adult Social Services 
 

 
susan.gamblen@leeds
.gov.uk 
 

 

P
age 122



 
 
NOTES 

 
Key decisions  are those executive decisions: 

• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards 
 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Resources and Corporate Functions Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Development and the Economy Councillor Richard Lewis 

Environmental Services Councillor Mark Dobson 

Neighbourhoods Housing and 
Regeneration 

Councillor Peter Gruen 

Children’s Services Councillor Judith Blake 

Leisure Councillor Adam Ogilvie 

Adult Health and Social Care Councillor Lucinda Yeadon 

Leader of the Conservative Group Councillor Andrew Carter 

Leader of the Liberal Democrat 
Group 

Councillor Stewart Golton 

Leader of the Morley Borough Indep Councillor Robert Finnigan 

 
 

P
age 123



 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  
 

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
 

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS 

Decisions Decision Maker Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed 
Consultation 

Documents to be considered 
by Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 

Vision for Leeds 
 

Council To be 
confirmed 

Via Executive 
Board, all 
Scrutiny Boards 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Assistant Chief 
Executive 
(Planning, Policy 
and 
Improvement) 
 

Council Business 
Plan 

Council July 2013 Via Executive 
Board, all 
Scrutiny Boards 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy, 
Planning and 
Improvement) 

Health and Wellbeing 
City Priority Plan 

Council July 2013 Via Executive 
Board, Scrutiny 
Board (Health & 
Wellbeing and 
Adult Social 
Care), Leeds 
Initiative Board, 
Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Director of Adult 
Social Care 

 
NOTES: 
The Council’s Constitution, in Article 4, defines those plans and strategies which make up the Budget and Policy Framework. Details of the 
consultation process are published in the Council’s Forward Plan as required under the Budget and Policy Framework.  
 
Full Council ( a meeting of all Members of Council) are responsible for the adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework. 

P
age 124


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	7 2011/2012 Quarter 3 Performance Report
	2 ASC and Health Scrutiny Board App 1a performance reports
	3ASC Directorate Scorecard

	8 Leeds NHS Performance Report
	2 Appendix 1 - previously identified areas
	3 Appendix 2 - CQC report - Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust - SJUH  (January 2012)

	9 Health Inequalities - Looked after Children
	2 Appendix 1 - Executive Board LAC report

	10 Work schedule
	2  work schedule Appendix 1 (February 2012)
	3 work schedule Appendix 2 Executive Board minutes [7 March 2012]
	4 work schedule Appendix 3 Forward Plan (March - June 2012) - Health Wellbeing and Adult Social Care


